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Credence Systems Corporation 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

For Fiscal Year Ending October 39

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)
Net SaleS  civcriersssccnssmsmsiars et iarssrensiensinnnnnes 164,209 301,718 757,351 253,253 253,500
Operating Income (LOSS)  viivervirrsennrearcaersenneransas (173,194) (172,942) 225,550 3,361 (47,159)
Net Income (LOSS)  iiriensiniinniisncicnsiesssesesernoscies (170,481) (98,676) 120,510 4,772 (29.613)
Net Income Per Diluted Share (LOSS) civsecerrenennennes (2.81) (1.65) 2.00 0.10 (0.59)
Number of Shares Used in Computing

Per Share AMOUME  carvarrarcascsncacnsonsensons 60,570 59,818 61,892 50,168 49,812

Working Capitall .ciciicsrsscssvascansesisesianiansancanannrans 234,050 323,946 426,515 188,954 220,014
Total ASSEIS  ciicirsescisesivrsesinrisriaseanianransanransnnsnns 582,249 757,419 983,437 428,799 369,603
Shareholders’ EQUitY  cceccsreersasiarommsamsanssassunsuncuns 519,237 680,940 767,875 243,228 203,559

Credence intends to provide the most
cost-effective products and services {o

move our customers’ devices from
concept through production.




TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Recognized as the number one
North American ATE supplier for
customer satisfaction in 2002.

STATE OF THE INDUSTRY

We are currently experiencing the most proionged downturn in the history of the
semiconductor industry. Electronic sales — the driver of semiconductor consumption —
have dropped yet again in 2002 following a contraction of 14 percent in 2001. This is
unprecedented in an industry that has grown every year prior to 2001. in early calendar
2002, the semiconductor capital equipment industry in general, and the automatic test
equipment (ATE) industry in particular, began to see an improvement in business
conditions and book-to-bill ratios climbed above one for the first time in 18 months.
Unfortunately, this long awaited "recovery” proved to be short-lived and conditions
turned down again in the second half of the calendar year. It now appears that the
increased orders were not driven by a general improvement in business fundamentals,
but only reflected pockets of market strength driven by specific technologies, inventory
level corrections, isolated growth niche markets and early moves toward 300 mm
wafer size. Looking forward, we expect fiscal year 2003 to be ancther challenging year
and we will continue to view our business from a complete cycle perspective and
rationalize our operations accordingly.

In the face of declining orders, particularly from our outsourcing test house customers
in Asia, fiscal year 2002 was particularly difficult for Credence. Similar to many of our
peers in the semiconductor equipment industry, we evaluated our business and took
aggressive measures to adjust our capacity and cost structure downward. We
reduced excess capacity resulting from continued order softness, consclidated our
facilities and accelerated the integration of IMS, which was acquired in August 2001.
Additionally, we implemented headcount reductions, pay cuts, reduced work-weeks
and forced time off. Fortunately these actions, combined with our strong balance
sheet, enabled us to maintain the necessary investment in critical R&D programs and
customer service initiatives throughout fiscal year 2002. As a result, we were
recognized as the number one North American ATE supplier and number four Test &
Material Handling Equipment Supplier worldwide by VLSI Research Inc 2002
Customer Satisfaction Survey. Additionally, we brought more new products to market
than in any other year in the Company's history. These products included the Octet
configurable SoC platform, ASL 3000RF, ASL 3000, IMS Gemini MS, TestDeveloper,
and Personal Kalos XZ.




RESTRUCTURING TO IMPROVE EFFICIENCY

Over the course of fiscal year 2002, we made widespread changes in the organization
to create a leaner, stronger and more competitive Company. We consolidated major
functional groups to increase overall productivity and efficiency and, earlier in the
year, we combined the IMS and Credence customer service organizations into a
single group. As we progressed through the fiscal year, we consolidated the sales
organizations including sales offices throughout the United States, Asia and Europe. On
the product side, we created two groups: the Mobile Products Group consisting of our
Mixed-Signal/Wireless and Memory Divisions in California, and the SoC Products
Group consisting of the SoC, IMS and DaTS Divisions in Oregon. As a result, we now
have a unified and focused organization that can compete more effectively in this current
economic environment.

Our newly formed product groups will focus on two critical market segments. The
SoC Products Group will primarily focus on developing compelling, cost-effective
solutions that will meet next-generation SoC device requirements both in the
engineering and production test phases. Our Mobile Products Group will focus on
delivering compelling test solutions for the rapidly growing mobile and communications
markets where compact size, low power consumption and reduced cost are key. Both
groups contribute to our objective to provide the best integrated design-to-production
test portfolio in the industry.

INVESTING IN A DOWNTURN

Despite the current cyclical industry downturn, we believe in investing in critical
programs, regions and markets that most benefit the Company. Domestically, we took
advantage of our strong debt-free balance sheet and the depressed commercial real
estate market in the Bay Area to purchase a facility that will allow us to consolidate
our Silicon Valley employees into a single location in Milpitas, California. In Asia, we
opened a direct sales office in China and we increased our marketing presence in
Taiwan. With the added resources in these regions, we believe Credence can deliver
a stronger and more cohesive product and services portfolio that spans across the
design-to-production test flow.




Focused on delivering the most
comprehensive and compelling
design-to-production test solutions.

NEW PRODUCTS AND NEW CUSTOMERS

With over 400 design wins and 35 patents filed this fiscal year alone, we believe our
new product and technology portfolio will better position Credence as an innovative
and competitive player. in fiscal year 2002, we observed an increasing demand for a
test strategy that would help semiconductor manufacturers lower test costs and decrease
time-to-volume, while solving complex SoC test challenges in computer, communications
and consumer electronics applications. We believe our new Octet platform is competitively
priced and addresses these customer requirements through its configurable platform
and powerful software tools. The challenges of next-generation wireless devices and
applications drove the development of our new ASL 3000RF system, which features
Credence's patented modulated vector network analysis (MVNA) technology, the first
major technology breakthrough development in S-parameter measurements in 30 years.
The need for semiconductor manufacturers to move integrated circuit (IC) designs
rapidly into production resulted in the development of our IMS Gemini MS engineering
validation test system for device debug, characterization and failure analysis of complex
SoC devices. These products, along with our entire design-to-production test portfolio,
will enable Credence to grow its business in the SoC and RF production test areas while
maintaining our leadership position in the IC validation test space.

Despite the decline in revenues, new customers represented 29 percent of our orders
in fiscal 2002. We strongly believe that our new products and broader addressable
market gave us the opportunity to sell to these new customers. This is the highest
percentage of new customers for Credence since 1998 when it reached the 31 percent
level. Capturing new customers in the trough of a cycle is an encouraging indicator of
future growth of the Company as repeat orders drive business opportunity in an
upturn.



Dr. Graham J. Siddall David A. Ranhoff John R. Detwiler
Chairman and President and Senior Vice President, Finance
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer

INBUSTRY RECOVERY

History has shown that long and deep downturns in the semiconductor industry are
invariably followed by strong upturns. We believe the eventual recovery of the
industry will be based on three major factors: an increase in consumer confidence
and end-user demand, corporate/institutional return to |IT spending and compelling
mobile solutions in converging wireless applications and services. While we wait for
the industry to recover, meeting our financial objectives will be our top priority and
we are prepared to take additional steps, as necessary, to further reduce our operating
expenses. We will continue to remain focused on our product development roadmap,
quality programs and customer service initiatives so that Credence will be better
prepared to take advantage of the market when it rebounds. In addition, we also
plan to actively seek strategic acquisition opportunities that will improve our design-to-
production test portfolio and lead to increased shareholder value.

Finally, we would like to thank our shareholders for their patience and loyalty and our
employees for their hard work, support and dedication. We are committed to taking
the necessary steps to return Credence to profitability and to secure the best long-term
future for the Company and its shareholders.

Sincerely,

FuntB = %/ﬁ%

Or. Graham J. Siddall David A. Ranhoff John R. Detwiler
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Operating Officer Senior Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer
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PARTI

Item 1. Business

We design, manufacture, sell and service engineering validation test and automatic test equipment, or ATE,
used for testing semiconductor integrated circuits, or ICs. We also develop, license and distribute software
products that provide automation solutions in the design and test flow fields. We serve a broad spectrum of the
semiconductor industry’s testing needs through a wide range of products that test digital logic, mixed-signal,
system-on-a-chip, radio frequency, volatile, and static and non-volatile memory semiconductors. We utilize our
proprietary technologies to design products which are intended to provide a lower total cost of ownership than
many competing products currently available while meeting the increasingly demanding performance
requirements of today’s engineering validation test and ATE markets. Our hardware products are designed to test
semiconductors at two stages of their lifecycle; first, at the prototype stage and second, as they are produced in
high volume. Our software products enable design and test engineers to develop and trouble shoot production test
programs prior to fabrication of the device prototype. Collectively, our customers include major semiconductor
manufacturers, fabless design houses, foundries and assembly and test services companies.

We were incorporated in California in March 1982 to succeed to the business of a sole proprietorship and
were reincorporated in Delaware in October 1993. “Credence” or the “Company”, “we”, “us” and “our” refers to
Credence Systems Corporation and our subsidiaries. Our principal executive offices are located at 215 Fourier
Avenue, Fremont, CA 94539, and our telephone number is (510) 657-7400. Our worldwide website address is
www.credence.com. “Credence Systems Corporation,” “Credence,” “IMS” “Fluence,” “SC,” *ValStar,”
“Quartet,” “Quartet One,” “Octet,” *“ Electra,” “Vanguard,” “Wavebridge,” “MemBIST,” “TDS,” “TDX,”
“Triton,” “EPRO,” “BOST,” “MemBOST,” “Kalos,” “DUO,” “TMT,” “MVNA,” “Opmaxx,” “DirectTest” and
“Virtual Test” are our trademarks. This Annual Report on Form 10-X also includes trademarks of other

companies.

Background

The semiconductor industry’s successful production of increasingly smaller, faster and more sophisticated
ICs has made semiconductor devices available for a wide range of applications. This trend, together with a
continual drive to reduce production costs, has resulted in reduced average selling prices and semiconductor
content growth in almost all appliances ranging from dishwashers to automobiles, cell phones to PDAs and
laptops to servers. At the same time semiconductors have emerged as the building blocks of the communications,
internet and telephony infrastructures. It has become increasingly important for semiconductor manufacturers to
seek ways to reduce manufacturing costs while improving their time to volume production and profit.

The process of designing and manufacturing ICs is complex and capital-intensive, involving stages of
design, prototype manufacture, engineering validation test of the prototypes, device manufacture and production
test. Each stage in this process has come under pressure as integrated circuits have increased in complexity and
speed. At the design stage, advances in electronic design automation, or EDA, software have allowed design
engineers to work with integrated circuit designs at increasingly higher levels of abstraction, permitting engineers
to design significantly more complex integrated circuits in less time. The ability to design more complex and
capable circuits, together with advances in manufacturing processes, has resulted in an approximate doubling of
chip speed and complexity every two years. However, as integrated circuits have become more complex and as
device manufacturers have increasingly sought ways to introduce products to market more rapidly, critical
limitations have become increasingly apparent in the IC design-to-production process flow.

Today, IC design and manufacturing is, to a large extent, a serial process that crosses organizational,
functional and often geographical boundaries. In general, a design has to be complete before prototypes can be
built; prototypes have to be built before they can be tested; and prototypes have to be production-ready before
production test software can be debugged and refined. Production test software can take significant time to debug
and refine, so the need to wait until a physical part has been produced to perform that process delays an
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IC’s introduction to the market. Even then, test failures can raise the question of whether the IC itself is flawed,
or the test has an error. In addition, an IC’s design may be so sophisticated that some or all of its functionality
cannot effectively be tested. Designs that are discovered to be un-testable when produced require another
iteration of the integrated circuit process flow. These challenges are further exacerbated within semiconductor
manufacturers by traditional organizational boundaries where design responsibilities end at pre-silicon
verification and ownership is transferred to test engineering to create suitable test programs to uncover fauolts that
may occur in production and by the increased level of outsourcing which physically separates the design and test
functions. Additionally, the process and technology used to develop and debug production test programs has
often been inefficient and inadequate. . ‘

The equipment used in the engineering validation test stage has often been unable to effectively verify and
characterize increasingly complex ICs. To perform specialized tests on prototypes, engineers turned to ATE
machines to verify and characterize prototypes. However, ATE machines are designed for volume production
testing and in many cases lack the flexibility or versatility to efficiently test whether, and within what limits, a
given part works, or efficiently analyze why it fails to work.

Production testing is a principal element in the cost structure of semiconductors. Purchasers of production
testers now examine more carefully the total cost of ownership of ATE comprising of the initial purchase price of
the tester, as well as the tester’s reliability, flexibility, size, power and air conditioning requirements, .
upgradeability, maintenance costs and spare parts.

As assembly and packaging have become increasingly expensive compared with the cost of the
sémiconductor die, so that their costs may exceed the cost of the die itself, semiconductor manufacturers continue
to shift performance testing increasingly toward wafer probe. By subjecting devices to performance testing
earlier, defective die are detected and eliminated before assembly and packaging costs are incurred. This trend
has imposed new demands on ATE. Wafer probe testing, where productioﬁ testing may now occur, requires that
the device under test be located in close physical proximity to the measuring circuits of the tester in order to
minimize potential signal distortions that can negatively impact testing yields. Smaller testers can more easily be
placed in close physical proximity to the circuits. In addition, wafer probe test typically occurs in a clean room
where potential contaminants must be continually removed and temperatures kept constant. These special
maintenance requirements make clean rooms expensive to operate. Smaller testers occupy less floor space and
therefore assist in reducing clean room costs. In addition, smaller testers that consume less power generally have
reduced air conditioning requirements. '

There are two dominant process technologies used to develop the ICs used in ATE: emitter-coupled logic, or
ECL, and complementary metal oxide semiconductor, or CMOS. Although CMOS technology allows higher
functionality per chip and requires less power to operate, ATE based exclusively on CMOS technology has been
limited by the inability of CMOS to meet the timing and measurement demands of semiconductor testing.
Historically, although the speed of CMOS was acceptable, its timing stability was not. This problem results from
the tendency of CMOS circuits to experience timing drift as a function of temperature and voltage variation
during tests. To fully benefit from the economic and other advantages of CMOS technology, the challenge has
been to control this drift characteristic in order to produce semiconductors for ATE that meet the performance
requirements of semiconductor testing.

These technical, economic and market trends have created a significant need for an integrated design to
production test flow that includes Built in Self Test, or BIST, circuitry, specialized engineering validation test
products and high performance, cost effective ATE. Additionally, the market is requiring solutions that enable
engineers to develop and debug production test software and ATE interface equipment, or fixtures, in parallel
with the design and validation of integrated circuit prototypes to increase the process parallelism and improve
device time to market. : ‘




The Credence Solution and Strategy

We provide high performance IC engineering validation test systems that address the engineering and
production test requirements of increasingly complex devices. Our engineering validation test systems test logic
devices, mixed-signal devices that combine both analog and digital functionality and memory devices. Our
engineering validation test systems can also be used to test selected functions of highly integrated, or system-on-
a-chip, or SoC, devices. By keeping pace with the industry’s advances in speed and pin count requirements, our
solutions enable customers to reduce the time required for verification, characterization and failure analysis. This
generally results in lower cost of design, reduced time-to-market and increased competitiveness for the
companies designing today’s increasingly complex integrated circuits. Our validation systems give engineers a
more flexible and cost-effective way to verify and characterize prototype integrated circuits and to perform
failure analysis. Each validation system integrates the functions of a variety of individual test instruments into a
single system consisting of both hardware and software that offers increased verification and characterization
performance with significant cost savings. Our engineering validation test technology allows our systems to send
and receive data from an integrated circuit at the same speeds the circuit will experience in actual use. As a
result, design and test engineers can better identify failures, assess areas of concern, run rapid diagnostic
sequences to pinpoint the causes of failure and identify changes needed to correct design errors or weaknesses.

We have developed proprietary CMOS stabilization methods that minimize the drift characteristic of CMOS
and enable us to produce ATE production test systems that are smaller and require less power than those based
on ECL technology. These testers are intended to provide a lower total cost of ownership than many competing
products currently available while meeting the performance demands of today’s ATE market. CMOS technology
allows the circuits used in our testers to be reduced, or scaled down in size as IC process technology improves.
This scalability feature enables us to develop and manufacture smailer, higher performance circuits for use in our
testers at what we believe to be a lower cost, and with a potentially shorter development cycle, than traditional
process technologies.

We believe our software solutions enable test engineers to develop, refine and debug production test
software early in the IC design and production process, even before a prototype of the IC is produced. By
allowing production test programs to be developed and debugged while the integrated circuit is being designed
and validated, our software can significantly reduce the time required to introduce integrated circuits to market.

Our objective is to be the leading supplier of design through production test solutions. This includes high
performance IC engineering validation test systems, cost-effective ATE for production testing of ICs used in high
volume applications, and software solutions and other innovations to decrease the cycle time from circuit design
to high volume manufacturing. Cur business strategy incorporates the following key elements:

* Maintain Technology Leadership. We believe that our proprietary CMOS stabilization technology
enables the development of ATE that is designed to meet the performance and cost of ownership
requirements of semiconductor manufacturers and assembly and test services companies. In addition, we
believe the scalability of this technology will allow us to offer new products and enhancements in a
potentially shorter time and at a lower cost than many of our competitors that base their products on
traditional less-scalable architecture.

° Provide Innovative Solutions to Test Increasingly Complex Devices. We intend to keep pace with rapid
advances in integrated circuit design and test by introducing new engineering validation test systems and
related software designed to test higher speed and higher pin count devices. We intend to continually
enhance our existing systems to add valuable features and functions that meet our customers’ evolving
needs.

° Lower Total Cost of Ownership. We seek to provide ATE to our customers at a lower total cost of
ownership than many competing products currently available while meeting the performance
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requirements of our customers. We believe that the system price, reliability, flexibility, size, power and
air conditioning requirements, upgradeability and mairitenance costs, including spare parts, of our testers
enable our customers to more cost effectively test ICs.

Provide Integrated Design to Production Test Solutions to Reduce Time-to-Market. We believe that our
customers require increasing levels of sophisticated software tools to integrate the design to production
test flow, assist in the utilization of ATE and minimize time-to-market. We currently are focusing our
software efforts on internal development and acquisition of companies or businesses that develop such
tools. Through our acquisition of Fluence Technology, Inc., or Fluence, and Integrated Measurement
Systems, Inc., or IMS, we have acquired automatic test program development software, or TDS, and TDX
product lines, analog design, optimization and fault analysis technology and BIST products. The
acquisition of IMS added Virtual Test Software designed to develop and debug test programs and model
the tester and test environment. We believe these acquisitions, and our new software product lines that
integrate design and test, will enable us to capitalize on the Design-for-Test, or DFT, market.

Target Diverse, High-Volume Markets. Our products target the testing of digital logic, analog mixed-
signal, SoC, memory and radio frequency devices that-are used in a broad range of growing end-user
market segments. Our products are designed to test semiconductors that are manufactured in high volume
and are used in a variety of applications such as automobiles, appliances, personal computers, personal
communications products, networking products, digital televisions and multimedia hardware.and
communications infrastructure.

e Leverage Relationships with Industry Leaders to Enhance Market Position. We currently intend to
continue to build close working relationship with integrated circuit manufacturers, EDA software vendors
and ATE machine vendors to enhance our market position. Working closely with integrated circuit
manufacturers helps us anticipate their needs and incorporate specific value-added functionality into our
products. We believe our relationships with leading EDA software vendors allow us to design and offer
products that can access the device models created with EDA software and effectively use this data to
perform validation tests and debug and refine production test programs. Ourt relationships with several
leading ATE vendors strengthen our ability to develop ATE machine simulations, and we believe these
relationships have led to increased customer acceptance of our TDS and virtual test software products.

Worldwide Technical Support and Customer Service. As semiconductor manufacturers expand their
operations worldwide, they require that their test suppliers have the capability to provide global support,
service and training.. To meet this requirement, we utilize a combination of direct sales, service and
support personnel and a broad network of independent distributors located in close proximity to major
customer sites. We and our distributors currently maintain locations throughout the world to service and
support our customers.

Products

We currently offer a wide variety of products that test digital logic, analog, mixed-signal, SoC, dynamic

random access memory, or DRAM, static random access memory, or SRAM, non-volatile or Flash memory and
radio frequency wireless ICs. Digital logic semiconductors produce discrete on and off logical sequences that
contro} functions, store data, retrieve data and move and manipulate data at high rates of speed. Analog
semiconductors control external functions such as sound, graphics, and motor controls by producing continuous
varying voltage or current signals. When these analog functions are combined onto a digital IC, the resulting
device is considered a mixed-signal device and as the levels of integration increase, the circuit is termed an SoC
device. For memory devices, DRAM loses data without power while non-volatile memory semiconductors retain
their data when the power is turned off. RF wireless IC’s are the devices that receive, transmit and convert radio
frequency signals typically used in cellular telephones and other communications devices.

Our CMOS-based ATE products—the SC, Quartet and Octet series—are designed to test high speed devices

used in applications such as networking and personal computing as well as multimedia, digital television, high-
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definition television and personal communications. Our memory product line, the Kalos Series, tests non-volatile
memory, or NVM, devices, including ROM, EPROM, EEPROM and Flash memories, which are used in high
volume applications in the consumer, automotive and telecommunications markets.

During fiscal 2002, we introduced five new products, or modifications to existing products. The Cctet series
high performance configurable SoC test platform retains compatibility with the earlier generation Quartet but
provides twice the pin count with 1024 channels and four times the performance with 800Mb/sec data rates. The
Octet is targeted toward high performance SoC devices. The ASL 3000 extends our ASL product line providing
digital capability on the analog-focused product line. The ASL 3000 is targeted toward cost-sensitive mixed
signal applications. To address the high performance, low cost RF IC market, we introduced the ASL 3000RF,
which incorporates our proprietary Modulated Vector Network Analyzer, or MYNA technology. In the
engineering validation market, we introduced the Gemini MS product that combines digital performance with
new analog measurement technologies. Adding to our design to test portfolio, we introduced a new version of our
Test Developer product with improved cyclization and software algorithms.

In January 2003, we announced the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of SZ Testsysteme AG and
SZ Testsysteme GmbH. The Credence-SZ division will operate with approximately 135 contracted personnel
from a facility located in Amerang, Germany and focus on the advanced analog, power automotive, and
communications markets.

In November 2002, we announced the planned sale of our subsidiary, Dimensions Consulting Inc., or DCL
DCT has approximately 15 employees and specializes in providing interface solutions for the semiconductor test
and development market through its high-performance ATE board designs and test socket systems. We anticipate
that the transition will be consummated during the first fiscal quarter of 2003.

In November 2002, we announced the planned acquisition of Optonics, Inc, or Optonics. Optonics,
headquartered in Mountain View, California, is a leading technology supplier of integrated solutions for
emission-based optical diagnostics and failure analysis. Optonics has approximately 36 employees and the
acquisition closed on January 22, 2003.

During fiscal 2001 we acquired DCI, the principal assets of Rich Rabkin & Associates, Inc., or Rabkin, and
IMS. DCI specializes in providing interface solutions for the semiconductor test and development market
through ATE board design and test socket systems. Rabkin specializes in providing interface solutions and test
head positioning devices for the semiconductor test market through its patented solution for high parallel
memory testing. DCI and Rabkin were integrated into our Memory Products Division to offer test solutions that
we believe increase manufacturing efficiencies and provide faster time to market for our customers. IMS designs,
manufactures, markets and services high-performance engineering validation test systems. These systems are
used to test, at the prototype stage, complex digital, mixed-signal and memory devices. In addition, IMS
develops, markets and supports a line of virtual test software that we believe enables design and test engineers to
develop and debug production test software prior to fabricating the prototype of the actual device. During fiscal
2001, we merged our wholly owned subsidiary, Fluence, into IMS. During fiscal 2002, we merged IMS into the
Company.

During fiscal 2000 we acquired TMT, Inc., Modulations Instruments, Inc., or M1, and NewMillennia
Solutions, Inc., or NMS. The TMT product line includes the ASL 1000, targeted at testing analog function ICs,
and the RFx, targeted at testing RF wireless ICs. During fiscal 2000 we introduced the ASL 2000 targeted at
testing many analog devices in a multisite mode as well as providing significant expansion capability for our
customers in the future. MI provides test solutions for the design and manufacturing of RF semiconductor and
wireless infrastructure component markets. MI holds proprietary intellectual property for performing
S-Parameter measurements using complex modulated signals. Our Modulated Vector Network Analyzer, or
MVNA technology allows accurate measurement of devices stimulated with signals matching their end-use
operating environment.




The following table sets forth our current product offerings, their features and examples of typical devices

tested by each product. Included in some of the basic features are the anticipated cycle speed in megahertz,
timing accuracy in either picoseconds (ps) or nanoseconds (ns), the number and characteristics of the pins and the
density, in megabits (Mb), of the device that can be tested:

Product Series Models Market and Basic Features Typical Devices Tested
Digital SC SC312 ATE: Microcontrollers, ASSPs, DSPs
SC Micro 50-100 MHz and FPGAs
64-304 Pins
+ 350-500 ps accuracy
MS 300500550 | Engineering validation test: Microprocessors, -Network
Vanguard Up to 1Gbs Processors, Chipsets, ASICs,
+/- 200 ps accuracy Multi-Chip Modules
16-512 Pins
SoC, Octet Octet 400 ATE: Multimedia devices, mass
Mixed-Signal Octet, 800 1024 digital pins storage, DSPs, ASICs, Datacom
400-800 Mbs and specialty devices, mobile
+/- 150 ps accuracy communication devices,
Analog, Video, Audio complex audio devices
Quartet One ATE: Multimedia devices, mass
512 digital pins storage, DSPs, ASICs, Datacom
200 MHz and specialty devices, mobile
+/- 175 ps accuracy communication devices,
Analog, Video, Audio complex audio devices
ASL ASL 3000 ATE: Personal communications, A/D
Up to 32 analog instruments with | and D/A converters as well as
expansion for up to 64 pins of multi-site test of traditional
digital and DSP instruments, linear devices
IMS Electra | Electra, Engineering validation test: High pin count SoC’s, A/D and
Electra MX 16-576 digital pins D/A converters, PLL’s
200 MHz Digital
2.4GHz Analog
IMS Gemini | Gemini MS Engineering validation test:
336 digital pins
330 MHz Digital
2.4GHz Analog
Memory KALOS Kalos, ATE: Flash memories, EEPROM,
Kalos xw, 50/70 MHz EPROM, MROM,
Kalos (xp), Up to 1G fail memory Microcontrollers and NVM
Personal +/- 1ns Accuracy ASICs
Kalos
IMS Orion Orion Engineering validation test: SRAM, DRAM, Rambus
200MHz
48-80 Pins
1 Gbit fail memory
Analog Test ASL ASL 1000 ATE: Analog or Linear IC such as
Products Up to 19 analog instruments with | battery power management IC.
32 14MHz digital pins Traditional linear devices such
as Op-Amps, comparators and
regulators




Product Series Models Market and Basic Features Typical Devices Tested
Radio RFx RFx ATE: Wireless communications IC
Frequency Up to 8 ports of 6GHz RF with such as Power amplifiers (PAs),
(RF) Wireless Analog and digital instruments. Low Noise Amplifiers, Mixers
) and synthesizers
ASL ASL 3000RF | ATE: Wireless communications IC
Up to 8 ports of 6GHz RF with such as PAs, Low Noise
Analog and digital instruments. Amplifiers, Mixers and
MVNA technology synthesizers. Bluetooth, CDMA,
GSM, and 802.11 WLAN
compatible devices
Software Designto | Test Generates tester specific files Tools apply to digital logic
Test Developer from simulation (EDA) files. circuits
Verifies timing specification
Designto | Virtual Test Accelerates the development and Tools apply to digital logic
Test debug of test programs devices
Designto | MS BIST BIST generation for digital, Tools apply to analog, high-
Test analog and mixed-signal devices speed digital and mixed-signal
devices
Digital Products

SC. Infiscal 1997, we expanded the SC series by introducing and shipping the SC 312, which runs at a
higher speed (100 MHz) and has improved accuracy over its predecessor, the SC 212. The SC Micro is a cost-
reduced version of the SC 312. This system offers our customers a full capability test system at a price currently
below $2,000 per digital pin channel. This per channel price has previously been available only in test systems
with reduced functionality-requiring users to compromise the quality of their device testing. The SC Micro
retains the customer’s test quality while lowering its test costs. The purchase price of these testers typically
ranges from $200,000 to $500,000 depending upon configuration.

IMS Vanguard. The IMS Vanguard, our flagship engineering validation test product introduced by IMS in
1999, can send and receive data from integrated circuits under test at up to 1 Gbs and accounted for the majority
of logic family sales in 2002. The logic engineering validation test system family includes the Vanguard 500, 330
and most recently introduced 550. The IMS Vanguard systems sell for between $0.7 million and $2.3 million
depending on configuration.

SoC and Mixed-Signal Products

Octet.  Octet is our latest generation, high performance SoC configurable test platform. Introduced in July
2002 and first shipped in October 2002, the product is currently being evaluated by a small number of customers.
No revenue has yet been recorded for this product. Octet targets high performance SoC chips used in chipsets,
graphics, audio, video, mass storage and wireless baseband markets. Featuring up to 1024 digital pins and a
selection of high performance analog instruments, the Octet is a production ready, high performance tester and
meets the market requirements for low cost of test. Prices range from $1.0 million to $2.5 million depending on
configuration.

Quartet. Quartet is our high performance mixed-signal product series. The Quartet One was introduced in
1998 and started shipping in early fiscal 1999. QGuartet builds on the Duo series by addressing the needs of device
manufacturers serving the consumer mixed-signal, or CMS, marketplace. CMS devices combine the power of
digital processors with CD quality audio, broadcast video and wireless communications onto a single, cost
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sensitive SoC. The Quartet One, the first of the Quartet series, addresses all four of these requirements in an
integrated, ready for volume production package. With 200 MHz digital, 20 bit audio and 300 MHz video,
Quartet One is designed to meet the demands of the most complex SoC devices. With typical system prices
between $0.5 million and $1.5 million depending on configuration, the Quartet provides a low cost of test
required by the CMS market.

ASL 3000. Introduced in fiscal 2002, the ASL 3000 is an extension of the ASL product line featuring an
increased number of mixed signal instruments, expansion to 64 pins of digital capability, and DSP based mixed
signal test. The ASL 3000 is capable of testing more complex devices and more devices in parallel and targets a
wide range of ICs used in personal communications. The purchase price of the ASL 3000 ranges from $150,000
to $350,000 depending on configuration.

IMS Gemini MS. Our mixed-signal engineering validation test systems are used by customers to verify the
designs of complex integrated circuits containing both digital and analog functionality. These mixed-signal
integrated circuits are used in applications such as cellular phones, internet appliance, set top boxes and cable
modems. The IMS Gemini MS is also used to test selected functions of highly-integrated, or system-on-chip,
designs. Depending on configuration, the system can send and receive data from integrated circuits under test at
up to-330 MHz. The IMS Gemini MS sells for between $0.7 million and $1.5 million depending on
configuration.

IMS Electra. The Electra system can send and receive data from integrated circuits under test at up to
200 MHz. Our Electra series includes the Electra, which can test mixed-signal integrated circuits with up to
224 pins, and the Electra MX, which can test mixed-signal integrated circuits with up to 576 pins. Our Electra
series systems sell for between $0.3 million and $2.1 million.

Memory Products

Kalos. Introduced in November 1997, the Kalos is a highly integrated, parallel system designed to test
flash memory. Running at 50 MHz, it provides multi-site testing and is designed to lower the customer’s cost of
test. The Kalos features a unique tester-on-a-card architecture, which places all test functions for each site on a
single card and thus reduces floor space and power consumption while increasing performance. The typical
purchase price of the Kalos ranges from $0.4 million to $1.2 million depending on configuration.

Kalos (xp). Introduced in fiscal 1999, the Kalos (xp) is based upon the Kalos tester. The Kalos (xp)
features a wider, 96 pin test site enabling testing of high pin count NVM and flash memory core microcontroller
devices. Kalos (xp) provides up to eight site-in-parallel test capabilities in a small footprint tester package.

Kalos xw. Introduced in fiscal 2000, the Kalos yy is based upon the Kalos tester and features 32 test sites,
twice as many test sites as the standard Kalos system.

Personal Kalos. Personal Kalos is a desktop engineering version of the high-throughput Kalos tester. The
typical price for a Personal Kalos ranges from $50,000 to $120,000 depending on configuration.

IMS Orion. The IMS Orion is used by our customers to verify the designs of the most common types of
memory integrated circuits, including complex SRAMs and DRAM:s. The IMS Orion will send and receive data
from integrated circuits under test at speeds up to 200 MHz/400 Mbs. Depending on configuration, these memory
validation systems sell for between $400,000 and $600,000.

Analog Test Products

The acquisition of TMT in fiscal 2000 extended the market that we serve to include analog dominant ICs
that are made up of traditional analog function blocks such as amplifiers, regulators, switches and converters.
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The ASL product line tests these traditional devices either as individual ICs or as larger function ICs such as
battery power management devices in portable electronics devices.

ASL 10006. The ASL 1000 was introduced in fiscal 1996. This system is highly configurable and targeted
at testing the traditional analog building block ICs. As the traditional analog or linear device manufactures move
to more efficient manufacturing, the multi-site test capability of the ASL 1000 has proven to be very effective at
reducing their cost of test. The purchase price of the ASL 1000 ranges from $90,000 to $250,000 depending on
configuration.

RF Wireless Test Products

Our RF wireless test products provide tools to IC manufacturers for use in characterization and production
test of high performance, cost sensitive RF devices.

ASL 3000RF. Introduced in early 2002 and first shipped in May 2002, the ASL 3000RF extends the ASL
3000 product line by incorporating proprietary MVNA technology to test RF devices. No revenue has yet been
recorded for this product. The ASL 3000RF is targeted at cost effective testing of RF front-end devices that are
typically manufactured using Gallium Arsenide, or GaAs, Bi-polar or Bi-CMOS technology. The devices, Power
Amplifiers, or PAs, Low Noise Amplifiers, or LNAs, Synthesizers, Mixers and Switches and integrated
combinations of these, or Base band chips, are used in both digital and analog cell phones. Providing capability
to test devices compliant with Bluetooth and 802.11 standards, the ASL 3000RF delivers high performance, high
throughput and leading cost of test economics. Prices range from $400,00 to $750,000 dependin;; on
configuration.

RFx. The RFx, a product acquired through the TMT acquisition, was first introduced in fiscal 1998 and is
made up of specialized RF test instruments combined with the analog instrumentation of the ASL product line.
The RF instruments are capable of testing up to 6GHz in either the scalar or vector method of testing RF
parameters The purchase price of the RFx typically ranges from $400,000 to $750,00 depending on
configuration.

Software Products

Our software products for IC manufacturers and test and assembly contractors help create detailed tests to
ensure product quality and shorten time-to-market.

TestDeveloper. This product simplifies the complex SoC test program development task for the
semiconductor industry by taking waveform data from simulator-specific representations in the design
environment, analyzing this data and then transforming the data into specific tester environments to be used in
either device verification or production test. TestDeveloper connects design to test by interfacing to commonly
used design simulators, and by offering numerous TesterBridge modules available for a variety of ATE models.

VirtualTest Software. To address the need for shorter test development times and lower cost, this product
accelerates the development and debug of a test program, creates a model of the test environment, develops and
tests fixtures and documents the entire test process. VirtualTest Software simulates the ATE environment
enabling test engineers to develop and debug test programs in parallel with the design, prototype manufacturing
and engineering validation test processes. With VirtualTest Software, test development work can begin before
the device design is completed.

MSBIST. The mixed-signal built-in self-test product line generates on-chip testing of analog-to-digital
converters, digital-to-analog converters and high precision jitter measurements for advanced devices by inserting
proprietary test techniques into the design before it is manufactured.

10




Customers, Markets and Applications

We target digital logic, analog, mixed-signal, dynamic random access memory, non-volatile memory
device, RF and SoC manufacturers that serve a broad range of growing end-user market segments. Our customers
design, manufacture and test semiconductors in high volume for use in applications such as automobiles,
appliances, personal computers, personal communications products, networking products, digital televisions,
wireless LAN and multimedia hardware.

In addition to marketing our products to major semiconductor manufacturers, we have developed A
relationships with numerous assembly and test services companies. Semiconductor manufacturers and fabless
semiconductor companies utilize these subcontractors as a means of lowering their fixed production costs, thus
minimizing the effects of cyclicality inherent in the semiconductor industry. As a result, these assembly and test
services companies are an increasingly important segment of the ATE market.

We believe that our success depends in large part upon the success of our major customers. The loss of, or
any reduction in, orders by a significant customer (including the potential for reductions in orders by assembly
and test services companies which that customer may utilize), including reductions due to market, economic or
competitive condition in the semiconductor industry or in other industries that manufacture products utilizing
semiconductors has materially adversely affected, and may continue to materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations. Our ability to increase sales in the future will depend in part upon our
ability to obtain orders from new customers as well as upon the financial condition and success of our customers
and the general global economy. There can be no assurance that our sales will not decrease in the future or that
we will be able to retain existing customers or to attract new ones.

For information on our geographic data and major customers, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere herein. Our international sales are primarily denominated in United States dollars.
We anticipate that our international business will continue to account for a significant portion of net sales in the
foreseeable future.

We schedule production of our systems based upon order backlog and order forecast. We include in our
backlog only those customet orders for systems (including upgrades) for which we have accepted purchase
orders and assigned shipment dates in approximately the following six months. Substantially all of our orders are
subject to cancellation or rescheduling by the customer with limited or no penalties. Our backlog at any particular
date may not necessarily be representative of actual sales for any succeeding period due to orders received for
systems to be shipped in the same quarter, possible changes in system delivery schedules, cancellation of orders |
and potential delays in system shipments. As of October 31, 2002, our order backlog for systems, exclusive of
orders for software, spare parts, service and support, was approximately $51.2 million plus an additional
$9.4 million of deferred revenue under Staff Accounting Bulletin 101, or SAB 101, as compared with $33.5 and
$20.5 million, respectively, as of October 31, 2001. During fiscal years 2001 and 2002, we experienced order
cancellations and customer-requested shipment delays in connection with the cyclical downturn in the
semiconductor industry. We believe it is probable that order cancellations and customer-requested shipment
delays will continue to occur in the future.

Sales, Service and Support

We currently market and sell our products in the United States principally through our direct sales
organization, with direct sales employees and representatives in over 14 locations. Outside the United States, we
utilize both direct sales employees and a broad network of distributors, with direct sales employees and
distributors in over 18 countries. Shipments through distributors represented approximately 35%, 44%, and 54%
of net sales during fiscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

Our distributors and we have sales and support centers located in the United States, Europe, Israel, and
throughout Asia from which both direct Credence personnel and independent sales and service representatives
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sell and support our products. We believe that field support is critical to our customers. Support encompasses
many of the components of the total cost of ownership for test equipment. We seek to develop long-term
relationships with major customers through extensive support consisting of teams of professional sales,
applications, training and service personnel. These personnel are located in close physical proximity to key
customer sites in order to provide the required support in a timely fashion. The sales process includes
consultations with customers to help them purchase the most cost-effective equipment for their needs, to help
develop custom test programs to optimize production throughput, to assist in long-term self-sufficiency through
training of customer test engineering personnel and to provide the service capacity and preventive maintenance
to reduce downtime for customers’ systems. Customer support includes field personnel and in-house applications
personnel who work closely with design engineering groups to modify existing equipment to meet the latest
performance requirements.

In fiscal 2002 we combined our separate Japan operations under our joint venture with Innotech
Corporation. Both companies originally formed this joint venture in 1997 to engage in the customization and
manufacture of ATE products for sale in Japan. In March 1996, we established a service and support subsidiary
in Korea. We also have a relationship with Itek, Inc., a distributor of our products in Korea.

In fiscal 2000 we purchased our European distribution companies from their owner-managers. These
subsidiaries provide sales, support and services to our customers in Europe and Israel.

We have an agreement with a non-related leasing company. In addition to leasing and financing activities,
we also provide certain remarketing services to customers through such company. We have issued a guaranty in
favor of a bank with respect to certain obligations of the leasing company to the bank. Under this agreement, the
leasing company agreed to grant to us a security interest to secure the obligations of the leasing company as a
result of any payments by us pursuant to the guaranty. At October 31, 2002 and 2001, the outstanding amount of
debt of the leasing company subject to our guaranty was $5,000,000 and $8,750,000, respectively.

Our standard policy is to warrant our new systems against defects in design, materials and workmanship for
one year for parts and labor. We offer customers additional support after the warranty period in the form of
maintenance contracts for specified time periods. Such contracts include various options such as board
replacement, priority response, planned preventive maintenance, scheduled one-on-one training, daily on-site
support and monthly system and performance analysis.

Research and Development

The engineering validation test and ATE markets are subject to rapid technological change and new product
introductions. Our ability to be competitive in this market will depend in significant part upon our ability to
successfully develop and introduce new products, enhancements and related software tools on a timely and cost-
effective basis. This will enable customers to integrate such products into their operations as they begin volume
manufacturing of the next generation of semiconductors.

We have pursued a technology acquisition strategy to complement our internal research and development
efforts, including:

e in 1988, we completed the acquisition of Axiom Technology Corporation, which added mixed-signal
testing capability;

° in 1989, we completed the acquisition of ASIX Systems Corporation, which added one of our proprietary
CMOS stabilization methods;

e in 1990, we acquired the STS Division of Tektronix Inc., which added a second proprietary CMOS
stabilization method;

e in 1993, we acquired various patents from Tektronix;
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in March 1995, we acquired EPRO, which added non-volatile memory testing capability;

° in July 1997, we acquired, through our subsidiary Fluence, specified assets and assumed specified
liabilities of Test Systems Strategies, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Summit Design, Inc.;

° in Augusf 1997, we acquired through Test Systems Strategies fault simulation and test program
development products of Zycad; .

° in June 1998, we purchased spec1ﬁed assets from Heuristics Phys1cs Labs (HPL) which added memory
- BIST design and test applications capablhty,

e in September 1999, we acquired Opmaxx through Fluence, which added analog design opmmzatlon and
fault analysis technology and BIST products;

° in May 2000, we acquired TMT, which added lower-end analog and mixed signal testing chpability,
particularly in the communications segment;

o in August 2000, we acquired MI, which added radio frequency test technology;

o in October 2000, we acquired NMS, which provides test strategies and prodicts including native test
environments and targeted design for test techniques;

¢ in January 2001, we acquired DCI, which provides interface solutions for the semiconductor test and
development market through ATE board designs and test socket systems;

e in February 2001, we acquired the principal assets of Rabkin, which provides interface solutions and test
head positioning devices for the semlconductor test market through patented solutions for high parallel
memory testing;

o in August 2001, we acquired IMS, which designs, manufactures, markets and services high-performance
integrated circuit engineering validation test systems. These systems are used to test, at the prototype
stage, complex digital, mixed-signal and memory devices;

e during fiscal 2001, we merged our wholly-owned subsidiary, Fluence, into IMS;
o during fiscal 2002, we merged our wholly-owned subsidiary IMS into the Company;

> in November 2002, we announced the planned acquisition of Optonics, which will add emission-based
optical diagnostics and failure analysis products. This transaction closed in January 2003;

o in November 2002, we announced the planned sale of DCI; and

° in January 2003, we purchased substantially all of the assets of SZ Testsysteme AG and SZ Testsysteme
GmbH.

Each of the CMOS stabilization methods we acquired provides a different sélution to the tendency of
CMOS to experience timing drift as a function of temperature and voltage variation. The first proprietary
solution uses a timing phase detection circuit combined with a voltage control mechanism to compensate for
thermal, voltage and process drift. The second uses a.unique combination of counters and heating circuits to
provide stability through thermal means. These methods allow our CMOS-based ICs to achieve the timing
repeatability necessary to meet the performance requirements of ATE and to realize the economic and other
advantages of CMOS technology over ECL technology. CMOS circuits use less space than those based on ECL
as the circuits require less power and can be more closely packed together. In addition to these acquired
stabilization methods, we have also developed and continue to develop new and/or improved stabilization
techniques for our tester products.

During the past two fiscal years, we developed the Octet, a configurable SoC platform targeted at the high
performance, high volume production SoC market. Incorporating greater digital capability and testing at
increased data rates, the Octet is our flagship production test product. We will continue to focus research and
development efforts on the Octet product line to ensure that our products have the ability to efficiently test state-
of-the-art customer devices which combine analog, high speed digital logic, and memory on a single IC.

13




Our ongoing research and development efforts also include focusing on increased cycle speed, accuracy and
pin counts of our testers. In addition, we are working on a software development program that is intended to
provide for upward compatibility through our products. We will also continue to focus efforts on providing
software solutions that allow more rapid, cost-effective development of ATE test programs that reduce time-to-
market of customer integrated circuit designs. We currently intend to continue to invest significant resources in
the development of new products and enhancements for the foreseeable future.

Research and development expenses were $85.4 million in fiscal 2002, $86.4 million in fiscal 2001, and
$77.9 million in fiscal 2000 (excluding $11.8 million charged for acquired in-process research and development,
or IPR&D).

Proprietary Rights

We currently hold 134 United States patents, which expire over time through January 2021. In addition, we
currently have 46 foreign patents, which expire over time through January 2017. The two United States patents,
acquired from ASIX and Tektronix, underlying our proprietary CMOS stabilization methods expire in February
2007 and December 2007, respectively. From time to time we grant licenses under our patents and technology
and receive licenses under patents and technology of others.

In 1993, we granted a license to Tektronix with respect to patents obtained in the acquisition of the STS
Division of Textronix, and certain other intellectual property rights, the Tektronix Rights, including a patent
covering one of our proprietary CMOS stabilization technologies, that were assigned to us by Tektronix in 1993,
Tektronix has a worldwide, perpetual, irrevocable, non-exclusive, royalty free, fully-paid, sublicensable and
transferable license to the Tektronix Rights. Tektronix may not grant rights under the Tektronix Rights to make,
use, sell or otherwise distribute ATE for testing ICs to any entity other than a Tektronix joint venture affiliate and
to a successor-in-interest to Tektronix. Tektronix may not grant or assign such rights to any other party that is a
Credence competitor. In addition, Tektronix may not knowingly sell components incorporating the Tektronix .
Rights to any other party. We and Tektronix have granted to each other a worldwide, perpetual, irrevocable, non-
exclusive, royalty free, fully-paid, sublicensable and transferable license to all improvements, enhancements,
modifications or derivative works created before August 1996, or the Improvements, of intellectual property that
was licensed or assigned pursuant to a Technology Agreement dated December 31, 1990, as amended on
August 12, 1993, including the Tektronix Rights, to make, use and sell ATE for testing ICs. Tektronix’s license
to the Improvements is subject to the same restrictions as its license to the Tektronix Rights.

We attempt to protect our intellectual property rights through patents, copyrights, trademarks and
maintenance of trade secrets and other measures. There can be no assurance that others will not independently
develop equivalent intellectual property or that we can meaningfully protect our intellectual property. There can
be no assurance that any patent we own will not be invalidated, circumvented or challenged, that the rights
granted thereunder will provide competitive advantages to us or that any of our pending patent applications will
be issued. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that others will not develop similar products, duplicate our
products or design around the patents owned by us. In addition, litigation has been and may continue to be
necessary to enforce our patents and other intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets, to determine
the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others, or to defend against claims of infringement or invalidity.
In addition, from time to time we encounter disputes over rights and obligations concerning intellectual property.
We cannot assume that we will prevail in any such intellectual property disputes. For additional information with
respect to our intellectual property, review the information set forth under “Risk Factors—If the protection of
proprietary rights is inadequate, our business could be harmed” and “—Qur business may be harmed if we are
found to infringe proprietary rights of others.”
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Manufacturing and Suppliers

Our manufacturing objective is to produce engineering validation test systems and ATE that conforms to our
customers’ requirements at the lowest commercially practical manufacturing cost. We rely on outside vendors to
manufacture certain components and subassemblies including several custom integrated circuits. We seek to
manage our inventory levels through agreements with both suppliers and subcontractors that provide just-in-time
delivery of these components and subassemblies. We assemble these components and subassemblies to create
finished testers in the configuration specified by our customers. In general, we use standard components and
prefabricated parts available from numerous suppliers. However, some components and subassemblies necessary
for the manufacture of our testers are obtained from a sole supplier or a limited group of suppliers and we are in
the process of qualifying a second source for some of those components. There can be no assurance that such
alternative source will be qualified or available. Our reliance on a sole or a limited group of suppliers and on
outside subcontractors involves certain risks, including a potential inability to obtain an adequate supply of
required components, and reduced control over pricing and timely delivery of components. See “Risk Factors—
There are limitations on our ability to find the supplies and services necessary to run our business.”

Competition

The ATE industry is intensely competitive. We face substantial competition throughout the world, primarily
from ATE manufacturers located in the United States, Europe and Japan, as well as from some of our customers.
Our competitors in the digital semiconductor testing market include:

o Advantest Corp.;
o Agilent Technologies, Inc.;
= Ando Electric Co. Ltd.;
o LTX Corp.;
o NPTest, Inc.; and
o Teradyne, Inc.
In the mixed-signal and analog sen;liconductor testing market our competitors include:
> Advantest Corp.;
o Agilent Technologies, Inc.;
o Eagle Test Systems, Inc.;
o LTX, Corp;
o NPTest, Inc.; and
o Teradyne, Inc.
In the non-volatile memory testing market our competitors include:
o Advantest, Corp.;
o Agilent, Inc.; and
o Nextest, Inc.
In the dynamic random access memory testing market our competitors include:
¢ Mosaid, Inc.
In the RF wireless device testing market our competitors include:
o Advantest, Corp.;
o Agilent, Inc.;
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e FEagle Test Systems, Inc.;

« LTX, Corp.;

¢ Rohde and Schwarz GmbH and Co. KG.;

¢ Roos Instruments, Inc.; and

e Teradyne, Inc.

The principal competitors in the software design to test market are:

¢ Simutest, Inc.;

¢ Test Insight Ltd.; and

= in-house applications developed by companies in the semiconductor industry.

The competitors in the BIST market place include:

* LogicVision, Inc.

In addition to the competitors listed above, we face competition from various start-up companies in our
markets. The principal elements of competition in our markets and the basis upon which our customers select
engineering validation testers and ATE include throughput, tools for reducing customer product time-to-market,
product performance and total cost of ownership. We believe that we compete favorably with respect to these
factors. See “Risk Factors—The ATE industry is intensely competitive which can adversely affect our revenue
growth.”

Employees

As of October 31, 2002, we had a total of 1,138 direct employees and 49 temporary or contract employees.
Our employees are highly skilled, and we believe our future results of operations will depend in large part on our
ability to attract and retain such employees. None of our employees are represented by a labor union, and we
have not experienced any work stoppages. We consider our employee relations to be good.
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RISK FACTORS

Cur operating results have fluctuated significantly which has and may comtinue to adversely affect our
stock price.
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A variety of factors affect our results of operations. The above graph illustrates that our quarterly net sales

and operating results have fluctuated significantly. We believe they will continue to fluctuate for several reasons,
including:

» worldwide economic conditions in the semiconductor industry in general and capital equipment industry
specifically;

manufacturing capacity and ability to volume produce systems, including our newest systems, and meet
customer requirements;

timing of new product announcements and new product releases by us or our competitors;
market acceptance of our new products and enhanced versions of existing products;

manufacturing inefficiencies associated with the start-up of our new products, changes in our pricing or
payment terms and cycles, and those of our competitors, customers and suppliers;

write-offs of excess and obsolete inventories and accounts receivable that are not collectible;
labor and materials supply constraints;

patterns of capital spending by our customers, delays, cancellations or reschedulings of customer orders
due to customer financial difficulties or otherwise;

changes in overhead absorption levels due to changes in the number of systems manufactured, the timing
and shipment of orders, availability of components including custom ICs, subassemblies and services,
customization and reconfiguration of our systems and product reliability;
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expenses associated with acquisitions and alliances;

operating expense reductions associated with cyclical industry downturns, including costs relating to
facilities consolidations and related expenses;

the proportion of our direct sales and sales through third parties, including distributors and OEMS, the
mix of products sold, the length of manufacturing and sales cycles, and product discounts;

natural disasters, political and economic instability, currency fluctuations, regulatory changes and
outbreaks of hostilities; and

our ability to attract and retain qualified employees in a competitive market.

We intend to introduce new products and product enhancements in the future, the timing and success of
which will affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our gross margins on system sales
have varied significantly and will continue to vary significantly based on a variety of factors including:

manufacturing inefficiencies;

long-term pricing concessions by us and our competitors and pricing by our suppliers;
hardware and software product sales mix;

inventory write-downs;

manufacturing volumes;

new product introductions;

product reliability;

absorption levels and the rate of capacity utilization;

customization and reconfiguration of systems;

international and domestic sales mix and field service margins; and

facility relocations and closures.

New and enhanced products typically have lower gross margins in the early stages of commercial
introduction and production. Although we have recorded and continue to record accounts receivable allowances,
product warranty costs, and deferred revenue, we cannot be certain that our estimates will be adequate.

We cannot forecast with any certainty the impact of these and other factors on our sales and operating
results in any future period. Results of operations in any period, therefore, should not be considered indicative of
the results to be expected for any future period. Because of this difficulty in predicting future performance, our
operating results have fallen and may continue to fall below the expectations of securities analysts or investors in
some future quarter or quarters. Cur failure to meet these expectations has adversely affected the market price of
our common stock and may continue to do so. In addition, our need for continued significant expenditures for
research and development, marketing and other expenses for new products, capital equipment purchases and
worldwide training and customer service and support will impact our sales and operations results in the future.
Other significant expenditures may make it difficult for us to reduce our significant fixed expenses in a particular
period if we do not meet our net sales goals for that period. These other expenditures include:

L)

o

@

research and development;

support costs for the distribution channels;

marketing and other expenses for new products;

capital equipment purchases and world-wide training; and

customer support and service.

As a result, we cannot be certain that we will be profitable in the future.
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The semiconductor industry has been cyclical.

Our revenue growth has been materially adversely affected by the cyclical downturn in the semiconductor
industry and its resulting impact upon the semiconductor equipment sector. There is uncertainty as to if and when
the next cyclical growth phase will occur. Our belief regarding the downturn is based on weakened order activity,
order cancellation activity, and customer-requested shipment delays from our existing backlog. This business
weakness is worldwide, but we see it'in particular with customers in Asia. Until such time as we return to a
growth period, we expect a continuing volatility in order activity. We anticipate revenue levels in the first quarter
ending January 31, 2003 to be materially below the levels of the fourth fiscal quarter of 2002 and may continue
to remain weak throughout fiscal 2003. Revenues may decline thereafter due to the uncertainty of a sustainable
recovery in the semiconductor and related capital equipment industry. As a result of the cyclical downturn, in
fiscal 2001 we reduced our worldwide workforce by approximately 23%, or more than 400 people. In fiscal 2002
we reduced our worldwide workforce by 21%, or about 245 people. We took charges related to these reductions
in force of approximately $5.7 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, and approximately $3.2 million
throughout fiscal 2001. Additionally, remaining employees were required to take time off in the second, third and
fourth quarters of fiscal 2001, as well as the first quarter of fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2003. Other initiatives,
including a temporary domestic and European pay cut, a four-day workweek for most manufacturing and some
operating employees, the consolidation and reorganization of certain functions and operations, and the
curtailment of discretionary expenses, were also implemented. If we contiriue to reduce our workforce or adopt
additional cost-saving measures, it may adversely impact our ablhty to respond rapidly to any renewed growth
opportunities in the future should they occur.

As a result of the rapid and steep decline in revenue during this latest downturn, we continue to monitor our
inventory levels in light of product development changes and a possible eventual upturn. We recorded a charge
of $9.4 million in the fourth fiscal quarter of 2002 for the write down of excess inventories. We may be required
to take additional charges for excess and obsolete inventory if this prolonged industry downturn causes further
reductions to our current inventory valuations, or changes our current product development plans.

Our business and results of operations depend largely upon the capital expenditures of manufacturers of
semiconductors and companies that specialize in contract packaging and/or testing of semiconductors. This
includes manufacturers and contractors that are opening new or expanding existing fabrication facilities or
upgrading existing equipment, which in turn depend upon the current and anticipated market demand for
semiconductors and products incorporating semiconductors. The semiconductor industry has been highly cyclical
with recurring periods of oversupply, which often has had a severe effect on the semiconductor industry’s
demand for test equipment, including the systems we manufacture and market. We believe that the markets for
newer generations of semiconductors will also be subject to similar fluctuations.

We have experienced shipment delays, delays in commitments and restructured purchase orders by
customers and we expect this activity to continue: Accordingly, we cannot be certain that we will be able to
achieve or maintain our current or prior level of sales or rate of growth. We anticipate that a significant portion of
new orders may depend upon demand from semiconductor device manufacturers building or expanding
fabrication facilities and new device testing requirements that are not addressable by currently installed test
equipment, and there can be no assurance that such demand will develop to a significant degree, or at all. In
addition, our business, financial condition or results of operations may continue to be materially adversely
affected by any factor materially adversely affecting the semiconductor industry in general or particular segments
within the semiconductor industry. For example, both the 1997/1998 Asian financial crisis and the current
economic downturn have contributed to widespread uncertainty and a slowdown in the semiconductor industry.
This slowdown in the semiconductor industry resulted in reduced spending for semiconductor capital equipment,
including ATE that we sell. This industry slowdown had, and similar slowdowns may in the future have, a
material adverse effect on our product backlog, balance sheet, financial condition and results of operations.
Therefore, there can be no assurance that our operating results will not be materially adversely affected if
downturns or slowdowns in the semiconductor industry occur again in the future.
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We have a limited backlog and obtain most of our net sales from a relatively few number of system sales
transactions, which can result in fluctuations of quarterly results.

Other than certain memory products and software products, for which the price range is typically below
$50,000, we obtain most of our net sales from the sale of a relatively few number of systems that typically range
in selling price from $0.2 million to $2.0 million. This has resulted and could continue to result in our net sales
and operating results for a particular period being significantly impacted by the timing of recognition of revenue
from a single transaction. Our net sales and operating results for a particular period could also be materially
adversely affected if an anticipated order from just one customer is not received in time to permit shipment
during that period. Backlog at the beginning of a quarter typically does not include all orders necessary to
achieve our sales objectives for that quarter. Orders in backlog are subject to cancellation, delay, deferral or
rescheduling by customers with limited or no penalties. In fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, we have experienced
customer-requested shipment delays and order cancellations, and we believe it is probable that orders will be
canceled in the future. Consequently, our quarterly net sales and operating results have in the past, and will in the
future, depend upon our obtaining orders for systems to be shipped in the same quarter in which the order is
received.

In the past, some of our customers have placed orders with us for more systems than they ultimately
required. We believe that in the future some of our customers may, from time to time, place orders with us for
more systems than they will ultimately require, or they will order a more rapid delivery than they will ultimately
require. For this reason, our backlog may include customer orders in excess of those that will actually be
delivered.

Furthermore, we generally ship products generating most of our net sales near the end of each quarter.
Accordingly, our failure to receive an anticipated order or a delay or rescheduling in a shipment near the end of a
particular period or a delay in receiving customer acceptance from a customer may cause net sales in a particular
period to fall significantly below expectations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations. The relatively long manufacturing cycle of many of our testers has
caused and could continue to cause future shipments of testers to be delayed from one quarter to the next.
Furthermore, as our competitors and we announce new products and technologies, customers may defer or cancel
purchases of our existing systems. We cannot forecast the impact of these and other factors on our sales and
operating results.

We may experience delays in development, introduction, production in volume, and recognition of revenue
from sales of our product,

‘We have in the past experienced significant delays in the introduction, volume production and sales of our
new systems and related feature enhancements. In the past, we experienced significant delays in the introduction
of our Octet, ValStar 2000 and Kalos series testers as well as certain enhancements to our other testers. The Octet
tester was first shipped in October 2002 and at this time there are a small number of systems in the field
undergoing evaluation by customers. No revenue has been recognized on the Octet product. These delays have
been primarily related to our inability to successfully complete product hardware and software engineering
within the time frame originally anticipated, including design errors and redesigns of 1Cs. As a result, some
customers have experienced significant delays in receiving and using our testers in production. In addition, under
our revenue recognition policy that is in accordance with SAB 101, we defer revenue for transactions that
involve newly introduced products or when customers specify acceptance criteria that cannot be demonstrated
prior to the shipment. This results in a delay in the recognition of revenue as compared to the historic norm of
generally recognizing revenue upon shipment. We have introduced several new systems and products during
fiscal 2002. Revenues from sales of those new systems and products may be deferred until the revenue
recognition requirements of our revenue recognition policy are satisfied. Delays in introducing a product or
delays in our ability to obtain customer acceptance, if they occur in the future, will delay the recognition of
revenue and gross profit by us. We cannot be certain that these or additional difficulties will not continue to arise
or that delays will not continue to materially adversely affect customer relationships and future sales. Moreover,
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we cannot be certain that we will not encounter these or other difficulties that could delay future introductions or
volume production or sales of our systems or enhancements and related software tools. In the past, we have
incurred and we may continue to incur substantial unanticipated costs to ensure the functionality and reliability of
our testers and to increase feature sets. If our systems continue to have reliability, quality or other problems, or
the market perceives our products to be feature deficient, we may continue to suffer reduced orders, higher
manufacturing costs, delays in collecting accounts receivable and higher service, support and warranty expenses,
and/or inventory write-offs, among other effects. Our failure to have a competitive tester and related software
tool‘sl available when required by a customer could make it substantially more difficult for us to sell testers to that
customer for a number of years. We believe that the continued acceptance, volume production, timely delivery
and customer satisfaction of our newer digital, mixed signal and non-volatile memory testers are of critical
importance to our future financial results. As a result, our inability to correct any technical, reliability, parts
shortages or other difficulties associated with our systems or to manufacture and ship the systems on a timely
basis to meet customer requirements could damage our relationships with current and prospective customers and
would continue to materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The ATE market is subject to rapid technological change.

Our ability to compete in the ATE market depends upon our ability to successfully develop and introduce
new hardware and software products and enhancements and related software tools with greater features on a
timely and cost-effective basis, including products under development internally as well as products obtained in
acquisitions. Our customers require testers and software products with additional features and higher
performance and other capabilities. Therefore, it is necessary for us to enhance the performance and other
capabilities of our existing systems and software products and related software tools, or develop new systems and
software products and related software tools, to adequately address these requirements. Any success we may
have in developing new and enhanced systems and software products and new features to our existing systems
and software products will depend upon a variety of factors, including:

o product selection;

e timely and efficient completion of product design;

o implementation of manufacturing and assembly proceéses;
e Asuccessful coding and debﬁgging of software;

° 'product performance;

o reliability in the field;-and

o effective worldwide sales and marketing.

Because we must make new product development commitments well in advance of sales, new product
decisions must anticipate both future demand and the availability of technology to satisfy that demand. We
cannot be certain that we will be successful in selecting, developing, manufacturing and marketing new hardware
and software products or enhancements and related software tools. Our inability to introduce new products and
related software tools that contribute significantly to net sales, gross margins and net income would have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. New product or technology
introductions by our competitors could cause a decline in sales or loss of market acceptance of our existing
products. If we introduce new products, existing customers may curtail purchases of the older products and delay
new product purchases. In addition, weakness in IC demand may cause integrated device manufacturers, or
IDMs, to curtail or discontinue the outsourcing of testing to test house, relying instead on in-house testing.
Because less of our market share is from the IDMs, this trend may reduce the demand for our products. Any
decline in demand for our hardware or software products could have a materially adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.
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Over the last several years we have experienced significant fluctuations in our operating results due in
part to the semiconductor business cycles and an increased scale of operations.

In fiscal 2002, our net sales fell 45.6% from those recorded in fiscal 2001 as the semiconductor industry
continued in a steep cyclical downturn. In fiscal 2002, we generated revenue of $34.6 million in the first quarter
and $43.2 million in the fourth quarter an increase of 24.7%. In fiscal 2001, we generated revenue of
$136.3 million in the first quarter and $37.0 million in the fourth quarter, a decrease of 72.9%. In fiscal 2000, we
generated revenue of $136.3 million in the first quarter and $221.7 million in the fourth quarter, an increase of
62.7%. Since 1993, except for the current cost-cutting efforts and those during fiscal 1998 and the first half of
fiscal 1999, we have overall significantly increased the scale of our operations to support periods of generally
increased sales levels and expanded product offerings and have expanded operations to address critical
infrastructure and other requirements, including the hiring of additional personnel, significant investments in
research and development to support product development, acquisition of the new facilities in Oregon and
California, further investments in our ERP system and numerous acquisitions. These fluctuations in our sales and
operations have placed and are continuing to place a considerable strain on our management, financial,
manufacturing and other resources. In order to effectively deal with the changes brought on by the cyclical nature
of the industry, we have been required to implement and improve a variety of highly flexible operating, financial
and other systems, procedures and controls capable of expanding, or contracting consistent with our business.
However, we cannot be certain that any existing or new systems, procedures or controls, including our ERP
system, will be adequate to support fluctuations in our operations or that our systems, procedures and controls
will be cost-effective or timely. Any failure to implement, improve and expand or contract such systems,
procedures and controls efficiently and at a pace consistent with our business could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We are continuing to invest significant resources in the expansion of our product lines.

We are currently devoting and intend to continue to devote significant resources to the development,
production and commercialization of new products and technologies. During fiscal 2001 we primarily introduced
products that are either evolutions or derivatives of existing products. During fiscal 2002 we introduced several
products that are evolutions or derivatives of existing products as well as products that are largely new. Under
our revenue recognition policy adopted in accordance with SAB 101, we defer revenue for transactions that
involve newly introduced products or when customers specify acceptance criteria that cannot be demonstrated
prior to the shipment. This results in a delay in the recognition of revenue as compared to the historic norm of
recognizing revenue upon shipment. Product introduction delays, if they occur in the future, will delay the
recognition of revenue and gross profit by us. We invested and continue to invest significant resources in plant
and equipment, purchased and leased facilities, inventory, personnel and other costs to begin or prepare to
increase production of these products. A significant portion of these investments will provide the marketing,
administration and after-sales service and support required for these new hardware and software products.
Accordingly, we cannot be certain that gross profit margin and inventory levels will not continue to be materially
adversely affected by delays in new product introductions or start-up costs associated with the initial production
and installation of these new product lines. We also cannot be certain that we can manufacture these systems per
the time and quantity required by our customers. The start-up costs include additional manufacturing overhead,
additional inventory and warranty reserve requirements and the enhancement of after-sales service and support
organizations. In addition, the increases in inventory on hand for new product development and customer support
requirements have increased and will continue to increase the risk of significant inventory write-offs. We cannot
be certain that our net sales will increase or remain at historical levels or that any new products will be
successfully commercialized or contribute to revenue growth or that any of our additional costs will be covered.

The ATE industry is intensely competitive which can adversely affect our revenue growth.

With the substantial investment required to develop test application software and interfaces, we believe that
once a semiconductor manufacturer has selected a particular ATE vendor’s tester, the manufacturer is likely to
use that tester for a majority of its testing requirements for the market life of that semiconductor and, to the
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extent possible, subsequent generations of similar products. As a result, once an ATE customer chooses a system
for the testing of a particular device, it is difficult for competing vendors to achieve significant ATE sales to such
customer for similar use. Our inability to penetrate any large ATE customer or achieve significant sales to any
ATE customer could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We face substantial competition from ATE manufacturers throughout the world, as well as several of our
customers. We do not currently compete in the production testing of high-end microprocessors, or DRAMs.
Moreover, a substantial portion of our net sales is derived from sales of mixed-signal testers. Many competitors
have substantially greater financial and other resources with which to pursue engineering, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of their products. Certain competitors have introduced or announced new products
with certain performance or price characteristics equal or superior to products we currently offer. These
competitors have introduced products that compete directly against our products. We believe that if the ATE
industry continues to consolidate through strategic alliances or acquisitions, we will continue to face significant
additional competition from larger competitors that may offer product lines and services more complete than
ours. Our competitors are continuing to improve the performance of their current products and to introduce new
products, enhancements and new technologies that provide improved cost of ownership and performance
characteristics. New product introductions by our competitors could cause a decline in our sales or loss of market
acceptance of our existing products.

Moreover, our business, financial condition or results of operations could continue to be materially
adversely affected by increased competitive pressure and continued intense price-based competition. We have
experienced and continue to experience significant price competition in the sale of our products. In addition,
pricing pressures typically become more intense at the end of a product’s life cycle and as competitors introduce
more technologically advanced products. We believe that, to be competitive, we must continue to expend
significant financial resources in order to, among other things, invest in new product development and
enhancements and to maintain customer service and support centers worldwide. We cannot be certain that we
will be able to compete successfully in the future.

We may net be able to deliver custom hardware options and software applications to satisfy specific
customer needs in a timely manner.

We must develop and deliver customized hardware and software to meet our customers’ specific test
requirements. The market requires us to manufacture these systems on a timely basis. Our test equipment may
fail to meet our customers’ technical or cost requirements and may be replaced by competitive equipment or an
alternative technology solution. Our inability to meet such hardware and software requirements could impact our
ability to recognize revenue on the related equipment. Our inability to provide a test system that meets requested
performance criteria when required by a device manufacturer would severely damage our reputation with that
customer. This loss of reputation may make it substantially more difficult for us to sell test systems to that
manufacturer for a number of years.

We rely on Spirox Corporation and customers in Taiwan for a significant portion of our revenues and the
termination of this distribution relationship would materially adversely affect our business.

Spirox Corporation, a distributor in Taiwan that sells to end-user customers in Taiwan and China, accounted
for approximately 20%, 13% and 42% of our net sales in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Our
agreement with Spirox can be terminated for any reason on 180 days prior written notice. Consequently, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected by the loss of or any
reduction in orders by Spirox, any termination of the Spirox relationship, or any other significant customer,
including the potential for reductions in orders by assembly and tester service companies which that customer
may utilize or reductions due to continuing or other technical, manufacturing or reliability problems with our
products or continued slow-downs in the semiconductor industry or in other industries that manufacture products
utilizing semiconductors. Qur ability to maintain or increase sales levels will depend upon:

° our ability to obtain orders from existing and new customers;
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e our ability to manufacture systems on a timely and cost-effective basis;

e our ability to timely complete the development of our new hardware and software products;
e our customers’ financial condition and success;

o general economic conditions; and

< our ability to meet increasingly stringent customer performance and other requirements and shipment
delivery dates.

Our long and variable sales cycie depends upen factors outside of our control and could cause us to expend
significant time and resources prior to earning associated revenues.

Sales of our systems depend in part upon the decision of semiconductor manufacturers to develop and
manufacture new semiconductor devices or to increase manufacturing capacity. As a result, sales of our products
are subject to a variety of factors we cannot control. The decision to purchase our products generally involves a
significant commitment of capital, with the attendant delays frequently associated with significant capital
expenditures. For these and other reasons, our systems have lengthy sales cycles during which we may expend
substantial funds and management effort to secure a sale, subjecting us to a number of significant risks. We
cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain or increase net sales in the future or that we will be able to
retain existing customers or attract new ones.

When we engage in acquisitions, we will incur a variety of costs, and the anticipated benefits of the
acquisitions may never be realized.

We have developed in significant part through mergers and acquisitions of other companies and businesses.
We intend in the future to pursue additional acquisitions of complementary product lines, technologies and
businesses. We may have to issue debt or equity securities to pay for future acquisitions, which could be dilutive
to then current stockholders. We have also incurred and may continue to incur certain liabilities or other expenses
in connection with acquisitions, which have and could continue to materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, acquisitions involve numerous other risks, including:

o difficulties assimilating the domestic and international operations, personnel, technologies, sales channels
and products of the acquired companies;

o diversion of our management’s attention from other business concerns;

* increased complexity and costs associated with international and domestic internal management
structures;

o risks of entering markets in which we have no or limited experience; and
o the potential loss of key employees of the acquired companies.

For these reasons, we cannot be certain what effect future acquisitions may have on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Changes to financial accounting standards may affect our reported results of operations.

We prepare our financial statements to conform to generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP.
GAAP are subject to interpretation by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the SEC and
various bodies formed to interpret and create appropriate accounting policies. A change in those policies can
have a significant effect on our reported results and may even affect our reporting of transactions completed
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before a change is announced. Accounting rules affecting many aspects of our business, including rules relating
to purchase and pooling-of-interests accounting for business combinations, asset impairment, revenue
recognition, employee stock purchase plans and stock option grants have recently been revised or are currently
under review. Changes to those rules or current interpretation of those rules may have a material adverse effect
on our reported financial results or on the way we conduct our business. For example, in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2001, we implemented SAB 101. Adoption of SAB 101 required us to restate our quarterly results for the
seven fiscal quarters ended July 31, 2001 (see Notes 1 and 13 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion). In addition, the preparation of our
financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires that we make estimates and assumptions that affect the
recorded amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of those assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the recorded amounts of expenses during the reporting period. A change in the facts and
circumstances surrounding those estimates could result in a change to our estimates and could impact our future
operating resulits.

Our executive officers and certain key personnel are critical to our business.

Our future operating results depend substantially upon the continued service of our executive officers and
key personnel, none of whom are bound by an employment or non-competition agreement. Our future operating
results also depend in significant part upon our ability to attract and retain qualified management, manufacturing,
technical, engineering, marketing, sales and support personnel. Competition for qualified personnel is intense,
and we cannot ensure success in attracting or retaining qualified personnel. There may be only a limited number
of persons with the requisite skills to serve in these positions and it may be increasingly difficult for us to hire
personnel over time. Our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely
affected by the loss of any of our key employees, by the failure of any key employee to perform in his or her
current position, or by our inability to attract and retain skilled employees.

QOur international business exposes us to additienal risks.

International sales accounted for approximately 55%, 61% and 74% of our total net sales for the fiscal 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. We anticipate that international sales will continue to account for a significant
portion of our total net sales in the foreseeable future. These international sales will continue to be subject to
certain risks, including:

° changes in regulatory requirements;

e tariffs and other barriers;

o political and economic instability;

° an outbreak of hostilities in markets where we sell our products including Korea and Israel;
° integration and management of foreign operations of acquired businesses;

o foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

o difficulties with distributors, joint venture partners, original equipment manufacturers, foreign
subsidiaries and branch operations;

= potentially adverse tax consequences; and

e the possibility of difficulty in accounts receivable collection.

We are also subject to the risks associated with the imposition of domestic and foreign legislation and
regulations relating to the import or export of semiconductor equipment and software products. We cannot
predict whether the import and export of our products will be subject to quotas, duties, taxes or other charges or

restrictions imposed by the United States or any other country in the future. Any of these factors or the adoption
of restrictive policies could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
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operations. Net sales to the Asia-Pacific region accounted for approximately 42%, 38% and 66% of our total net
sales in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and thus demand for our products is subject to the risk of
economic instability in that region and could continue to be materially adversely affected. Countries in the
Asia-Pacific region, including Korea and Japan, have experienced weaknesses in their currency, banking and
equity markets in the recent past. These weaknesses could continue to adversely affect demand for our products,
the availability and supply of our product components and our consolidated results of operations. The 1997/1998
Asian financial crisis contributed to widespread uncertainty and a slowdown in the semiconductor industry. This
slowdown resulted in reduced spending on semiconductor capital equipment, including ATE, and has had, and
may in the future have, a material adverse effect on our product backlog, balance sheet and results of operations.
Further, many of our customers in the Asia-Pacific region built up capacity in ATE during fiscal 2000 in
anticipation of a steep ramp up in wafer fabrication. However, this steep ramp up in output has not fully
materialized leaving some customers with excess capacity.

Two end-user customers headquartered in Europe accounted for approximately 13% and 11% respectively,
of our net sales in fiscal 2001 and one end-user customer headquartered in Taiwan accounted for 17% of our net
sales in fiscal 2000.

In addition, one of our major distributors, Spirox Corporation, is a Taiwan-based company. This subjects a
significant portion of our receivables and future revenues to the risks associated with doing business in a foreign
country, including political and economic instability, currency exchange rate fluctuations and regulatory changes.
Disruption of business in Asia caused by the previously mentioned factors could continue to have a material
impact on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

If the protection of proprietary rights is inadequate, our business could be harmed.

We attempt to protect our intellectual property rights through patents, copyrights, trademarks, maintenance
of trade secrets and other measures, including entering into confidentiality agreements. However, we cannot be
certain that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent intellectual property or that we can
meaningfully protect our intellectual property. Nor can we be certain that our patents will not be invalidated,
deemed unenforceable, circumvented or challenged, or that the rights granted thereunder will provide us with
competitive advantages, or that any of our pending or future patent applications will be issued with claims of the
scope we seek, if at all. Furthermore, we cannot be certain that others will not develop similar products, duplicate
our products or design around our patents, or that foreign intellectual property laws, or agreements into which we
have entered will protect our intellectual property rights. Inability or failure to protect our intellectual property
rights could have a material adverse effect upon our business, financial condition and results of operations. In
addition, from time to time we encounter disputes over rights and obligations concerning intellectual property.
We cannot assume that we will prevail in any such intellectual property disputes. We have been involved in
extensive, expensive and time-consuming reviews of, and litigation concerning, patent infringement claims.

Our business may be harmed if we are found to infringe proprietary rights of others.

We have at times been notified that we may be infringing intellectual property rights of third parties and we
have litigated patent infringement claims in the past. We expect to continue to receive notice of such claims in
the future. In July 1998, inTEST IP Corp., with its patent licensee inTEST Corporation, or inTEST, alleged in
writing that certain of our products are infringing a patent held by inTEST. On December 15, 2000, inTEST filed
a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware against us, alleging infringement of inTEST
U.S. patent number 4,589,815 and seeking damages and injunctive relief. In April 2001, we were served with the
complaint and since that date discovery has commenced. The court has set the trial for this action for
November 1%, 2003. We may also be obligated to other third parties relating to this allegation. We cannot be
certain of the success in defending this patent infringement claim or claims for indemnification resulting from
infringement claims.
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Some of our customers have received notices from Mr. Jerome Lemelson alleging that the manufacture of
semiconductor products and/or the equipment used to manufacture semiconductor products infringes certain
patents issued to Mr. Lemelson. We have been notified by customers that we may be obligated to defend or settle
claims that our products infringe Mr. Lemelson’s patents, and that if it is determined that the customers infringe
Mr. Lemelson’s patents, that customers intend to seek indemnification from us for damages and other related
expenses.

We cannot be certain of success in defending current or future patent or other infringement claims or claims
for indemnification resulting from infringement claims. Our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected if we must pay damages to a third party or suffer an injunction
or if we expend significant amounts in defending any such action, regardless of the outcome. With respect to any
claims, we may seek to obtain a license under the third party’s intellectual property rights. We cannot be certain,
however, that the third party will grant us a license on reasonable terms or at all. We could decide; in the '
alternative, to continue litigating such claims. Litigation has been and could continue to be extremely expensive
and time consuming, and could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of
operations, regardless of the outcome.

There are limitations on our ability to find the supplies and services necessary te run our business.

We obtain certain components, subassemblies and services necessary for the manufacture of our testers
from a limited group of suppliers. We do not maintain long-term supply agreements with most of our vendors
and we purchase most of our components and subassemblies through individual purchase orders. The
manufacture of certain of our components and subassemblies is an extremely complex process. We also rely on
outside vendors to manufacture certain components and subassemblies and to provide certain services. We have
experienced and continue to experience significant reliability, quality and timeliness problems with several
critical components including certain custom integrated circuits. We cannot be certain that these or other
problems will not continue to occur in the future with our suppliers or outside subcontractors. Qur reliance on a
limited group of suppliers and on outside subcontractors involves several risks, including an inability to obtain an
adequate supply of required components, subassemblies and services and reduced control over the price, timely
delivery, reliability and quality of components, subassemblies and services. Shortages, delays, disruptions or
terminations of the sources for these components and subassemblies have delayed and could continue to delay
shipments of our systems and new products and could continue to have a material adverse effect on our business.
Our continuing inability to obtain adequate yields or timely deliveries or any other circumstance that would
require us to seek alternative sources of supply or to manufacture such components internally could also have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. Such delays, shortages and
disruptions would also damage relationships with current and prospective customers and have and could continue
to allow competitors to penetrate our customer accounts. We cannot be certain that our internal manufacturing
capacity or that of our suppliers and subcontractors will be sufficient to meet customer requirements.

A variety of factors may cause the price of our stock to be volatile.

In recent years, the stock market in general, and the market for shares of high-tech companies in particular,
including ours, have experienced extreme price fluctuations, which have often been unrelated to the operating
performance of affected companies. For example, for the period November 1, 2001 through January 3, 2003 the
price of our common stock has ranged from a closing high of $24.64 to a closing low of $6.30. In fiscal 2001, the
price of our common stock ranged from a closing high of $29.50 to a closing low of $11.26. The market price of
our common stock is likely to continue to fluctuate significantly in the future, including fluctuations unrelated to
our performance. We believe that fluctuations of our stock price may be caused by a variety of factors, including:

» announcements of developments related to our business;

o fluctuations in our financial results;
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< general conditions in the stock market or around the world, terrorism, or developments in the
semiconductor and capital equipment industry and the general economy;

o sales or purchases of our common stock in the marketplace;

 announcements of our technological innovations or new products or enhancements or those of our
competitors;

o developments in patents or other intellectual property rights;

e developments in our relationships with customers and suppliers;

]

e ashortfall or changes in revenue, gross margins or earnings or other financial results from analysts
expectations or an outbreak of hostilities or natural disasters; or

e acquisition or merger activity and the success in implementing such acquisitions or other business
combinations.

Terrorist attacks, terrorist threats, geopolitical instability and government responses thereto, may
negatively impact all aspects of our operations, revenues, costs and stock price.

The terrorist attacks in September 2001 in the United States and the U.S. retaliation for these attacks and the
resulting decline in consumer confidence has had a substantial adverse impact on the economy. If consumer
confidence does not recover, our revenues and profitability may be adversely impacted in fiscal 2003 and
beyond.

In addition, any similar future events may disrupt our operations or those of our customers and suppliers.
Our markets currently include Korea and Israel, which are experiencing instability. In addition, these events have
had and may continue to have an adverse impact on the U.S. and world economy in general and consumer
confidence and spending in particular, which could harm our sales. Any of these events could increase volatility
in the U.S. and world financial markets, which could harm our stock price and may limit the capital resources
available to us and our customers or suppliers. This could have a significant impact on our operating results,
revenues and costs and may result in increased volatility in the market price of our common stock.

We are subject to anti-takeover provisions that could delay or prevent an acquisition of our company.

Provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, shareholders rights plan, equity
incentive plans, bylaws and Delaware law may discourage transactions involving a change in corporate control.
In addition to the foregoing, our classified board of directors, the stockholdings of our officers, directors and
persons or entities that may be deemed affiliates, our shareholder rights plan and the ability of our board of
directors to issue preferred stock without further stockholder approval could have the effect of delaying,
deferring or preventing a third party to acquire us and may adversely affect the voting and other rights of holders
of our common stock.

Recently enacted and proposed changes in securities laws and regulations are likely to increase our costs.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that became law in July 2002 requires changes in some of our corporate
governance and securities disclosure or compliance practices. That Act also requires the SEC to promulgate new
rules on a variety of subjects, in addition to rule proposals already made, and Nasdaq has proposed revisions to
its requirements for companies that are Nasdag-listed. We expect these developments to increase our legal
compliance costs, and to make some activities more difficult, such as stockholder approval of new option plans.
We expect these developments to make it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer
liability insurance, and we may be required to accept reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to
obtain coverage. These developments could make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members
of our board of directors, or qualified executive officers. We are presently evaluating and monitoring regulatory
developments and cannot estimate the timing or magnitude of additional costs we may incur as a result.
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ltem 2. Properties

We maintain our corporate headquarters in Fremont, California. This leased facility, comprised of four
buildings totaling 165,600 square feet, contains corporate administration, sales, marketing, applications,
engineering, local customer support and memory products manufacturing. Approximately 26,000 square feet of
one of the buildings has been subleased until February 2005 when the lease on this facility expires.

Our digital and mixed signal manufacturing facilities, as well as additional administration, marketing,
applications, engineering and customer support functions, are located in a 180,000 square foot facility, comprised
of two buildings in Hillsboro, Oregon. This property is on approximately twenty-nine acres of land and was
purchased during fiscal 2000. In addition, the Company owns approximately eighteen acres of land less than a
mile from the Hillsboro facility. ‘ ‘

During August 2002, we acquired two office and manufacturing buildings in Milpitas, California for
approximately $21.8 million. The facility comprises 180,000 square feet on approximately 14 acres of land. We
intend to relocate our corporate headquarters to this facility during fiscal 2003.

The IMS facilities, which also house our software business, are located in a 90,000 square foot facility in
Beaverton, Oregon. The lease on these buildings expires in February 2004. We began taking steps in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2002 to close the Beaverton facility and relocate those employees to our facilities in Hillsboro,
Oregon. We maintain various remote sales and service offices in the United States including approximately
27,000 square feet in Austin, Texas and 26,000 square feet in Colorado Springs, Colorado. We also lease various
smaller facilities worldwide for our sales offices and an IMS European manufacturing and design center.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In July 1998, we received a written allegation from inTEST IP Corp., with its patent licensee inTEST
Corporation, or inTEST, that we were infringing on a patent held by inTEST. On December 15, 2000, inTEST
filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware against us, alleging infringement of
inTEST U.S. patent number 4,589,815 and seeking damages and injunctive relief. In April 2001, we were served
with the complaint and since that date discovery has commenced. The court has set the trial for this action for
November 11, 2003. In addition to direct costs and diversion of resources which may result, we may be obligated
to indemnify third parties for costs related to this allegation.

In April 2002, Reptron Electronics, Inc. a supplier of certain electronic components to us, filed a complaint
in the U.S. District Court for the District of Oregon, alleging that we had breached a contract to purchase certain
components ordered from Reptron during 2000. The complaint seeks damages of approximately $3.9 million.
Discovery has commenced in this action.

We currently believe that the ultimate amount of liability, if any, for any pending claims of any type (either
alone or combined) will not materially affect our financial position, results of operations or liquidity. However,
the ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertain, and either unfavorable or favorable outcomes could have a
material negative impact. Regardless of outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on Credence because of
defense costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securityholders

None.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES

Our executive officers and key employees and their ages and positions as of December 31, 2002, are as
follows:

Name Age . Position

Executive Officers

Dr. Graham J. Siddall .............. 56  Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
David A. Ranhoff ................. 47  President and Chief Operating Officer

JohnR. Detwiler .................. 42  Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Secretary
FredHall ........... ... .. ....... 53  Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Key Employees :

CarlosLazalde .................... 45 Senior Vice President, Mobile Products Group
Gary Smith ...................... 56  Senior Vice President, SoC Products Group
BartFreedman .................... 45  Senior Vice President, Worldwide Field Operations
GlynDavies ...................... 40  Vice President, Corporate Marketing

Byron Milstead ................... 46 Vice President and General Counsel

SheilaFranzen .................... 32 Vice President, Information Technology
BrianSereda ..................... 42  Vice President Finance and Corporate Controller -
Wally Karstad .................... 56  Vice President, Customer Services Division

Earl Biddlecome .................. 45  Vice President, Supply Line Management
W.BarryBaril ............ ..o . 51 Corporate Chief Technology Officer

Dr. Graham J. Siddall has served as the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer since August
2001 and prior to that was our President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director from July 1999 to August 2001.
His current term as a Director ends in 2002. Dr. Siddall joined us from KLLA-Tencor where he had been
Executive Vice President of the Wafer Inspection Group from May 1997 to May 1999. From December 1995
until May 1997, he served as Executive Vice President and chief operating officer of Tencor Instruments, Inc.
Previously Dr. Siddall served as Senior Vice President for the Tencor Wafer Inspection Division from November
1994 to December 1995. He joined Tencor as a vice president in 1988. Prior to joining Tencor, Dr. Siddalt served
in a number of key roles at GCA Corporation, Hewlett Packard Laboratories and Rank Taylor Hobson.

David A. Ranhoff has served as President and Chief Operating Officer since August 2001 and prior to that
he was our Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer since November 1999. Mr. Ranhoff was
Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing from January 1997 to November 1999 and was named to the
Office of the President from December 1998 until July 1999. Mr. Ranhoff served as Senior Vice President Sales
and Marketing from July 1996 to January 1997, as Senior Vice President, Sales, Marketing and Service from July
1995 to June 1996, as Senior Vice President, Sales and Service from August 1993 to July 1995 and as Vice
President, Sales from January 1993 to August 1993. He served as Vice President, European Operations from July
1990 to December 1992. From March 1988 to June 1990, Mr. Ranhoff served as Managing Director of European
Operations of the Company and as National Sales Manager from July 1985 to March 1988. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Ranhoff served for eight years in various sales and management positions for GenRad, Inc.

John R. Detwiler has served as our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary since
February 2001. Prior to that he was interim Chief Financial Officer and Secretary from December 2000 to
February 2001. Prior to that he served as Vice President, Corporate Controller from April 1999 to December
2000. Mr. Detwiler joined us from Silicon Wireless, Ltd., a start-up in the wireless infrastructure products
business, where he was the Vice President of Finance from April 1998 to March 1999. From August 1992 to
March 1998, Mr. Detwiler was at Madge Networks N.V., a developer and manufacturer of LAN and WAN
equipment, where he was the Senior Director of Finance. Prior to Madge, Mr. Detwiler held positions of
increasing responsibility in the audit and consulting practices of Price Waterhouse LLP in Denver Colorado,
Saudi Arabia and London.
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Fred Hall has served as Senior Vice President, Human Resources since October 2001. Prior to that he was
the Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of IMS from 1998 to October 2001. Mr. Hall was Vice
President, Finance and CFO of Naiad Technologies, Inc., a biotechnology start-up company from 1997 until
joining IMS in 1998. From October 1994 until 1997, Mr. Hall served as Vice President, CFO, Treasurer and
Assistant Secretary for CFI ProServices, Inc., a provider of integrated, PC-based software for financial
institutions. From June 1992 until October 1994, Mr. Hall served as Vice President, Finance and CFO, Secretary
and Treasurer of Itronix Corporation, a manufacturer of hand held computers.

Carlos Lazalde has served as Senior Vice President, Mobile Products Group, or MPG since August 2002.
Mr. Lazalde joined us in July 2002 as the Vice President, General Manager of the Memory Products Division, or
MPD. Prior to joining us, Mr. Lazalde held a variety of senior level positions, including President of the
Automatic Test Equipment Division of Schlumberger, currently NP Test. Mr. Lazalde has over 23 years of
experience in the semiconductor equipment industry.

Gary Smith has served as Senior Vice President of the SoC Products Group since August 2002. Prior to that
Mr. Smith was the Vice President & GM, of the Industrial, Communications and Entertainment Test Division
since April 2001. Prior to this position, Mr. Smith was the Vice President of the Low Cost Performance Line
since December 1998. Prior to that Mr. Smith was Marketing Director for the ValStar and SC Series products
from February 1996 to December 1998. Prior to joining Credence, from September 1985 to February 1996
Mr. Smith has held various senior management positions in sales, marketing, and operations at Schlumberger
Technologies, Inc.

Bart Freedman has served as Senior Vice President, Worldwide Field Operations since August 2001 and
prior to that was the Vice President, Worldwide Field Operations from January 2000 to August 2001. From
October 1996 to January 2000, he was our Vice President of Asian Operations. From 1994 to 1996,

Mr. Freedman served as Vice President of North American Sales for Schlumberger. From 1985 to 1994,

Mr. Freedman held a variety of senior level positions at Tektronix, Inc., including U.S. Regional Sales Manager
for the Semiconductor Test Systems Division that we bought in December 1990. From 1980 through 1985,

Mr. Freedman was a design engineer and applications manager for Teradyne, Inc.

Glyn Davies has served as Vice President, Corporate Marketing since joining the Company in October 2000.
Prior to joining Credence, Mr. Davies held various roles through a 10-year career at KLA-Tencor, most recently
serving as the Senior Director of Business Development in the Yield Management Software Division. Prior to
joining KLA-Tencor, Mr. Davies held various marketing and applications engineering positions including
marketing manger at Optical Specialties, Inc. and product manager at Cambridge Instruments. Mr. Davies has
over 16 years of experience in the semiconductor equipment industry.

Byron Milstead has served as Vice President and General Counsel since November 2000. Prior to that
Mr. Milstead was a partner with the Portland Oregon law firm of Ater Wynne LLP. Prior to joining Ater Wynne
LLP in 1996, Mr. Milstead was an associate and partner in the Portland Oregon office of Bogle & Gates PLLC.
Mr. Milstead has practiced law since 1982.

Sheila Franzen has served as Vice President, Information Technology since July 2001. Prior to that,
M:s. Franzen was our Director of the Enterprise Applications department at Credence. From 1997 through 2000,
M:s. Franzen worked for Nike, Inc. and held various management positions, most recently the Global Apparel
Manufacturing 1T Manager. From 1992 through 1997, Ms. Franzen held positions of increasing responsibility in
application development and project management at Hewlett-Packard Company.

Brian Sereda has served as Vice President, Corporate Controller since April 2002. From 2001 to 2002,
Mr. Sereda was Treasurer for Handspring, Inc. From 1999 10 2001, Mr. Sereda served as Treasurer for Sygen plc.
From 1993 through 1998 Mr. Sereda worked for Lam Research Corporation and held various positions of
increasing responsibility including Assistant Treasurer.
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Wally Karstad has served as the Vice President of the Customer Services Division since February 2002.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Karstad was the Vice President of the Customer Service Division at Integrated
Measurement Systems, Inc. from March 2001. Prior to this position, Mr. Karstad was the Customer Service
Operations Manager at Electro Scientific Industries, Inc. from November 1999. From December 1975 to
September 1999 Mr. Karstad held various customer service positions of increasing responsibility at Tektronix,
Inc.

Earl Biddlecome has served as Vice President of Supply Line Management since joining Credence in June
2001. Prior to joining Credence, Mr. Biddlecome was the North America Manufacturing Operations Manager of
the Business Computer Organization with Hewlett Packard from July 1998. From June 1987 to July 1998
Mr. Biddlecome was General Manager of World Wide Operations for Unisys, NT Products Group. From July
1985 to June 1987 Mr. Biddlecome was Production Manager for Schlumberger. Prior to this position, he held
various manufacturing positions of increasing responsibility at General Electric Corporation.

W. Barry Baril has served as the Corporate Chief Technology Officer since August 2001. Prior to that
Mr. Baril was the Chief Technology Officer of IMS from 1998 to August 2001. Mr. Baril is a founder of that

company and had been the Vice President of Engineering since the company’s inception in 1983.

Officers serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors, until their successors are appointed. There are no
family relationships among our executive officers or directors.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol CMOS. High and low closing
stock prices for the last two fiscal years were:

. 2002 2001
Quarter Ended High Low High Low
January 31 .. ... $21.14 $15.18 $30.88 $15.50
April 30 .. 2464 1401 2750 17.13
July 31 o 2209 11.85 2673 19.24
October 31 . ... 14.15 630 2195 1095

There were approximately 291 stockholders of record at December 27, 2002. To date, we have not declared
or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We do not anticipate paying any dividends on our common
stock in the foreseeable future.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial
statements and the related notes. The selected consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended
October 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of October 31, 2001 and
2002, are derived from, and are qualified by reference to, the audited consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The historical financial information for all periods includes the
operations of Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc., which we acquired in August 2001. The transaction was
accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method. The selected consolidated statement of operations data for the
fiscal years ending prior to October 31, 2000, and the selected consolidated balance sheet data prior to October 31,
2001, are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements that are not included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. The historical results presented below are not necessarily indicative of future results.

Year Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Netsales ..........ooo i, $ 164,209 $ 301,718 $757,351 $253,253 $253,500
Operating income (loss) . ................. (173,194) (172,942) 225,550 3,361  (47,159)
Income (loss) before taxes .. ............... (163,632) (155,587) 241,277 4,456  (45,097)

Net income (loss) before extraordinary items ..  (170,859) (98,682) 152,035 3,126 (29,613)
Net income (loss) before cumulative effect of

accounting change (@) .................. (170,481)  (98,676) 152,035 4,772 (29,613)
Netincome (1osS) . ....... ..o, (170,481)  (98,676) 120,510 4,772 (29,613)
Net income (loss) per basic share . .......... $ @8 $ (165 % 218 $ 010 $ (059
Net income (loss) per diluted share . ......... $ Q281D $ (165 % 200 $ 010 $ (059

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital .. .......... ... ... ..., $ 234,050 $ 323,946 $426,515 $188,954 $220,014
Total @ssets ...t 582,249 757,419 983,437 428,799 369,603
Long-termdebt ............... ... ... . ... —_— — — 96,610 115,363
Retained earnings ....................... (71,728) 98,752 197,428 76,919 72,147
Stockholders’ equity ..................... 519,237 680,940 767,875 243228 203,559

(a) Effective November 1, 1999, the Company changed its method of accounting for systems revenue based on
guidance provided in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements”, or SAB 101. The restatement for SAB 101 has been reflected in the above table for fiscal years
2000 and 2001.
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Quarterly 2002
2002 Quarter Ended
Jamuary 31,  April 30, July 31, October 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

(unaudited) .
Nt SaleS .o i e $ 34,627 $38,675 $47,722 § 43,185
GroSSMargin .. ..coit ittt et et 13,161 14,880 19,212 4,810
Research and development . . [ 20,492 20,038 22,179 22,646
Selling, general and administrative ........................ 21,649 22,448 23,544 22,066
Amortization of purchased intangible assets ................. 5,146 5,146 5,271 4,147
Specialcharges . ... — — — 30,485
Operating income (J0SS) . ..o v v et i (34,126) (32,752) (31,782) (74,534)
Income (loss) beforetaxes ............coviiiiiiiiinnnn.. (30,755) (30,391) (29,197)  (73,289)
Netincome (JoSS) .. oot e ettt ittt (20,101)  (19,421) (18,957) (112,002)
Net income (loss) per basicshare ......................... $ (033 $ (032) $ (031)$ (1.84
Net income (loss) per diluted share ........................ $ (033) $ (032) $§ 031§ (1.84)
Quarterly 2001
2001 Quarter Ended
January 31, April 30, July 31, October 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)

Nt SAlES .ottt e $136,311 $ 75,639 $ 52,781 $ 36,987
GrOSS MATZIN .« . v ottt et e et ie e e ie et e ineeenans 77,117 (3,459) 23,521 (24,273)
Research and development .. .............. ..., 22,514 21,104 21,888 20,942
Selling, general and administrative ........................ 32,559 28,089 22,798 20,727
Amortization of purchased intangible assets ................. 5,179 6,114 5,987 5,875
Specialcharges . ........ ... .. i — 3,343 2,820 25,909
Operating income (1088) . .......... i, 16,865 (62,109) (29,972) (97,726)
Income (loss) beforetaxes .........coiririiiiiinenenann. 21,437  (56,957) (25,509) (94,558)
Netincome (108S) . ..ot vttt ittt 13,595 (36,494) (15,621) (60,156)
Net income (loss) perbasic share . . ........cvvvvrnrrneen... $ 023 $ (@©61) $ (026) $ (1.00)
Net income (loss) per diluted share ........................ $ 022 $§ (061 $ (0.26) $ (1.00)

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

In addition to the historical information contained in this document, the discussion in this Annual Report on
Form 10-X contains forward-looking statements, within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that involve risks and
uncertainties, such as statements of the Company’s plans, objectives, expectations and intentions. The cautionary
statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K should be read as being applicable to all related forward-
looking statements whenever they appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company’s actual results
could differ materially from those discussed herein. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences
include those discussed below as well as those cautionary statements and other factors set forth in “Risk Factors’
and elsewhere herein.

3

Revenue declined sequentially in every quarter in fiscal 2001 and has remained relatively weak throughout
fiscal 2002 in the test and assembly sector of the semiconductor equipment industry during what we believe is a
severe cyclical downturn in the industry. There is uncertainty as to if and when the next cyclical growth phase
will occur, Until such time as we return to a growth period, we expect a continuing weak environment for orders
and therefore expect that the January 31, 2003 fiscal quarter’s revenue could be materially lower from those
recorded in the fiscal fourth quarter of 2002 and may continue to remain weak throughout fiscal 2003.
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Our sales, gross margins and operating results have in the past fluctuated significantly and will, in the
future, fluctuate significantly depending upon a variety of factors. The factors that have caused and will continue
to cause our results to significantly fluctuate include cyclicality or downturns in the semiconductor market and
the markets served by our customers, the timing of new product announcements and releases by us or our
competitors, market acceptance of new products and enhanced versions of our products, manufacturing
inefficiencies associated with the start up of new products, changes in pricing by us, our competitors, customers
or suppliers, the ability to volume produce systems and meet customer requirements, inventory obsolescence,
patterns of capital spending by customers, delays, cancellations or rescheduling of orders due to customer
financial difficulties or otherwise, expenses associated with acquisitions and alliances, product discounts, product
reliability, the proportion of direct sales and sales through third parties, including distributors and original
equipment manufacturers, the mix of products sold, the length of manufacturing and sales cycles, natural
disasters, political and economic instability, regulatory changes and outbreaks of hostilities. Due to these and
additional factors, historical results and percentage relationships discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
will not necessarily be indicative of the results of operations for any future period. For a further discussion of our
business, and risk factors affecting our results of operations, please refer to the section entitled “Risk Factors”
included elsewhere herein.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, net sales and expenses, and the related disclosures. We base our estimates on historical
experience, our knowledge of economic and market factors and various other assumptions that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
or conditions. We believe the following critical accounting policies are affected by significant estimates,
assumptions and judgments used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition:

We historically recognized revenue on the sale of semiconductor manufacturing equipment upon shipment.
We changed our revenue recognition policy based on guidance provided in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements”, or SAB 101. We adopted SAB 101 effective
November 1, 1999 (i.e., fiscal 2000).

In accordance with guidance provided in SAB 101, we recorded a non-cash charge of $31.5 million (after
reduction for income taxes of $17.8 million), or ($0.51) per diluted share, to reflect the cumulative effect of the
accounting change as of the beginning of fiscal 2000. As a result of the adoption of SAB 101, the increase to net
income for fiscal year 2000 was $1.3 million or $0.02 per basic share and $0.02 per diluted share. This amount is
comprised of equipment that was shipped to certain customers and previously recorded as revenue, but had not
been accepted as of October 31, 1999.

Under SAB 101, we recognize revenue on the sale of semiconductor manufacturing equipment when title
and risk of loss have passed to the customer, there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable, collectibility is reasonably
assured and customer acceptance criteria have been successfully demonstrated. Product revenue is recognized
upon shipment when the product is classified as mature and the customer acceptance criteria can be demonstrated
prior to shipment. Revenue related to the fair value of the installation obligation is recognized upon completion
of the installation. Products are classified as mature after several different customers have accepted similar
systems. For sales of new products or when the customer acceptance criteria cannot be demonstrated prior to
shipment, revenue and the related cost of goods sold are deferred until customer acceptance.
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Under the SAB 101 revenue recognition policy, we defer revenue for transactions that involve newly
introduced products or when customers specify acceptance criteria that cannot be demonstrated prior to the
shipment. We have introduced several new systems in fiscal 2002. In the past, we experienced significant delays
in the introduction of new testers as well as certain enhancements to our existing testers. As a result, some
customers have experienced significant delays in receiving and accepting our testers in production. Delays in
introducing a product or delays in our ability to obtain customer acceptance, if they occur in the future, will delay
the recognition of revenue and gross profit by us.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:

Qur sales distribution partners and we perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial
condition. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability or
unwillingness of our customers to make required payments. We record our bad debt expenses as selling, general
and administrative expenses. When we become aware that a specific customer is unable to meet its financial
obligations tc us, such as bankruptcy or deterioration in the customer’s operating results or financial position, we
record a specific allowance to reflect the level of credit risk in the customer’s outstanding receivable balance. In
addition, we record additional allowances based on certain percentages of our aged receivable balances. These
percentages are determined by a variety of factors including, but not limited to, current economic trends,
historical payment and bad debt write-off experience. We are not able to predict changes in the financial
condition of our customers or changes in general economic conditions, and if circumstances related to our
customers deteriorate, our estimates of the recoverability of our trade receivables could be materially affected
and we may be required to record additional allowances. Alternatively, if we provide more allowances than we
need, we may reverse a portion of such provisions in future periods based on our actual collection experience.

Inventory Valuation:

With the dramatic decline in revenue during fiscal 2001 and 2002, we continue to monitor our inventory
levels in light of product development changes and expectations of an eventual market upturn. We wrote off
excess and obsolete inventory of $9.4 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2001, we wrote off
excess and obsolete inventories of $45.0 million and $38.0 million in the second and fourth quarters,
respectively. We may be required to take additional charges for excess and obsolete inventory if the industry
downturn causes further reductions to our current inventory valuations or changes our current product
development plans. We evaluate our inventory levels and valuations based on our estimates and forecasts of the
next cyclical industry upturn. These forecasts require us to estimate our ability to sell current and future products
in the next industry upturn and compare those estimates with our current inventory levels. If these forecasts or
estimates change, or our product roadmaps change, then we would need to adjust our assessment of the inventory
valuations. At October 31, 2002, approximately 29% and 16% of the inventory balances are for the Quartet
mixed signal and Kalos memory products, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets:

We evaluate the carrying value of our long-lived assets, consisting primarily of goodwill and identifiable
intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment, whenever certain events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Such events or circumstances include,
but not limited to, a prolonged industry downturn, a significant decline in our market value, or significant
reductions in projected future cash flows. In assessing the recoverability of our long-lived assets, we compare the
carrying value to the undiscounted future cash flows the assets are expected to generate. If the total of the
undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, we write down such assets based on
the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets. Fair value is generally determined by
calculating the discounted future cash flows using a discount rate based upon our weighted average cost of
capital. Significant judgments and assumptions are required in the forecast of future operating results used in the
preparation of the estimated future cash flows, including profit margins, long-term forecasts of the amounts and
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timing of overall market growth and our percentage of that market, groupings of assets, discount rates and -
terminal growth rates. In addition, significant estimates and assumptions are required in the determination of the
fair value of our tangible long-lived assets, including replacement cost, economic obsolescence, and the value
that could be realized in orderly liquidation. Changes in these estimates could have a material adverse effect on
the assessment of our long-lived assets, thereby requiring us.to write down the assets.

Warranty Accrual:

We provide reserves for the estimated costs of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. We
estimate the costs of our warranty obligations based on our historical experience of known product failure rates,
use of materials to repair or replace defective products and service delivery costs incurred in correcting product
failures. In addition, from time to time, specific warranty accruals may be made if unforeseen technical problems
arise. Should our actual experience relative to these factors differ from our estimates, we may be required to
record additional warranty reserves. Alternatively, if we provide more reserves than we need, we may reverse a
portion of such provisions in future periods.

Income Taxes:

When we prepare our consolidated financial statements we estlmate our income taxes based on the various
jurisdictions where we conduct business. This requires us to estimate our actual current tax exposure and to
assess temporary differences that result from differing treatment ‘'of certain items for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which we show on our consolidated balance sheet.
The net deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based upon weighted available evidence, it is
‘more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. When we establish a valuation
allowance or increase this allowance in an accounting period, we must record a tax expense in our statement of
operations. Management must make significant judgments to determine our provision for income taxes, our
Our net deferred tax asset balance as of October 31, 2002 was zero, net of the valuatlon allowance of
$68.1 million. We recorded the valuation allowance to reflect uncertainties surrounding our ability to generate
future taxable income and our corresponding ability to utilize our deferred tax assets. The deferred tax assets -
consist primarily of deductible temporary differences, tax credit carryforwards, and net operatmg losses. See
Note 9 to the Consolidated Fman01al Statements.

Specidl Charges:

The current accounting for restructuring costs requires us to record provisions and charges when we have a
formal and committed plan. In connection with these plans, we have recorded estimated expenses for severance
and benefit costs, lease cancellations, asset write-offs and other restructuring costs. Given the significance of, and
the timing of the execution of such activities, this process is complex and involves periodic reassessments of
original estimates. We continually evaluate the adequacy of the remaining liabilities under our restructuring
initiatives. Although we believe that these estimates accurately reflect the costs of our restructuring plans, actual
results may differ, thereby requiring us to record additional provisions or reverse a portion of such provisions.

Results of Operations

In August 2001, we completed a merger with IMS. This transaction was accounted for as a pooling of
interests and, therefore, all prior period consolidated financial statements presented, and the consolidated
financial statements as of October 31, 2001 and for the year then ended, were restated as if the merger took place
at the beginning of such periods.
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The following table sets forth certain operating data as a percentage of net sales for the fiscal years

indicated:
Fiscal Years Ended
October 31,
W0z r 200
NEESAlES .ottt 100% 100% 100%
Cost of goods sold—onnetsales ............ .. ... ol 62 48 40
Cost of goods sold—special charges .................... ... . ..... 6 28 —
GrosSmargin .. .......cooiiueiiii i e 32 24 _60
Operating expenses:
Research and development ............ ... ... cciiiiiiin... 52 29 10
Selling, general and administrative .. ............ ... ... ... ..., 55 34 17
Amortization of purchased intangible assets ..................... 12 8 1
In-process research and development . .......................... — —_ 2
Special charges . ...t e 19 10 -
Total operating eXpenses ... .......oourierrnneveneennn.. 138 81 30
Operating income (1088} .. ... (106)% (5N% _31)%

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, netof tax .......... —
Netincome (10SS) ..ot vt ittt ettt et e e (104)%

2002 vs. 2001

Net sales. Net sales consist of revenues from the sale of systems, upgrades, spare parts, maintenance
contracts and software. Net sales decreased 46% to $164.2 million in fiscal 2002 from $301.7 million in fiscal
2001. Our net sales decreased from $136.3 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2001 to $43.2 million in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2002. During fiscal 2002, our net sales remained relatively low due in significant part to the
cyclical downturn in the semiconductor industry that is in sharp contrast to the quarterly increases in fiscal 2000.

International net sales accounted for approximately 55% and 61% of total net sales in fiscal 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Our net sales to the Asia Pacific region accounted for approximately 42% and 38% of total net sales
in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively, and thus are subject to the risk of economic instability in that region that
materially adversely affected the demand for our products in 1998. Capital markets in Korea and other areas of
Asia have been highly volatile, resulting from economic and geopolitical instabilities. These instabilities may

reoccur which could materially adversely affect demand for our products.

Our net sales by product line in fiscal 2002 and 2001 consisted of:

Mixed-Signal .. ... ... e
LOgiC o o
1 L o) oy OO

Revenues from software were not material to our operations in fiscal 2002 and 2001, representing less than

4% of our net sales in each respective period.
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Gross Margin.,  Our net gross margin as a percentage of net sales increased to 31.7% in fiscal 2002 from
24.2% in fiscal 2001. The increase in fiscal 2002 over fiscal 2001 is principally due to the $83.0 million write:
down of excess inventories recorded during fiscal 2001 compared to $9.4 million in fiscal 2002. These charges
were recorded as a result of our response to a major downturn in the business outlook for the ATE and related
semiconductor and semiconductor equipment industries in fiscal 2001 and continuing through fiscal 2002.
Excluding the write down of excess inventories, our gross margin as a percentage of net sales would have been
37.4% and 51.7% in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. Excluding the effect of the write-downs, the lower gross
margins in fiscal 2002 were primarily attributed to lower manufacturing absorption resulting from the lower
business levels in 2002 as well as lower average selling prices during fiscal 2002. '

Research and Development. Research and development expenses as a percentage of net sales were
52.0% and 28.7%, in fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, respectively. R&D expenses decreased in absolute dollars to
$85.4 million in fiscal 2002 from $86.4 million in fiscal 2001, reflecting lower headcount and decreased
spending in the development of new products, and enhancements of existing product lines. We currently intend
to continue to invest significant resources in the development of new products and enhancements for the
foreseeable future and would expect R&D expenses to remain significant as a percentage of net sales in fiscal
2003. We anticipate a lower absolute fiscal 2003 R&D dollar expenditure from the levels recorded in fiscal 2002.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, expenses decreased
to $89.7 million in fiscal 2002 from $104.2 million in fiscal 2001, a decrease of 14%. The lower spending in
fiscal 2002 in absolute dollars was primarily due to lower headcount, salary reductions and lower commission
expenses. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A expenses were 54.6% in fiscal 2002 compared to 34.5% in fiscal
2001, reflecting the decrease in business levels. We expect SG&A expenses for fiscal 2003 to be flat to slightly
lower in absolute dollars when compared to those recorded in fiscal 2002.

Amortization of Purchased Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Amortization of purchased goodwill and
intangible asset expenses decreased to $19.7 million in fiscal 2002 from $23.2 million in fiscal 2001, a decrease
of 15%. The decline was primarily attributable to the year-end write-off in fiscal 2001 of the NMS goodwill and
intangible assets as well end of life of other intangible assets.

Our management made certain assessments with respect to the determination of all identifiable assets to be
used in the business as well as research and development activities as of the acquisition date. Each of these
activities was evaluated by both interviews and data analysis to determine our state of development and related
fair value. The purchased intangibles consist of developed technology, assembled workforce, customer
relationships, trade names and trademarks, patents, and goodwill and they typically have estimated useful lives of
three to ten years.

Intangible purchased assets are generally evaluated on a market-by-market basis in making a determination
as to whether such assets are impaired or the estimated useful lives are still appropriate. We evaluate the carrying
value of our purchased goodwill and identifiable intangible assets, whenever certain events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the
recoverability of our long-lived assets, we compare the carrying value to the undiscounted future cash flows the
assets are expected to generate. If the total of the undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount
of the assets, we write down such assets based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the
assets. Fair value is generally determined by calculating the discounted future cash flows using a discount rate
based upon our weighted average cost of capital.

Special Charges. We recorded a charge of $9.4 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 related to
excess and obsolete inventory, which was included in the Cost of Goods sold.

In addition, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 we recorded charges of approximately $5.7 million,
$9.1 million, and $4.2 million for severance charges, asset disposals, and lease write-offs, respectively, which
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was included in operating expenses. These charges were associated with headcount reductions and facility
consolidations we implemented in the fourth fiscal quarter. During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2002, we reduced
our headcount by approximately 225 persons. Of this total, approximately 65 were in manufacturing, 25 were in
R&D and about 135 were in SG&A. As part of this reduction we discontinued our next-generation DRAM IMS
product and closed the associated IMS facilities in Switzerland and Germany. We are exiting the IMS facility in
Beaverton, Oregon and consolidating these employees into our facility in Hillsboro, Oregon. Approximately
$4.1 million of this charge required cash during the quarter, $4.2 million will require cash over the remaining
lease terms and the remaining $10.7 million are non-cash write-downs. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

We wrote-down our private investments in the fourth fiscal quarter of 2002 by approximately $6.4 million.
These impairment charges are due to the decline in the fair value of these equity and debt investments and were
judged to be other-than-temporary.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 we recorded a $5.1 million charge for the impairment of the remaining
goodwill and intangible assets associated with the acquisition of DCI in January 2001. This impairment was
based on the planned sale of the subsidiary to its management team effective November 1, 2002.

Interest Income. We generated interest income of $12.3 million and $19.3 million in fiscal 2002 and
2001, respectively. The decline in fiscal 2002 was primarily due to lower average interest rates in fiscal 2002
combined with lower average cash balances when compared to fiscal 2001.

Interest and Other Expenses. Interest and other expenses increased from $2.0 million in fiscal 2001 to
$2.7 million in fiscal 2002. The higher expense in fiscal 2002 is primarily attributable to the $1.6 million write
down of a publicly traded equity security held as an available-for-sale investment. This charge was due to the
decline in the fair value of this investment and was judged to be other-than-temporary.

Income Tax. Our effective tax rate was 4.4% for fiscal 2002. The effective tax rate was greater than the
expected federal statutory tax benefit rate of 35% primarily due to the establishment of a full valuation allowance
against our net deferred tax assets. Realization of the Company’s deferred tax assets depends on the Company
generating sufficient taxable income in future years in appropriate tax jurisdictions to obtain benefit from the
reversal of temporary differences and from net operating loss and credit carryforwards. Due to the uncertainty of
the timing and the amount of such realization, management concluded that a full valuation allowance was
required at October 31, 2002. The effective tax benefit rate was 37% for fiscal 2001. The effective tax benefit
rate was less than the combined federal and state statutory rate primarily due to non-deductible goodwill
amortization.

2001 vs. 2000

Net sales. Net sales decreased 60.2% to $301.7 million in fiscal 2001 from $757.4 million in fiscal 2000.
Our net sales decreased from $136.3 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2000 to $37.0 million in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2001. During fiscal 2001, our net sales have declined due to what we believe is a cyclical
downturn in the semiconductor industry that is in sharp contrast to the quarterly increases in fiscal 2000.

International net sales accounted for approximately 61% and 74% of total net sales in fiscal 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Our net sales to the Asia Pacific region accounted for approximately 38% and 66% of total net sales
in fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively, and thus are subject to the risk of economic instability in that region that
materially adversely affected the demand for our products in 1998. Capital markets in Korea and other areas of
Asia have been highly volatile, resulting in economic instabilities. These instabilities may reoccur which could
materially adversely affect demand for our products.
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Our net sales by product line in fiscal 2001 and 2000 consisted of:

2000 2000
Mixed-Signal . ... ... 61% 74%
Logic .o e [ 4 11
M emIOTY o e 19 8
Service and SO tWare . .. ... e e _1_§ _7
TOtAl oo e 100% 100%

The increase in the memory percentage of net sales is attributable principally to sales of the Kalos product
line. Revenues from software were not material to our operations in fiscal 2001 and 2000, representing less than
4% of our net sales in each respective period.

Gross Margin. Our gross margin as a percentage of net sales decreased to 24.2% in fiscal 2001 from
60.1% in fiscal 2000. The decrease in 2001 is principally the result of the $83 million write down of excess
inventories recorded during the year. These charges were recorded as a result of our response to a major
downturn in the business outlook for the ATE and related semiconductor and semiconductor equipment
industries in 2001. Excluding the write down of excess inventories, our gross margin as a percentage of sales
would have been 51.7% in fiscal 2001. The lower gross margin excluding the effect of the write down is
primarily attributed to lower manufacturing absorption resulting from the lower business levels in 2001 as well as
lower average selling prices during fiscal 2001.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses as a percentage of net sales were
28.7% and 10.3%, in fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000, respectively. R&D expenses increased in absolute dollars to
$86.4 million in fiscal 2001 from $77.9 million in fiscal 2000, reflecting higher investments in the development
of new products, and enhancements of existing product lines. The higher level of spending in fiscal 2001 reflects
the acquisitions of TMT and MI in fiscal 2000 as well as increases in internal R&D project expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, expenses decreased
to $104.2 million in fiscal 2001 from $129.7 million in fiscal 2000, a decrease of 20%. The lower spending in
2001 in absolute dollars was primarily due to lower headcount and commission expenses, salary reductions, and
periodic Company shutdowns during fiscal 2001. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A expenses were 34.5% in
2001 compared to 17.1% in fiscal 2000, reflecting the decrease in business levels.

Amortization of Purchased Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Amortization of purchased intangible asset
expenses increased to $23.2 million in fiscal 2001 from $10.4 million in fiscal 2000, an increase of 123%. In
January and February 2001, we purchased DCI and the assets of the Rabkin Group for approximately
$13.5 million. These acquisitions have resulted in approximately $0.8 million in quarterly charges for
amortization of purchased intangible assets. In May 2000, we purchased TMT for approximately $80.0 million,
in August 2000 we purchased MI for approximately $20.5 million and Credence Europa for approximately
$8.4 million, and in October 2000 we purchased NMS for approximately $11.3 million. These acquisitions have
resulted in approximately $2.8 million, $1.1 million, $0.4 million, and $0.7 million, respectively, in quarterly
charges for amortization of purchased intangible assets.

Special Charges. In the second quarter of fiscal 2001 we recorded a charge of approximately $2.0 million
for severance payments and asset disposals associated with headcount reductions we implemented in February
2001. These charges were recorded as a result of our response to a major downturn in the business outlook for the
ATE and related semiconductor and semiconductor equipment industries in 2001. In the third quarter of fiscal
2001 we recorded a further $1.0 million for severance payments and asset disposals associated with headcount
reductions we implemented in May and August 2001. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 we recorded an
additional $0.2 million for headcount reductions. We reduced headcount by more than 400 people during the

+
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fiscal year across all functional areas. Severance payments were distributed during the year and the remaining
accruals at October 31, 2001 were not significant.

In the second and third quarters of fiscal 2001 we recorded charges of approximately $3.2 million related to
fees and expenses associated with the acquisition of IMS. An additional $16.9 million was recorded in the fourth
quarter for the closing of the IMS transaction and the integration of its operations with Credence and our
subsidiary, Fluence. This charge included the write-down of $2.3 million of goodwill and purchased technology
intangible assets of Opmaxx. The impairment was recorded based on product decisions for the newly combined
operations of Fluence and IMS. The elements of the IMS acquisition charges are as follows (in thousands):

Fees and expenses (investment banking, legal, accounting, D&O insurance, travel, etc.) .... $ 9,951
Write-down of tangible and intangible assets ......... ... .. .. . o it 7,501
Lease and liability accruals . ....... ... i 1,390
Employee termination benefits ........ . ... . 1,272

$20,114

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 we recorded a $6.6 million charge for the impairment of the remaining
intangible assets associated with the acquisition of NMS in October 2000. This impairment was based on
significant NMS employee turnover in fiscal 2001 as well as a change in the technological direction of the
remaining research and development project that originated in NMS.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 we recorded a $2.3 million charge for the abandonment of the former
TMT facility in Sunnyvale, California as these operations were integrated into our Fremont, California facilities.
This charge consisted of $1.8 in estimated future rental payments to be paid through February 2005 and
$0.5 million for asset and leasehold improvement write-downs.

Interest Income. We generated interest income of $19.3 million and $19.9 million in fiscal 2001 and
2000, respectively. The slight decline in fiscal 2001 was primarily due to lower average interest rates in fiscal
2001 when compared to fiscal 2000.

Interest and Other Expenses.  Interest and other expenses decreased to $2.0 million from $4.2 million in
fiscal 2001 from fiscal 2000, primarily due to lower interest expenses on the convertible subordinated notes that
were redeemed in September 2000.

Income Tax, Our effective tax benefit rate was 37% for fiscal 2001. The effective tax benefit rate was less
than the combined federal and state statutory rate primarily due to non-deductible goodwill amortization. The
effective tax rate for fiscal 2000 of 37% was lower than the combined federal and state statutory rate due to
benefits of our foreign sales subsidiary, partially offset by non-deductible in-process research and development
expenses and non-deductible goodwill amortization.

Liquidity and Capital Rescurces

In fiscal 2002, net cash used by operating activities was $27.9 million. This use of cash was primarily
attributable to the net loss before non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization, special charges and
deferred tax assets of approximately $47.8 million offset by changes in operating assets and liabilities of
approximately $16.0 million. The net decrease in the operating assets and liabilities was made up of declines in
accounts receivable, inventories, and other current assets offset by slight declines in the current liabilities.

Net cash received from investing activities during fiscal 2002 was $25.5 million. This cash was primarily
provided by $66.5 million in sales and maturities of investments offset by the purchases of property and
equipment of $33.5 million. We purchased a new headquarters facility in Milpitas California for $21.8 million in
August 2002.
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Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 2002 of $8.3 million was primarily due to common stock
and treasury stock issued in accordance with our employee stock option and stock purchase plans.

As of October 31, 2002, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of $241.7 million in cash, cash
equivalents, and available-for-sale securities, compared with $302.7 million at October 31, 2001..We expect that
our existing cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale investment balances offset by anticipated cash outflow
from operations will satisfy our financing requirements in the ordinary course of business for at least the next
12 months.

We have an agreement with a non-related leasing company whereby we issued a guaranty in favor of a bank
with respect to certain obligations of the leasing company to the bank. Under this agreement, the leasing
company agreed to grant to us a security interest to secure the obligations of the leasing company as a result of
any payments by us pursuant to the guaranty. The outstanding debt at October 31, 2002 of the leasing company
subject to this guaranty was $5 million. :

We believe that because of the relatively long manufacturing cycles of many of our testers and the new
products we have introduced and plan to continue to introduce, investments in inventories continue will continue
to represent a significant portion of working capital. Significant investments in accounts receivable and
inventories continue to subject us to increased risks, and could continue to materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. The semiconductor industry has historically been highly
cyclical and has experienced downturns, which have had a material adverse effect on the semiconductor
industry’s demand for automatic test equipment, including equipment manufactured and marketed by us. In
addition, the automatic test equipment industry is highly competitive and subject to rapid technological change. It
is reasonably possible that events related to the above factors may occur in the near term which would cause a
change to our estimate of the net realizable value of receivables, inventories or other assets, and the adequacy of
costs accrued for warranty and other liabilities. See discussion of “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates”
above.

We lease our facilities and some equipment under operating leases that expire periodically through 2007.
The approximate future minimum lease payments at October 31, 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Committed Leases Written Net Estimated
Gross Lease - Off in Special Future Lease

Payments Charges Expense
2003 e $ 5,233 $2,680 $2,553
2004 . 3,626 1,500 2,126
2005 e 1,356 513 843
2000 .. e 489 0 489
2007 . Ll T © 204 0 204

$10,908 $4,693 $6,215

In addition to the lease commitments above, at October 31, 2002, we have open and committed purchase
orders totaling approximately $15 million.

Recent Accounting Pronsuncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 141, “Business Combinations”, or SFAS 141 and Statement of F1nanc1a1 Accounting Standard No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, or SFAS 142. :

SFAS 141 supercedes APB Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations,” and eliminates the pooling-of-
interests method of accounting for business combinations, thus requiring that all business combinations be
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accounted for using the purchase method. In addition, in applying the purchase method, SFAS 141 changes the
criteria for recognizing intangible assets other than goodwill and states that the following criteria should be
considered in determining the classification of intangible assets: (1) whether the intangible asset arises from
contractual or other legal rights, or (2) whether the intangible asset is separable or dividable from the acquired
entity and capable of being sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. If neither criteria is met, the
intangible assets are classified as goodwill and are not amortized. We will apply the requirements of SFAS 141
to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. As of Cctober 31, 2002, there were no business
combinations subject to these requirements.

SFAS 142 supercedes APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets,” and provides that goodwill and other
intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life will no longer be amortized. However, these assets must be
reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if an event occurs indicating the potential for
impairment. The shift from an amortization approach to an impairment approach applies to all acquisitions
completed after June 30, 2001 for which we made none. Total goodwill amortization expense, including
impairments, was $9.7 million in fiscal 2002 $10.0 million in fiscal 2001 and $1.8 million in fiscal 2000. We
adopted the remaining elements of this new standard in the first quarter of fiscal 2003 and therefore ceased
goodwill amortization for acquisitions made prior to July 1, 2001. However, it is possible that in the future we
may incur impairment charges related to the goodwill already recorded and to goodwill arising out of future
acquisitions. In addition, we will continue to amortize most purchased intangible assets and to assess those assets
for impairment as appropriate.

In connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation under SFAS 142, we will perform an
assessment of goodwill impairment as of November 1, 2002, the date of adoption. To accomplish this, we will
identify its reporting units and determine the carrying value of each of them by assigning the assets and
liabilities, including existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting units as of the date of adoption.
We will then have up to six months from the date of adoption to determine the fair value of each reporting unit
and compare it to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. To the extent that a reporting unit’s carrying amount
exceeds its fair value, an indication exists that the reporting unit’s goodwill may be impaired and we must
perform the second step of the transitional impairment test. In the second step, we must compare the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying amount, both of which will be measured as of the date of
adoption. The implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is determined by allocating the reporting unit’s
fair value to all of its assets (recognized and unrecognized) and liabilities in a manner similar to a purchase price
allocation in accordance with SFAS 141. This second step is required to be completed as soon as possible, but no
later than the end of the year of adoption. Any transitional impairment loss will be recognized as the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle in the statement of operations.

As of the date of adoption of SFAS 142 on November 1, 2002, we had an unamortized acquired intangible
assets balance of approximately $25.2 million excluding the balance of approximately $430,000 for acquired
workforce reclassified to goodwill. As of that date, we also had an unamortized goodwill balance of
approximately $34.3 million. These balances will be subject to the transitional provisions of SFAS 141 and 142.
Transitional impairment losses that may be recognized upon adoption of SFAS 141 and 142 are indeterminable at
this time.

The following table shows our financial results as they would have been if we had adopted the non-
amortization provisions of SFAS 142 as of the beginning of fiscal 2000 (in thousands):

, 2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) as reported before cumulative effect of
accounting change . ........... ... i $(170,481) $(98,676) $120,510
Amortization of goodwill, netof tax ......................... 6,821 7,047 2,278
Pro forma netincome (I0S8) .. .o vt $(163,660) $(91,629) $122,788




In August 2001 the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, or SFAS 144. SFAS 144 supercedes SFAS 121, “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of” and the accounting and
reporting provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations—
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS 144 establishes a single
accounting model for assets to be disposed of by sale whether previously held and used or newly acquired.
SFAS No. 144 retains the provisions of APB No. 30 for presentation of discontinued operations in the income
statement, but broadens the presentation to include a component of an entity. We will adopt SFAS 144 effective
November 1, 2002. We are currently in the process of determining the ant1c1pated impact of adopting the
prov1510ns of SFAS 144.

In July 2002 the FASB approved Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards No. 146 “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”, or SFAS 146. SFAS 146 addresses the financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with an exit activity, including restructuring, or with a disposal of long-
lived assets. Exit activities include, but are not limited to, eliminating or reducing product lines, terminating
employees and contracts and relocating manufacturing facilities or personnel. SFAS 146 specifies that a
company will record a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity only when that liability is
incurred and can be measured at fair value. Therefore, commitment to an exit plan or a plan of disposal expresses
only management’s intended future actions and, therefore, does not meet the requirement for recognizing a
liability and the related expense. SFAS 146 is effective prospectively for exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002. The effect of adoption of SFAS 146 is dependent on our related activities subsequent to the
date of adoption.
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Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Cur exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our cash equivalents and
investment portfolio. We maintain a strict investment policy, which ensures the safety and preservation of our
invested funds by limiting default risk, market risk, and reinvestment risk. Our investments consist primarily of
commercial paper, medium term notes, asset backed securities, U.S. Treasury notes and obligations of U.S.
Government agencies, bank certificates of deposit, auction rate preferred securities, corporate bonds and
municipal bonds. The table below presents notional amounts and related weighted—average interest rates by year
of maturity for our investment portfolio (in thousands, except percentages).

Future maturities of investments held at Octeber 31, 2002

Balance at
10/31/61 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter
Cash and cash equivalents
Fixedrate ................ $ 44309 $50,192 — — — — —
Averagerate .............. 265% 2.07% — — — — —
Short term investments
Fixedrate ................ $ 96,497 $ 6,094 $76,129 — — —_ _—
Averagerate .............. 6.70% 833% 4.71% — — — —
Long term investments
Fixedrate ................ $160,607 — —  $71,554 $20,452 $4,100 $12,125
Averagerate .............. 5.60% — — 392% 6.04% 6.76% 5.12%
Total investment
securities ........... $301,413 $56,286 $76,129 §$71,554 $20,452 $4,100 $12,125
Averagerate .......... 552% 265% 6.70% 3.92% 6.04% 6.70% 5.12%
Equity investments ............. $ 1,282 $ 1,016 — — — — —

We mitigate default risk by attempting to invest in high credit quality securities and by constantly
positioning our portfolio to respond appropriately to a significant reduction in a credit rating of any investment
issuer or guarantor. The portfolio includes only marketable securities with active secondary or resale markets to
ensure portfolio liquidity and maintains a prudent amount of diversification.

Foreign Exchange

We generate a significant portion of our sales from sales to customers located outside the United States,
principally in Asia and to a lesser extent Europe. International sales are made mostly to foreign distributors and
some foreign subsidiaries and are typically denominated in U.S. dollars and occasionally are denominated in the
local currency for European and Japanese customers. The subsidiaries also incur most of their expenses in the
local currency. Accordingly, some of our foreign subsidiaries use the local currency as their functional currency.

Our international business is subject to risks typical of an international business including, but not limited
to: differing economic conditions, changes in political climate, differing tax structures, other regulations and
restrictions, and foreign exchange rate volatility. Accordingly, our future results could be materially adversely’
impacted by changes in these or other factors.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

For the years ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Credence Systems Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Credence Systems Corporation as of
October 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2002. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedule listed in the index at item 15(d). These financial statements and this schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and this schedule based on our audits. We did not audit the statements of operations, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows of Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc., which statements reflect activities constituting a
significant amount of the related 2000 consolidated financial statement totals. Those statements were audited by
other auditors who have ceased operations and whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to data included for Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. is based solely on the report of the other
auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based upon our audits and, as to the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
ended October 31, 2000, the report of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Credence Systems Corporation at
October 31, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended October 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

/s/  ERNST & YounG LLP

San Jose, California
November 22, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (1)

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc.
(an Oregon corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based upon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and
1999, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2000 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. As
explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2000, the Company changed its
method of accounting for systems revenues based on guidance provided in the SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 101 “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.”

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Portland, Oregon
January 23, 2001

(1) This report had been previously provided by Arthur Andersen, LLP and Arthur Andersen, LLP has not re-
issued their report for purposes of this filing on Form 10-K. See also the note relating to the Arthur
Andersen, LLP consent following the Exhibit list under Item 15(c).
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CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

October 31,
2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashand cash equivalents ... ... . ...ttt i, $ 50,192 $ 44,309
Short-term INVESIMENTS . . . ..ttt e e e e et e e e e e e 82,223 96,497
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $5,388 and $8,235, respectively ........ 32,426 39,831
Ve OIS .« o it e e 105,636 123,219
Deferred INCOME taXeS . . .ottt i e e i e e e — 39,955
Income tax receivable . ... ... . e 17,463 41,031
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ..................coiiniiiiinn.... 7,520 9,502
TOtal CUITENE ASSEES . .\t vttt et ettt ettt e 295,460 394,344
Long-term invVestmMents . .. ... ... ..ttt e e 109,247 161,889
Property and equipment, NEE . ... ...t e 112,256 109,528
Goodwill from acquisitions, net of accumulated amortization of $20,397 and $14,364 ... 34,313 47,124
Other intangible assets, net of accurnulated amortization of $27,629 and $33,054 ... .... 25,208 34,450
OHRET ASSEES . . . ottt e 5,765 10,084
TOtal @SSEES . .\ vttt $582,249 $757,419
LIABILITY AND STCCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE . ...ttt $ 14,870 $ 17,510
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ........ ... ... .. ... ... . L 40,816 41,181
Deferred profit . . ... e 5,724 11,707
Total current liabilities ... ... ... 61,410 70,398
Other Habilities . .. ..ottt e e 1,602 6,081
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock:
Authorized shares—1,000 ($0.001 par value); no shares issued ............... — —
Common stock:
Authorized shares—150,000 ($0.001 par value); issued and outstanding shares—
61,801in2002 and 61,4261in 2001 .. ... ... ... .. . . . . . 62 61
Additional paid-incapital . .......... . . e 608,845 605,483
Treasury stock, at cost, 987 shares in 2002 and 1,300 shares in 2001 ........... (21,186) (23,535)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ........ ... ... 3,843 4,854
Deferred compensation .. ... .......o.ituttt et e (598) (4,675)
Retained earnings (Accumulated Deficit) . ......... ... .. ... ... ... .. ... ... (71,729) 98,752
Total stockholders’ equity ... ... ... .o i e 519,237 680,940
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ........... .. ... .. v, $582,249 §$757,419

See accompanying notes.
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CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000

Net sales: _

Systems and upgrades . ......... .. ... . $ 121,692 $ 252,711 $708,563

Service, spare parts and software ........... ... .. L L. 42,517 49,007 48,788

Total Net SAlES . . ... 164209 301,718 757351

Costof goods sold—onnetsales .. ........... ...t inen .. 102,705 145,789 301,954
Cost of goods sold—special charges ..................cooiviiinn... 9,441 83,023 —
GIroSS MAIZIN . .o\ttt et e ettt 52,063 72,906 455,397
Operating expenses:

Research and development ................. ... ... .......... 85,355 86,448 77,946

Selling, general and administrative ............................. 89,707 104,173 129,740

Amortization of purchased intangible assets .. .................... 19,710 23,155 10,367

In-process research and development ........................... — — 11,794

Special charges . ......... . 30,485 32,072 —

Total operating eXpenses . .. ......ocuurieernnnneennaen.. 225,257 245,848 229,847

Operating income (10SS) ... .. ..t (173,194) (172,942) 225,550
Interest INCOME . . ..o it e e 12,306 19,340 19,919
Interest and other (EXpPenses), NEL .. ... ......vriirirnnrnnneannnn. (2,744) (1,985) (4,192)
Income (loss) before income tax provision (benefit) ................... (163,632) (155,587) 241,277
Income tax provision (benefit) ....... .. .. .. 7,227 (56,905)‘ 89,201
Income (loss) before minority interest . ............. ..o, (170,859)  (98,682) 152,076
Minority interest (benefit) ....... ... ... . ... (378) (6) 41
Net income (loss) before change in accounting principle ................ $(170,481) $ (98,676) $152,035
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of $17,792 taxes . . — —_ (31,525)
Netincome (10SS) . . oo vttt e e $(170,481) $ (98,676) $120,510
Net income (loss) per share

Basic before cumulative effect of accounting change . .............. $ @81 $ (165 $ 275

Basic cumulative effect of accounting change .................... — — 0.57)

Basic after cumulative effect of accounting change ................ $ (28D $ (@165 $ 218

Diluted before cumulative effect of accounting change ............. $ @28 $ (165 $ 251

Diluted cumulative effect of accounting change ................... — — 0.5D

Diluted after cumulative effect of accounting change . .............. $ @281 $ @165 $ 200
Number of shares used in computing per share amounts

BasiC ... e 60,570 59,818 55,300

Diluted ................ . . i, T 60,570 59,818 61,892

See accompanying notes.
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CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands)

itional A
M Aggigi-in w Retained Deferred mﬁ%ﬁgiﬁ:ﬁe Stocgﬁﬁfﬂers’
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Earnings Compensation Income (loss) Equity

Balance at October 31, 1999 ... 51,864 $ 52 $177,573 (1,404) $(10,522)$ 76919 $ — $ (794) $ 243,228
Issuance of common stock

through public offering ... .. 5,290 S 288,101 — — — — — 288,106
Purchase of common stock .. .. (35) — (555) (405 (12,786) — — — (13,341)
Issuance of common stock under

employee equity plans . ..... 895 1 11,334 633 4,748 — — — 16,083
Exchange of common shares for

convertible notes . ......... 2,792 3 95,417 — — — — — 95,420
Income tax benefit-stock

plans ......... ... ... ... —_ — 11,101 — — — — — 11,101
Amortization of deferred

compensation .. ........... — — — — — — 3,878 —_— 3,878
Issuance of employee options '

from acquisitions .......... — — 10,720 — — — (10,720) — —
Netincome ................. — — — — — 120,509 — —_ 120,509
Unrealized gain on securities,

DEL ottt — — — — — — — 3,313 3,313
Currency translation

adjustment ............... — — — — — — — 422) 422)
Comprehensive income . ...... — — — — — — — — 123,400
Balance at October 31,2000 ... 60,806 $ 61 $593,691 (1,176) $(18,560) $ 197,428  $ (6,842) $ 2,097 $ 767,875
Purchase of common stock .. .. an (1) (1,080) (325) (6,48%) — — — (7,566)
Issuance of common stock under

employee equity plans ...... 697 1 9,607 201 1,510 — — — 11,118
Income tax benefit-stock

plans ......... ... ..., — — 2,230 —_ — — — — 2,230
Amortization of deferred

compensation ............. — — — — — — 3,202 — 3,202
Issuance of options to

employees at below fair

marketvalue . ............. — —_— 1,035 — — — (1,035) — —
Netloss ....c..vvvenininnn.. — — — —_ — (98,676) — — (98,676)
Unrealized gain on securities,

et . — — — — — — — 373 373
Currency translation

adjustment ............... — — —_ — — — — 2,384 2,384
Comprehensive income (loss) .. — — — — — — — — (95,919)
Balance at October 31,2001 ... 61,426 $ 61 $605,483 (1,300) $(23,535)$ 98,752 $ (4,675) $ 4,854 $ 680,940
Issuance of common stock under

employee equity plans .. .... 475 1 5,544 313 2,349 — — — 7,894
Amortization of deferred

compensation ............. — — 2,182y — — — 4,077 — 1,895
Netloss ................... —_ — — — —  (170,481) — — (170,481)
Unrealized gain on securities,

1T S — — — — — — — (1,396) (1,396)
Currency translation

adjustment ............... — — — — — — — 385 385
Comprehensive income (loss) . . — — — — —_ — — — (171,492)
Balance at October 31,2002 ... 61,901 $ 62 $608,845 (987) $(21,186) $ (71,729) $ (598) ~$3,843 $ 519,237

See accompanying notes.
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CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash flows from operating activities

Netincome (108S) ..ottt i e e e

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change . .......... ... .. ... .
Depreciation and amortization .. .............tiuruteit e
Special non-cash charges ...... ... ... ... i i
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment ..................... S U

- Deferred income taxes ........ PN e

Realized net loss (gain) from inVeStMENtS .. ..........uuitir it
Minority interest ......... .o e e

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accountsreceivable . ............. ... .. ... ... . e

INVENUOMIES . . oot

Prepaid expenses and other CUITEnt @SSES .. ... ... ettt i

Accounts payable ... ...

Accrued expenses and other liabilities ........... ... ..

Deferred 1eVenue . .. .. ...

Income taxes payable .. ... ... ..

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities .................c.ccuviriren....

Cash flows from investing activities . :

Purchases of available-for-sale securities .......... ..o i
Maturities of available-for-sale securities ... .. ... ... .. it
Sales of available-for-sale securities . .. ....... ... i
OtheT @SSEIS .. .\ ittt ettt e e e e e e e
Acquisition of property and eqUIPMENt . ........... it e
Acquisition of purchased intangible assets ............. P
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment . ... ... ... i

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ..................cc.uveoeionana..

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of common stock . ... ... .
Repurchase of common stock . ... ... ..
L0 1T P

Net cash provided by financing activities . .......... ... ... i

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cashequivalents ........................................
Cash and cash'equivalents at beginning of the period .............. .. ... ... ... ... ... ...,

Cash and cash equivalents atend of the period .. .......... ... .o i

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information;
Interest paid . .. ..o
Income taxes paid (refunded) .. ... ... ... ..

Noncash investing activities:

Income tax benefit from stock option eXercises .............c... i
Paid-in capital increase—common stock for convertiblenotes .................. ... .. .. ...,
Exchange of convertible notes for common stock, net of discount ............. e
Net transfers of inventory to property and equipment .................ovuieinnneeinnn.....

See accompanying notes.
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Year Ended October 31,

2002

2001

2060 .

$(170,481) '$ (98,676) $ 120,510

— — 31,525
50,405 59,276 41,744
35,837 99,588 —
2,723 1,572 (898)
36,424 (8,199)  (8,924)
1,559 (4,487) -
(397) 3 41
7405 147,443 (101,812)
(449)  (95279) (65411
25550  (36,102) 424
(2,640)  (38,149) 31,431
(7.894)  (41,506) 23,944
(5983)  (32,368)  (5,725)

— (21,636) 26,690
(27,941)  (68,526) 93,539
(174,147)  (269,426) (314,758)
28,021 55,971 86,239
212,587 241,120 56,373
(6255  (1253) (3,178
(33,534)  (37,052)  (68,003)
(L127)  (14,185)  (65,103)
- 163 1,969
25,545  (30,662)  (306,461)
7,894 11,118 304,202
— (7,566)  (13,341)
385 2,544 (149)
8.279 6,096 250,712
5883 (93,092) 77,790
44309 137,401 59,611

$ 50,192 $ 44309 $ 137,401

$ 47 $ 863 § 1785

$ (54387) $ 14336 $ 62,426

— $ 2230 $ 11,101
— — $ 95420
— — $ 95420
$ 8591 $ 2055 $ 9,190




CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policles
Organization

Credence Systems Corporation (“Credence” or the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the
State of California in March 1982 and was reincorporated in Delaware in October 1993. The principal business
activity of the Company is the design, development, manufacture, sale and service of integrated test solutions
throughout the design, validation and production processes for semiconductors. As a result of acquisitions made
in fiscal years 1997 through 2001, Credence is also involved in the design, development, sale and service of
software enabling design and test engineers to develop and debug production test software prior to fabricating the
prototype as well as the development of customer test programs used by automatic test equipment. The Company
has subsidiaries in Japan engaged in sales, marketing and service of the Company’s products and a subsidiary in
Korea engaged in service of the Company’s products. Also, the Company has a joint venture with Innotech
Corporation in Japan engaged in the customization, development and manufacture of product for sale by both
companies. The joint venture is 50.1% owned by the Company and is consolidated in the financial statements.
The Company also has European subsidiaries, which principally distribute, service, and support Credence
products in Europe and the Middle East. The operations of and net investment in foreign subsidiaries are not
material.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned and majority owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated. Certain prior year amounts in the consolidated financial statements and related notes have been’
reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

In August 2001, the Company completed a merger with Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc., or IMS.
IMS designs, manufactures, markets and services integrated circuit validation systems and virtual test software.
This acquisition was accounted for as a pooling of interests in accordance with Accounting Principles Board 16
(“APB 16”) and therefore, the consolidated financial statements, including the related notes, have been restated
as of the earliest period presented to include the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of IMS
(see Note 2 for further discussion).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Actual results inevitably will differ from those estimates and such differences may be material to the
financial statements. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for the allowance for doubtful
accounts, inventory write-downs, depreciation and amortization, product maturity and receivable collectibility for
purposes of revenue recognition, watranty costs, restructuring costs, deferred taxes and contingencies.

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
or unwillingness of its customers to make required payments. The Company records its bad debt expenses as
selling, general and administrative expenses. When the Company becomes aware that a specific customer is
unable to meet its financial obligations, such as bankruptcy or deterioration in the customer’s operating results or
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CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

financial position, the Company records a specific allowance to reflect the level of credit risk in the customer’s
outstanding receivable balance. In addition, the Company records additional allowances based on certain
percentages of its aged receivable balances. These percentages are determined by a variety of factors including,
but not limited to, current economic trends, historical payment and bad debt write-off experience.

With the dramatic decline in revenue during fiscal 2001 and continuing in fiscal 2002, the Company
continues to monitor its inventory levels in light of product development changes and expectations of an eventual
market upturn. The Company recorded a charge of $9.4 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, a charge of
$45.0 million in the second fiscal quarter of 2001 and a charge of $38.0 million in the fourth fiscal quarter of
2001 for the write-down of excess inventories. The Company may be required to take additional charges for
excess and obsolete inventory if the industry downturn causes further reductions to its current inventory
valuations or changes its current product development plans. The Company evaluates its inventory levels and
valuations based on estimates and forecasts of the next cyclical industry upturn. Based on these forecasts, the
Company estimates its ability to sell current and future products during the next industry upturn and compares
those estimates with its current inventory levels. If these forecasts or estimates change, or its product roadmaps
change, then the Company would need to adjust its assessment of the inventory valuations. At October 31, 2002,
approximately 16% and 29% of the inventory balances are for the Kalos memory products and Quartet mixed
signal products, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s international subsidiaries operate primarily using local functional currencies. Accordingly,
all assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated using exchange rates in effect at the end of the period,
and revenues and costs are translated using spot rates for the period. The resulting cumulative translation
adjustments are presented as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Realized and unrealized exchange
gains or losses from transaction adjustments are reflected in operations and have not been material.

Revenue Recognition and Change in Accounting Principle

The Company recognizes revenue on the sale of semiconductor manufacturing equipment when title and
risk of loss has passed to the customer, there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable, collectibility is reasonably assured and
customer acceptance criteria have been successfully demonstrated. Product revenue is recognized upon shipment
when the product is classified as mature and the customer acceptance criteria can be demonstrated prior to
shipment. Revenue related to the fair value of the installation obligation is recognized upon completion of the
installation. Products are classified as mature after several different customers have accepted similar systems. For
sales of new products or when the customer acceptance criteria cannot be demonstrated prior to shipment,
revenue and the related cost of goods sold are deferred on a net basis until customer acceptance. Revenue related
to maintenance and service contracts is recognized ratably over the duration of the contracts.

Software license revenues including more than one product, including maintenance and support services, are
recognized using Statement of Position 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, as amended by SOP 98-4 and SOP
98-9. For customer license arrangements meeting the policy set forth above, fees allocated to the software license
will generally be recognized upon delivery and acceptance, while fees allocated to services based upon vendor-
specific objective evidence of fair value are recognized ratably as the services are performed.

Credence’s products are generally subject to warranty and such estimated costs are provided for in costs of
goods sold when product revenue is recognized. Installation and other services are not essential to the
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CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

functionality of the products as these services do not alter the products capabilities, do not require specialized
skills or tools and can be performed by the customers or other vendors. The cost of installation is also provided
for in cost of goods sold when the installation revenue is recognized. Net sales consist of product and service
sales, less discounts and estimated allowances.

For certain customers, typically those with which the Company has long-term relationships, the Company
may grant extended payment terms. Certain of the Company’s receivables have due dates in excess of 90 days
and the Company has a history of successfully collecting these extended payment term accounts receivable.

The Company previously recognized revenue on the sale of semiconductor manufacturing equipment upon
shipment. The Company adopted SAB 101 effective November 1, 1999, based on guidance provided in
SAB 101. In accordance with guidance provided in SAB 101, the Company recorded a non-cash charge of
$31.5 million (after reduction for income taxes of $17.8 million), or $0.51 per diluted share, to reflect the
cumulative effect of the accounting change as of the beginning of fiscal 2000. None of this cumulative amount
was still deferred at October 31, 2001. As a result of the adoption of SAB 101, the increase to net income for
fiscal year 2000 was $1.3 million or $0.02 per basic share and $0.02 per diluted share. This amount is comprised
of equipment that was shipped to certain customers and previously recorded as revenue, but had not been
accepted as of October 31, 1999.

Deferred revenue, which is included in accrued expenses and other liabilities on the balance sheet, is
comprised of deferred revenue related to maintenance contracts (and other undelivered services). Deferred profit
is related to equipment that was shipped to certain customers and previously recorded as revenue with associated
cost of goods sold recognized but either the customer specified acceptance criteria has not been met as of the
fiscal year end or the product is not classified as mature as of the fiscal year end and has not been accepted by the
customer.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company records costs incurred for the shipping and handling of its products as cost of goods sold in
the statement of operations.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In the first quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, or SFAS 133, as amended by
SFAS 137 and SFAS 138, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and
for hedging activities. SFAS 133 requires that an entity recognize derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the
balance sheet and measure those instruments at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a
derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation.

The Company designates its derivatives based upon criteria established by SFAS 133. For a derivative
designated as a fair value hedge, the gain or loss is recognized in earnings in the period of change together with
the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributed to the risk being hedged. For a derivative designated as a
cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the hedged
exposure affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately.

The Company’s objectives for holding derivatives are to decrease the volatility of earnings and cash flows
associated with changes in foreign currency prices.
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The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts (forward contracts) to manage exposure related
to certain foreign currency transactions. All outstanding forward contracts at the end of the period are marked-to-
market, with unrealized gains and losses included in net income as a component of other income, net. The
Company may, from time to time, adjust its foreign currency hedging positions by taking out additional contracts
or by terminating or offsetting existing forward contracts. These adjustments typically result from changes in the
underlying foreign currency exposures. Realized gains and losses on terminated forward contracts, or on
contracts that are offset, are recognized in earnings in the period of contract termination or offset. The Company
had no outstanding forward contracts at October 31, 2002.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Short-Term Investments

For purposes of cash flow reporting, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with minimum
yield risks and original maturity dates of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Short-term investments
consist primarily of commercial paper, medium term notes, asset-backed securities, U.S. Treasury notes and
obligations of U.S. Government agencies, equity securities, corporate bonds and municipal bonds carried at
amortized costs adjusted to fair market value. '

At October 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company classified all investments as available-for-sale and reported
their fair market value. Unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities, if material, are included, net of
tax, in equity until disposition.

Realized gains, losses and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary on available-for-sale
securities are included in interest income. In fiscal 2002 the Company recorded a charge against interest income
of approximately $1.6 million related to a decline in market value of an investment that was judged to be other
than temporary. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method.

The fair market value of cash equivalents, short-term and long-term debt investments represents the quoted
market prices at the balance sheet dates. Cash and cash equivalents are categorized as follows (in thousands):

QOctober 31,
2002 2001
Money MAarket . .. ..ot $19,390 $31,167
Commercial paper .. ......... oo 11,487 3,313
Corporate bonds . ... ..o e 3,087 —_—
Cash eqUIVAIENS . . .. ... 33,964 34,480
Cash ... ... i FA 16,228 9,829
Cash and cashequivalents . ......... ...t $50,192 $44,309
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The short-term investments mature in less than one year. All long-term investments have maturities of one

to five years. At October 31, 2002 and 2001, these investments are classified as available-for-sale and are
categorized as follows (in thousands):

QOctober 31,
2002 2001
Commercial paper and medium termnotes ............. ... ... ... $ 9212 $ 14997
Treasury notes and obligations of U.S. Government agencies ............... 67,016 43,819
Assetbacked SECUIIIES . .. .o vttt e 14,455 23,423
Aucton rate SECUIIHEs . . . . ..ottt e 3,000 —
EqUity SECUTIHIES . . .ottt ittt e e 1,016 1,282
Corporate bonds ...ttt 72,905 138,613
Mortgage back securities . ... ... ... 4,296 —
Municipalbonds ........ ... 19,570 36,252
Short and long term investments . ................. i $191.470 $258,386

The estimated fair value of cash, cash equivalents, short and long-term investments classified by the

maturity date listed on the security is as follows (in thousands):

October 31,
2002 2001
Due within one Year .. ... .....ccuuirrnin i $132,415 $140,806
Due within tWo YEars . . . ..ottt it e 72,570 102,472
Due withinthreeyears . .. ....... ... 20,452 38,810
Dueafterthree years ... ... i 16,225 20,607
Cash, cash equivalents, short and long term investments ................... $241,662 $302,695

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost (which approximates first-in, first-out cost) or market.

Shipping and handling expenses for purchased inventory items are expensed to cost of goods sold. Inventories
consist of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2002 2001
Raw materials ... ..ot $ 58,941 $ 65,553
WOTK-ID-PrOCESS . .o\ttt ittt e e e e 24,777 21,905
Finished goods . . .. ... oo e 21,918 35,761
$105,636 $123,219

The Company makes inventory commitment and purchase decisions based upon sales forecasts. To mitigate
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component supply constraints that have existed in the past and to fill orders with non-standard configurations, the
Company builds inventory levels for certain items with long lead times and enter into short-term commitments
for certain items. The Company writes off 100% of the cost of inventory that it specifically identifies and
considers obsolete, or excessive to fulfill future sales estimates. The Company evaluates its inventory levels and
valuations based on estimates and forecasts of the next cyclical industry upturn. These forecasts require the
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Company to estimate its ability to sell current and future products in the next industry upturn and compare those
estimates with its current inventory levels. If these forecasts or-estimates change, or product roadmaps change,
then the Company would need to adjust its assessment of the inventory valuations. '

Property and Equipment and Other Assets

Machinery and equipment, software, furniture and fixtures and spare parts are stated at cost and are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives of three to five years. Personal
computer equipment is depreciated over two years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated using the straight-
line method over the shorter of five years or the applicable lease term. Buildings are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives of thirty years. Assets under capitalized leases are
amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease
term. Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

QOctober 31,

} » ) 2002 2001
Land ... $ 26,509 $ 14,439
. Buildings .......... ... . e 31,422 21,500
Machinery and equipment . ........... .. i e 96,991 99,529
SO tWATE . . 23,891 22,280
Leasehold improvements ................... e 18,261 17,714
Fumitureandﬁxtures....‘....................._ ................... 8,912 10,593
SPATE PAItS . . .ttt e e 28,681 33,574
234,667 219,629
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ... ............. e - (122,411)  (110,101)
Net property and equipment ... ..........uuiniieneaenenennnins e $ 112,256 $ 109,528
Other intangible assets, excluding goodwill, consist of the following (in thousands):
October 31,

. . 2002 2001
Purchased technology . ...... ... ... ... .. .. . i e $ 48,367 $ 52,730
Other intangible assets . ... ... i 4470 14,774

52,837 67,504
Less accumulated amortization and provisions . .......................... (27,629) (33,054)
Other intangible assets, net . ............... e e $ 25,208 §$ 34,450

Goodwill and intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful
lives of three to ten years. Goodwill and intangible assets are generally evaluated on an individual acquisition,
market, or product basis whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that such assets are impaired or
the estimated useful lives are no longer appropriate.

In accordance with Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121 “Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of”, or SFAS 121, the Company reviews long-
lived assets (primarily consisting of property and equipment, goodwill and. other intangibles) for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
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recoverable. Such events or changes in circumstances include, but not limited to, a significant industry downturn,
a significant decline in the market value of the Company, or significant reductions in projected future cash flows
of the operating segments. Determination of recoverability is based on the sum of the undiscounted cash flows
expected to result from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition. An impairment loss is measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value. Long-lived assets classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 the Company recorded a $5.1 million charge for the impairment of the
remaining goodwill and intangible assets associated with the acquisition of DCI in January 2001. This
impairment was based on the planned sale of the subsidiary to its management team. See Notes 3 and 13 for
further details.

In the fourth fiscal quarter of 2001 the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately
$6.6 million for the write-down of the remaining goodwill and intangible assets related to the acquisition of
NMS. In conjunction with the acquisition of IMS in August 2001, Fluence was merged with IMS. The
integration of Fluence with IMS resulted in the write-down of $2.3 million of the goodwill and purchased
technology intangible assets of Opmaxx.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2002 2001
Accrued payroll and related hiabilities ........... . ... ... $13,679 $ 9916
Accrued WarmTanty .. ... ... ...ttt e 4,316 6,391
Accrued distributor COmMmISSIONS ... ..ottt e 1,204 2,513
Holdback payments on acquiSitions . ...........ouuveeeunnernneeunnieeenn. — 1,000
Deferred revenue . . ... oot e 6,321 8,160
Other accrued liabilities . ... ... i iit it e e 15,296 13,201

$40,816 341,181

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), and has
adopted the disclosure only alternative of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (“FAS 123”). Any deferred stock compensation calculated according to APB 25 is
amortized over the vesting period of the individual options, generally four years, using the straight line vesting
method.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is based upon the weighted average number of common
shares and dilutive-potential common shares outstanding during the period. The Company’s convertible
subordinated notes are dilutive-potential common shares and, accordingly, are included in the fiscal 2000
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calculation of net income per diluted share. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted
net income (loss) per share for the fiscal years ended October 31, (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000
Numerator:
Income (loss) available to common stockholders ............ $(170,481) $(98,676) $120,510
* Plus income impact of assumed conversions: '
Interest on convertible notes ....................... — — 3,200
Adjusted income (loss) available to common stockholders ... $(170,481) $(98,676) $123,710
Denominator: . . ' .
Weighted-average shares outstanding . ................... 60,570 59,818 55,300
Plus incremental shares from assumed conversions:
Employee stock options . .............. ... L — — 4,141
Convertiblenotes . ............. ... iiiiirnnan... — —_— 2,450
Adjusted weighted-average shares outstanding . ............ . 60,570 59,818 61,892
Basic net income (loss) per share ................. e $ (281) $ (165 $ 218
Diluted net income (loss) pershare .......................... $ @81 $ (165 $ 200

During fiscal 2002, the Company excluded options to purchase 1,250,649 shares of common stock from the
diluted income per share computation because the effect was anti-dilutive in the year. During fiscal 2001, the
Company excluded options to purchase 2,185,119 shares of comimon stock from the diluted income per share
computation because the effect was anti-dilutive in the year.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 141, “Business Combinations”, or SFAS 141 and Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, or SFAS 142,

SFAS 141 supercedes APB Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations,” and eliminates the pooling-of-
interests method of accounting for business combinations, thus requiring that all business combinations be
accounted for using the purchase method. In addition, in applying the purchase method, SFAS 141 changes the
criteria for recognizing intangible assets other than goodwill and states that the following criteria should be
considered in determining the classification of intangible assets: (1) whether the intangible asset arises from
contractual or other legal rights, or (2) whether the intangible asset is separable or dividable from the acquired
entity and capable of being sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. If neither criteria is met, the
intangible assets are classified as goodwill and are not amortized. The Company will apply the requirements of
SFAS 141 to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. As of October 31, 2002, there were no
business combinations subject to these requirements.

SFAS 142 supercedes APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets,” and provides that goodwill and other
intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life will no longer be amortized. However, these assets must be
reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if an event occurs indicating the potential for
impairment. The shift from an amortization approach to an impairment approach applies to all acquisitions
completed after June 30, 2001 for which the Company made none. Total goodwill amortization expense,
including impairments, was $9.7 million in fiscal 2002, $10.0 million in fiscal 2001 and $1.8 million in fiscal
2000. The Company adopted the remaining elements of this new standard in the first quarter of fiscal 2003 and
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\
therefore ceased goodwill amortization for acquisitions made prior to July 1, 2001. However, it is possible that in
the future the Company may incur impairment charges related to the goodwill already recorded and to goodwill
arising out of future acquisitions. In addition, the Company will continue to amortize most purchased intangible
assets and to assess those assets for impairment as appropriate.™

In connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation under SFAS 142, the Company will
perform an assessment of goodwill impairment as of November 1, 2002, the date of adoption. To accomplish
this, the Company will identify its reporting units and determine the carrying value of each of them by assigning
the assets and liabilities, including existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting units as of the date
of adoption. The Company will then have up to six months from the date of adoption to determine the fair value
of each reporting unit and compare it to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. To the extent that a reporting unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an indication exists that the reporting unit’s goodwill may be impaired
and the Company must perform the second step of the transitional impairment test. In the second step, the
Company must compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying amount, both of
which will be measured as of the date of adoption. The implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is
determined by allocating the reporting unit’s fair value to all of its assets (recognized and unrecognized) and
liabilities in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation in accordance with SFAS 141. This second step is
required to be completed as soon as possible, but no later than the end of the year of adoption. Any transitional
impairment loss will be recognized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the statement
of operations.

As of the date of adoption of SFAS 142 on November 1, 2002, the Company had an unamortized acquired
intangible assets balance of approximately $25.2 million excluding the balance of approximately $430,000 for
acquired workforce reclassified to goodwill. As of that date, the Company also had an unamortized goodwill
balance of approximately $34.3 million. These balances will be subject to the transitional provisions of
SFAS 141 and 142. Transitional impairment losses that may be recognized upon adoption of SFAS 141 and 142
are indeterminable at this time.

The following table shows the Company’s financial results, as they would have been if the Company had
adopted the non-amortization provisions of SFAS 142 as of the beginning of fiscal 2000 (in thousands):

w022 2000

Net income (loss) as reported before cumulative effect of
accountingchange .......... ... . . . .. i i $(170,481) $(98,676) $120,510
Amortization of goodwill, netoftax ............. ... ... ... .. 6,821 7,047 2,278
Pro forma netincome (I088) .. ...t $(163,660) $(91,629) $122,788

In August 2001 the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, or SEAS 144. SFAS 144 supercedes SFAS 121, “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of” and the accounting and
reporting provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations—
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS 144 establishes a single
accounting model for assets to be disposed of by sale whether previously held and used or newly acquired.

SFAS No. 144 retains the provisions of APB No. 30 for presentation of discontinued operations in the income
statement, but broadens the presentation to include a component of an entity. The Company will adopt SFAS 144
effective November 1, 2002. The Company is currently in the process of determining the anticipated impact of
adopting the provisions of SFAS 144,
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In July 2002 the FASB approved Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”, or SFAS 146. SFAS 146 addresses the financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with an exit activity, including restructuring, or with a disposal of long-
lived assets. Exit activities include, but are not limited to, eliminating or reducing product lines, terminating
employees and contracts and relocating manufacturing facilities or personnel. SFAS 146 specifies that a
company will record a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity only when that liability is
incurred and can be measured at fair value. Therefore, commitment to an exit plan or a plan of disposal expresses
only management’s intended future actions and, therefore, does not meet the requirement for recognizing a
liability and the related expense. SFAS 146 is effective prospectively for exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002. The effect of adoption of SFAS 146 is dependent on the Company’s related activities
subsequent to the date of adoption.

Note 2—Acquisitions

In August 2001, the Company completed a merger with IMS, issuing approximately 7.2 million shares of
common stock in exchange for all of the outstanding common stock of IMS. In addition, outstanding options to
purchase IMS common stock were converted into options to purchase approximately 2.1 million shares of
Credence common stock. This transaction was accounted for as a pooling of interests and, therefore, all prior
period consolidated financial statements presented, and the consolidated financial statements as of October 31,
2001 and for the year then ended, were restated as if the merger took place at the beginning of such periods.

IMS had a calendar fiscal year and, accordingly, the IMS statement of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2000 has been combined with the Credence statement of operations for the fiscal years ended
October 31, 2000. In order to conform IMS’s year end to Credence’s fiscal year end, the consolidated statement
of operations for fiscal 2001 includes the results of operations of IMS for two months (May and June 2001) in
each of the quarters ended April 30, 2001 and July 31, 2001. Accordingly, for fiscal 2001, Credence’s fiscal first
quarter includes the IMS results of operations for the three month period ended March 31, 2001, the second fiscal
quarter includes the IMS results of operations for the three month period ended June 30, 2001, the third fiscal
quarter includes the IMS results of operations for the three month peried ended July 31, 2001, and the fourth
fiscal quarter includes the IMS results of operations for the three months period ended October 31, 2001,

Separate results of operations for the years ended October 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Net sales Net loss Net sales  Net income
Credence .......... ... i $250,182 $(88,210) $682,138 $117,510
IMS 51,536 (10,466) 75,213 3,000
Combined ........ ... ... .. ... .., $301,718 $(98,676) $757,351 $120,510

In January 2001 and February 2001, Credence acquired Dimensions Consulting, Inc., or DCI, and the
principal assets of Rich Rabkin & Associates, Inc., or Rabkin, respectively. DCI specializes in providing
interface solutions for the semiconductor test and development market through ATE board design and test socket
systems. Rabkin specializes in providing interface solutions and test head positioning devices for the
semiconductor test market through its patented solution for high parallel memory testing. DCI and Rabkin were
integrated into the Memory Products Division to offer test solutions, which the Company believes increase
manufacturing efficiencies and provide faster time to market for its customers. These transactions were
accounted for as purchases and accordingly, the accompanying financial statements include the results of
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operations of DCI and Rabkin subsequent to the acquisition dates. The total purchase price of $13.5 million
consisted of $13.3 million paid in cash at the closing and the cancellation of $0.2 million in existing receivables.
Credence also created a $1.5 million deferred tax liability through the accounting for the acquisitions.
Additionally, the Company agreed to make payments to the employees of DCI and Rabkin based on the
attainment of performance criteria for their respective businesses and the business of the Memory Products
Division for a period of two years following the acquisition. These payments have been recorded as
compensation expense as they have been incurred. The net tangible assets purchased were approximately

$0.8 million.

The total purchase cost of the DCI and Rabkin acquisitions were as follows (in thousands):

Cash paid ... .. e $13,286
Deferred tax liability ........... ... o 1,491
Cancelled receivable .. ... ... ... e 214

TOtal PUICRASE COSE . . . o vttt ittt e ettt ettt et et e e $14,991

The purchase price allocation is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Useful
Annual Lives
Amount Amortization (Years)

Purchase Price Allocation: :
Tangible net assets . ... ....v ottt e $ 806 — —

Intangible assets acquired:
Assembled workforce ........... ... .. ... ... 545 $ 182 3
Developed technology ......... ... .. ... ... ... ... 2,236 559 4
Customer istS ..ot e 3,347 669 5
Goodwill ... . 8,057 1,612 5
Total purchase price allocation ................... $14,991 $3,022

A valuation of the purchased assets was undertaken to assist the Company in determining the fair value of
each identifiable intangible asset and in allocating the purchase price among the acquired assets. The intangible
assets, consisting primarily of developed technology, assembled workforce, customer lists and goodwill, were
assigned a value of $14.2 million and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives, ranging from three to
five years.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 the Company recorded a $5.1 million charge for the impairment of the
remaining goodwill and intangible assets associated with the acquisition of DCI in January 2001. This
impairment was based on the planned sale of the subsidiary to its management team effective November 1, 2002.

In May 2000, Credence acquired TMT, Inc., a company involved in the design and manufacture of linear
and mixed signal and RF test systems for high volume, production testing of analog integrated circuits. The
transaction was accounted for as a purchase and accordingly, the accompanying financial statements include the
results of operations of TMT subsequent to the acquisition date. The total purchase price of $80.0 million
included consideration of approximately $70.0 million in cash and the assumption of 1.2 million TMT stock
options valued at approximately $10.0 million. Additionally, Credence created a $13.2 million deferred tax
liability through the accounting for the acquisition. The net tangible assets purchased were approximately
$10.2 million. '
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The total purchase cost of TMT is as follows (in thousands):

Cash paid .. . $69,981
Deferred tax liability ........ ... . i 13,217
Assumption of TMT OpHONS . ... ..ottt e e e 9,995

Total purchase Cost . ... ... .t e $93,193

The purchase price allocation is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Useful
Annual Lives
Amount  Amortization (Years)

Purchase Price Allocation:

Tangible Net @ssets . ... oot e e $10,167 — —

Deferred compensation ..., 8,362 $ 3,041 2.75

Intangible assets acquired: .
Developed technology ........... ... ... 23,498 2,350 10
Assembled workforce . .......... ... .. . ... ... 1,439 480 3
Customer relationships . ........... . ... ... 6,052 1,513 4
Tradename ................. e e 2,053 411 5
In-process research and development .................. 8,282 — —
Goodwill ........ S P 33,340 3,334 10

Total purchase price allocation ................... $93,193  $11,129

A valuation of the purchased assets was undertaken to assist the Company in determining the fair value of
each identifiable intangible asset and in allocating the purchase price among the acquired assets, including the
portion of the purchase price attributed to in-process research and development projects. Standard valuation
procedures and techniques were utilized in determining the fair value of the acquired in-process research and
development. To determine the value of the technology in the development stage, the Company considered,
among other factors, the stage of development of each project, the time and resources needed to complete each
project, expected income and associated risks. Associated risks included the inherent difficulties and
uncertainties in completing the project and thereby achieving technological feasibility, and the risks related to the
viability of and potential changes to future target markets. The analysis resulted in $8.3 million of the purchase
price being charged to acquired in-process research and development. The IPR&D acquired from TMT consists
of products and projects related to analog and radio frequency test products. These products and projects are
aimed at the development of the ASL 3000 products. The Company estimated that these projects varied in terms
of completion from 50% to 85% completed based on research and development complexity, costs, and time
expended to date relative to the expected remaining costs and time to reach technological feasibility. The
intangible assets, consisting primarily of developed technology, assembled workforce, and goodwill, were
assigned a value of $66.4 million and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives, ranging from three to
ten years. The TMT products and projects are integrated into the Company’s Mobile Products Group.

The deferred compensation amount, represents the intrinsic value of the unvested stock options assumed in
the transaction. The useful life is the weighted average remaining future vesting period of the unvested options.

In August 2000, Credence acquired Modulation Instruments, Inc., or MI, a company involved in the design
and manufacture of radio frequency testing products. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase and

accordingly, the accompanying financial statements include the results of operations of MI subsequent to the
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acquisition date. The total purchase price of $20.5 million was paid in cash. Additionally, Credence created a
$1.9 million deferred tax liability through the accounting for the acquisition. The net tangible assets purchased
were approximately $1.9 million.

The total purchase cost of MI is as follows (in thousands):

Cash paid . ... oo e $20,497
Deferred tax liability ... ... ... . e 1,903
Total PUrChase COSt . .. .o v vttt e $22,400

The purchase price allocation is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Useful
Annual Lives
Amount Amortization (Years)

Purchase Price Allocation:

Tangible net assets ... ...t $ 1,891 — —_
Intangible assets acquired:
Developed technology ...........cooviivinvnn... 3,419 $ 855 4
Assembled workforce ........... ... ... s 477 159 3
In-process research and development .................. 3,313 — —
Patents . ... e 862 172 5
Goodwill ... ... . 12,438 3,106 4
Total purchase price allocation ................... $22,400 $4,292

A valuation of the purchased assets was undertaken to assist the Company in determining the fair value of
each identifiable intangible asset and in allocating the purchase price among the acquired assets, including the
portion of the purchase price attributed to in-process research and development projects. Standard valuation
procedures and techniques were utilized in determining the fair value of the acquired in-process research and
development. To determine the value of the technology in the development stage, the Company considered,
among other factors, the stage of development of each project, the time and resources needed to complete each
project, expected income and associated risks. Associated risks included the inherent difficulties and
uncertainties in completing the project and thereby achieving technological feasibility, and the risks related to the
viability of and potential changes to future target markets. The analysis resulted in approximately $3.3 million of
the purchase price being charged to acquired in-process research and development. The [PR&D acquired from
MI consists of products and projects related to radio frequency tests products. These products and projects are
aimed at the development of the Modulated Vector Network Analyzer instrument in various forms including the
ASL 3000 product. The Company estimated that these projects varied in terms of completion from 70% to 84%
completed based on research and development complexity, costs, and time expended to date relative to the
expected remaining costs and time to reach technological feasibility. The expected completion dates of these
projects range from completed to late fiscal 2002. The intangible assets, consisting primarily of developed
technology, assembled workforce, and goodwill, were assigned a value of $17.2 million and are being amortized
over their estimated useful lives, ranging from three to five years. The MI products and projects are integrated
into the Company’s Mobile Products Group.

In August 2000, Credence acquired its European distribution companies. Credence Europa, or Europa, was
purchased from its management team for $8.4 million in cash. Europa distributes, services and supports the
Company’s products in Europe and the Middle East. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase and
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accordingly, the accompanying financial statements include the results of operations of Europa subsequent to the
acquisition date. The net tangible assets purchased were approximately $3.1 million. The intangible assets,
consisting primarily of customer relationships, assembled workforce, and goodwill, were assigned a value of
$5.3 million and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives, ranging from three to four years.

In October 2000, Credence acquired New Millennia Solutions, Inc., or NMS, a company involved in the
design and manufacture of native test environment Rambus RDRAM memory and module test products and
application specific test products. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase and accordingly, the
accompanying financial statements include the results of operations of NMS subsequent to the acquisition date.
The total purchase price of $11.3 million consisted of $7.3 million paid in cash at the closing and the cancellation
of $4.0 million in existing equity investments in NMS. Credence also created a $1.9 million deferred tax liability
through the accounting for the acquisition. Additionally, the Company agreed to make payments to the
employees of NMS based on the attainment of performance criteria for this division for a period of three years
following the acquisition. No payments were accrued in fiscal 2000 or 2001. The net tangible assets purchased
were approximately $2.2 million.

The total purchase cost of the NMS merger is as follows (in thousands):

Cash paid ... ... $11,265
Deferred tax lability .. ... ... . e 1,881
Total purchase Cost . . ... .. vt $13,146

The purchase price allocation is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Useful
Annual Lives
Amount  Amortization (Years)

Purchase Price Allocation:

Tangible Net aSsets . ... .. ..vvvenree e .. $ 2215 — —
Intangible assets acquired:
Developed technology ............ ... . ... ... ... 4,064 $1,016 4
Assembled workforce .............. .. .. o oL 313 78 4
In-process research and development .................. 200 — —
Patents ....... ... . 324 65 5
Goodwill ... ... .. 6,030 1,508 4
Total purchase price allocation ................... $13,146 $2,667

A valuation of the purchased assets was undertaken to assist the Company in determining the fair value of
each identifiable intangible asset and.in allocating the purchase price among the acquired assets, including the
portion of the purchase price attributed to in-process research and development projects. Standard valuation
procedures and techniques were utilized in determining the fair value of the acquired in-process research and
development. To determine the value of the technology in the development stage, the Company considered,
among other factors, the stage of development of each project, the time and resources needed to complete each
project, expected income and associated risks. Associated risks included the inherent difficulties and
uncertainties in completing the project and thereby achieving technological feasibility, and the risks related to the
viability of and potential changes to future target markets. The analysis resulted in $0.2 million of the purchase
price being charged to acquired in-process research and development. The IPR&D acquired from NMS consists
of products and projects related to application specific testing products, or ASTS. These products and projects

67




CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

were aimed at the development of an ASTS tester. The Company estimated that these projects were
approximately 30% completed based on research and development complexity, costs, and time expended to date
relative to the expected remaining costs and time to reach technological feasibility. The intangible assets,
consisting primarily of developed technology, assembled workforce, and goodwill, were assigned a value of
$10.7 million and were being amortized over their estimated useful lives, ranging from four to five years.

In the fourth fiscal quarter of 2001 the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately
$6.6 million for the write-down of the remaining NMS goodwill and intangible assets. See Note 3 for further
discussion.

In conjunction with the acquisition of IMS in August 2001, Fluence was merged with IMS. The integration
of Fluence with IMS resulted in the write-down of $2.3 million of the goodwill and purchased technology
intangible assets of Opmaxx. This impairment was based on product decisions for the newly combined
operations of Fluence and IMS.

Note 3—Special Charges
The Company recorded a charge of $9.4 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 related to excess and
obsolete inventory which was included in the Cost of Goods sold.

In addition, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 the Company recorded special charges as operating expenses
as noted.below:

Amount
Special charges included in operating expenses in fiscal 2002 (in thousands):

Restructuring Charges _
Employee severance Charges .............oveuiinnennneunnnnunnnnens $ 5,694
Asset disposals . ... ... 9,107
Operating leases written off ......... ... ... . ... .. i 4,159

Other Special Charges

Write down of private investments .. ............. ... 6,391
Goodwill and intangible assets associated withDCI .. ................... 5,134
Total special charges included in operating expenses ................ $30,485

These charges were associated with headcount reductions and facility consolidations the Company
implemented in the fourth fiscal quarter. During the fourth fiscal quarter, the Company reduced headcount by
approximately 225 heads. Of this total about 65 were in manufacturing, 25 were in R&D and about 135 were in
SG&A. As part of this reduction the Company discontinued its next-generation DRAM IMS product and closed
the associated IMS facilities in Switzerland and Germany. The Company also began taking steps to exit the IMS
facility in Beaverton, Oregon and consolidate these employees into its facility in Hillsboro, Oregon.
Approximately $4.1 million of this charge required cash during the quarter, $4.2 million will require cash over
the remaining lease terms and the remaining $10.7 million are non-cash write-downs.

The Company wrote-down its private investments in the fourth fiscal quarter of 2002 by approximately

$6.4 million. These impairment charges are due to the decline in the fair value of these equity and debt
investments and were judged to be other-than-temporary.
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In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 the Company recorded a $5.1 million charge for the impairment of the
remaining goodwill and intangible assets associated with the acquisition of DCI in January 2001. This
impairment was based on the planned sale of the subsidiary to its management team as of October 31, 2002.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2001 the Company recorded a charge of $45.0 million for the write-down of
excess inventory as well as a charge of approximately $2.0 million for severance payments and asset disposals
associated with headcount reductions the Company implemented in February 2001. These charges were recorded
as a result of the Company’s response to a major downturn in the business outlook for the ATE and related
semiconductor and semiconductor equipment industries in 2001. In the third quarter of fiscal 2001 the Company
recorded a further $1.0 miltion for severance payments and asset disposals associated with headcount reductions
the Company implemented in May and August 2001. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 the Company recorded a
further $0.2 million for headcount reductions and a further $38.0 million for the write-down of excess inventory.
The Company reduced headcount by more than 400 people during the fiscal year across all functional areas.
Severance payments have been distributed during the year and the remaining accruals at October 31, 2001 are not
significant.

In the second and third quarters of fiscal 2001 the Company recorded charges of approximately $3.2 million
related to fees and expenses associated with the acquisition of IMS. A further $16.9 million was recorded in the
fourth quarter for the closing of the IMS transaction and the integration of their operations with Credence and
Credence’s subsidiary, Fluence. The elements of the IMS acquisition charges are as follows (in thousands):

Fees and expenses (investment bankers, legal, accounting, D&O insurance, travel, etc.) .... $ 9,951
Write-down of tangible and intangible assets .......... ... .. ... il 7,501
Lease and liability accruals . ......... ... ..o, e 1,390
Employee termination benefits . ...... .. ... . e 1,272

$20,114

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 the Company recorded a $6.6 million charge for the impairment of the
remaining unamortized intangible assets associated with the acquisition of NMS in October 2000. This
impairment was based on significant NMS employee turnover in fiscal 2001 as well as a change in the
technological direction of the remaining research and development project that originated in NMS. This write-
down applies to the ATE portion of the Company’s business.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 the Company recorded a $2.3 million charge for the abandonment of the
former TMT facility in Sunnyvale, California as these operations were integrated into its Fremont, California
facilities. This charge consisted of $1.8 million in estimated future rental payments to be paid through February
2005 and $0.5 million for asset and leasehold improvement disposals.

Note 4—Industry Segments and Concentration of Risks

Credit Risk, Product Line and Segment/Geographic Data

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of investments in cash equivalents, short-term and long-term investments and trade receivables. The
Company is exposed to credit risks in the event of default by the financial institutions or customers to the extent

of the amount recorded on the balance sheet. See Note 1 for a description of these investment assets at
October 31, 2002 and 2001.
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The Company and its subsidiaries operate in two industry segments: the design, development, manufacture,
sale and service of ATE used in the production of semiconductors; and, as a result of acquisitions made in fiscal
years 1997 through 1999, the design, development, sale and service of software that assists in the development of
test programs used in ATE. Revenues from software were not material to the Company’s operations in fiscal
years 2002, 2001 and 2000, representing less than 4% of net sales.

The Company’s net sales by product line consisted of:

Year Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000
Mixed Signal . ... 51% 61% 74%
LOgIC oot 5 4 11
MEmMOLY ..o e 18 19 8
Service and sSOftware ... .... ... ... . . e e ﬁ LG 7
Total net Sales . . ..o e e _1_@% 1_00% 1)9_%

The Company sells its products primarily to distributors and semiconductor manufacturers located in the
United States, Asia Pacific and Europe. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and
generally does not require collateral. The Company maintains reserves for potential credit losses and such losses
historically have been both immaterial and within management’s expectations.

Export sales, which are denominated in U.S. dollars and represent substantially all of the Company’s
international sales, represent sales to the Company’s customers primarily throughout Asia Pacific and Europe.
Sales by the Company to customers in different geographic areas, expressed as a percentage of revenue, for the
periods ended were:

Year Ended Octeber 31,
2002 2001 2000
DOmME St . . e e 45% 39% 26%
Asia Pacific ... ... e 42 38 66
BUIOpE ..o e e 1323 8

Total net Sales . .. .o oo @% @% E)g%

One customer, Spirox Corporation (a distributor in Taiwan), accounted for 20%, 13% and 42% of the
Company’s net sales in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. One end-user customer, headquartered in the
USA, accounted for 20% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal 2002. Two end-user customers, headquartered in
Europe, accounted for 13% and 11% of the Company’s net sales respectively, in fiscal 2001. One end-user
customer, headquartered in Taiwan, accounted for 17% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal 2000. This
concentration subjects a significant portion of the Company’s receivables and future revenues to the risks
associated with doing business in foreign countries, including political and economic instability, currency
exchange rate fluctuations and regulatory changes. Disruption of business in Asia caused by the previously
mentioned factors could have a material impact on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Note 5—L.ease Obligations and Gther Commitmemnts

The Company leases its facilities and some equipment under operating leases that expire periodically
through 2007.
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The approximate future minimum lease payments of operating leases not written off for facilities and
equipment at October 31, 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Committed Leases Written Net Estimated
Gross Lease  Off in Special  Future Lease

Payments Charges Expense
2003 L $ 5,233 $2,680 $2,553
2004 e . 3,626 1,500 2,126
2005 L 1,356 513 843
2000 ... [ 489 0 489
2007 204 0 204

$10,908 $4,693 $6,215

Rent expense was approximately $ 5,265,000, $6,610,000 and $6,258,000 for the years ended October 31,
2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. -

The Company has an agreement with a non-related leasing company whereby the Company issued a
guaranty in favor of a bank with respect to certain obligations of the leasing company to the bank. Under this
agreement, the leasing company agreed to grant to the Company a security interest to secure the obligations of
the leasing company as a result of any payments by the Company pursuant to the guaranty. At October 31, 2002
and 2001, the debt of the leasing company subject to this guaranty was $5,000,000 and $8,750,000, respectively.

Note 6—Convertible Subordinated Notes

In September 1997, the Company sold $115 million of 51/4% convertible subordinated notes (the “Notes”)
due September 2002 through a private placement. The Notes were unsecured obligations of the Company and
were subordinated to all present and future senior indebtedness of the Company. The Notes were convertible into
common stock of the Company at an initial conversion price of $34.58 per share.

In September 2000, the remaining Notes were called for redemption by the Company. Of the $95.0 million
principal amount of Notes outstanding, approximately $60,000 of the Notes was redeemed for cash while the
remaining Notes were converted by the holders into 2,792,421 shares of Common Stock.

Note 7—Stockholders’ Equity
Deferred Compensation

The Company recorded $1.0 million of deferred compensation and additional paid-in capital in fiscal 2001
upon the issuance of certain stock options to IMS employees before shareholder approval was obtained for the
authorization of these shares. This amount is being amortized using the straight-line method over an expected life
of four years.

The Company recorded $8.3 million of deferred compensation and additional paid-in capital upon the
assumption of the outstanding TMT options in May 2000. The deferred compensation was being amortized using
the straight-line method over an expected life of 2.75 years and was fully amortized in fiscal 2002.

During the periods ended October 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, the Company recognized compensation
expense related to the amortization of deferred compensation intangibles of $1.9 million, $3.2 million, and

$3.9 million, respectively
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Stock Option Plans and Stock Purchase Plan

The Company grants options to employees and members of the Board of Directors under the 1993 Stock
Option Plan (the “1993 Plan”). The 1993 Plan is divided into two separate components: (i) the Discretionary
Option Grant Program and (ii) the Automatic Option Grant Program. Options granted under the Discretionary
Option Grant Program will have an exercise price equal to 100% of the fair market value of such shares on the
date of grant, and a maximum term of ten years, and are exercisable over a vesting period, generally four to
five years. Under the Automatic Option Grant Program, options are granted automatically at periodic intervals to
non-employee members of the Board at an exercise price equal to 100% of the fair market value of the option
shares on the date of grant and a maximum term of ten years, and are exercisable over a vesting period, generally
four years.

In August 2001, the Company completed a merger with IMS, issuing approximately 7.2 million shares of
common stock in exchange for all of the outstanding common stock of IMS. In addition, outstanding options to
purchase IMS common stock were converted into options to purchase approximately 2.1 million shares of
Credence common stock.

On August 9, 2000, the Board of Directors authorized the Company’s Supplemental Stock Option Plan and
authorized 500,000 shares for issuance. This additional reserve of shares shall supplement the Company’s 1993
Stock Option Plan and is for issuance to individuals employed by the Company who are neither officers of the
Company nor members of the Board. On November 27, 2000 the Board of Directors authorized an additional
500,000 shares for issuance under the Supplemental Stock Option Plan. In addition, on November 27, 2001, the
Board of Directors authorized an additional 500,000 shares for issuance under the Supplemental Stock Option
Plan.

On March 22, 2000, the stockholders approved an amendment to the Company’s 1993 Plan that
implemented an automatic share increase feature pursuant to which the number of shares available for issuance
under the 1993 Plan will automatically increase on the first trading day of each fiscal year (the “First Trading
Day”), beginning with the 1999 fiscal year and continuing through the fiscal year 2003, by an amount equal to
three and a half percent (3.5%) of the total number of shares outstanding on the last trading day of the
immediately preceding fiscal year, but no such annual increase is to exceed 3,000,000 shares.
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A summary of the activity under all plans, as defined below (in thousands, except per share amounts) is as

follows:
Cptions Weighted
Available Number of Average
for Grant Options Price Per Exercise
) ‘ (Authorized) Outstanding Share Price
Balance at October 31,1999 . ................. 1,354 7,998 $0.27-21.78 $13.14
Increase in authorized shares . ................. 2,547 — — —
Options granted . ............ ... ... ... .... (3,924) 3,924  $4.98-67.99 $31.85
Optionscanceled ........................... 315 (315) $1.07-67.99 $17.58
Optionsexercised ........................... — (1,393) $0.27-22.22 $ 9.61
Optionsexpired ............. .. ... ... ..., 3) — — —
Balance at October 31,2000 .................. 289 10,214 $0.27-67.99 $20.32
Increase in authorized shares .................. 2,337 —_ — —
Optionsgranted ............................ (4,282) 4,282  $8.61-24.39 $17.14
Options canceled ................ PR, 2,071 (2,071) $0.27-67.99 $22.51
Options eXercised ... ..........oinrinnin.. — (697) $0.27-22.22 $10.99
1 Options expired ............. ... ... ... ..., 2n —_ — —
Balance at October 31,2001 .................. 394 11,728 $1.07-67.99 $19.16
Increase in authorized shares .................. 2,618 — — —
Options granted .. ............ .. cc.vviiun... (3,536) 3,536 $7.00-20.32  $14.29
Options canceled ........................... 1,271 (1,271)  $1.64-65.75 $26.38
Options exercised .. ....... ... vuuniin... — (475) $1.64-2222 $ 9.05
Optionsexpired .......... ... ... ... ..u... (89) — — —
Balance at October 31,2002 .................. 658 13,518 $1.07-67.99  $17.56

The Company has reserved for issuance approximately 14,176,000 shares of common stock in connection
with the stock option plans.

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding and exercisable at October 31, 2002
’ (in thousands except per share amounts):

Options Exercisable

. . Weighted
Options Qutstanding Aslegragee Weighted Options Weighted
Options Remaining Average Currently Average
Range of QOutstanding at Contractual Life Exercise Exercisable net Exercise

Exercise Prices QOct. 31, 2002 (years) Price QOct. 31, 2002 Price
$ 1.07-$15.18 5,976,958 7.78 $11.47 2,839,769 $10.05
$15.68-$20.63 4,604,479 8.00 $17.77 2,536,282 $17.80
$20.66-$67.99 2,936,712 751 $29_63 1,866,360 $29_03

$ 1.07-$67.99 13,518,149 7.79 $17.56 7,242,411 $17.66

These options will expire, if not exercised, at specific dates from July 2003 to October 2012.

In 1994, the Company adopted the 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “1994 Plan™), which provides
eligible employees with the opportunity to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock. The purchase price is
85% of the fair market value per share of common stock on the date on which the purchase period begins or on
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the date on which the purchase period ends, whichever is lower. Approximately 282,358, 201,342 and

107,718 shares were issued pursuant to the plan in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Approximately

30,810 shares were issued pursuant to the final purchase of the IMS Stock Purchase Plan in 2002. At October 31,
2002, approximately 549,306 shares were reserved for issuance under the 1594 Plan. ,

The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account for its employee stock options because, as
discussed below, the alternative fair value accounting requires the use of option valuation models that were not
developed for use in valuing employee stock options. Because the exercise price of the Company’s employee
stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of the grant, no compensation expense
is recognized in the Company’s financial statements.

In calculating pro forma compensation, the fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes options pricing model. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use
in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In
addition, the Black-Scholes model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected
stock price volatility. Because the Company’s stock-based awards to employees have characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of its stock-based awards to its employees. The fair value of each option grant is estimated
assuming no expected dividends and the following weighted-average assumptions:

2062 2001 20060

Expected life (years) . ...t 6.64 6.39 6.48
Expected stock price volatility ............ ..o 0.77 0.78 0.77
Risk-freeinterestrate ............ it ionnn i 3.55% 4.77% 5.06%

The grant date weighted-average fair value of options granted during the year was $10.19, $12.35 and
$26.22 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The fair value of issuances under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is estimated on the issuance date using
the Black-Scholes model assuming no expected dividends and the following weighted-average assumptions for
issuances made in 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 20061 2000

Expectedlife (years) .. ... 0.50 0.50 0.50
Expected stock price volatility . ......... ... .. it 0.75 0.85 0.89
Risk-free Interest rate .. ..........oouiiieinnnneii e, 1.42% 1.75% 5.47%

The weighted-average fair value of purchase rights granted during the year was $4.77, $7.93 and $13.87 for
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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For pro forma purposes, the estimated fair value of the Company’s stock-based awards to its employees is

amortized over the option’s vesting period and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan’s six-month purchase period.
The Company’s pro forma information is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) asreported .................... $(170,481) $ (98,676) $120,510
Pro forma netincome (loss) ..................... $(211,780) $(129,254) $ 98,308
Basic net income (loss) per share as reported ........ $ (281 $  (1.65) $ 218
Pro forma basic net income (loss) per share ......... $  3.50 $ @17 $ 178
Diluted net income (loss) per share as reported . . .. .. $ (28D $ (165 $ 200
Pro forma diluted net income (loss) per share . . ... ... $ (350 $ 217 $ 159

Rights Plan

On June 1, 1998, the Company adopted the Credence Systems Corporation Stockholder Rights Plan (the
“Rights Plan”). Pursuant to the Rights Plan, rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each
share of Credence common stock, par value $0.001 per share (“Right”) of the Company held by stockholders of
record as of the close of business on June 22, 1998. The Rights will expire on June 22, 2008, unless redeemed or
exchanged. Under the Rights Plan, each Right initially will entitle the registered holder to buy one unit of a share
of preferred stock for $165.00. The Rights will become exercisable only if a person or group (other than
stockholders currently owning 15% of Credence common stock) acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more
of Credence’s common stock, or commences a tender offer or exchange offer upon consummation of which such
person or group would beneficially own 15% or more of Credence’s common stock.

Nete 8—Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a 401(k) retirement savings plan for its full-time domestic employees, which
allows them to contribute up to 20% of their pre-tax wages subject to IRS limits. The Company’s contributions to
this plan have been $1,074,000, $1,000,000 and $1,467,000 in fiscal years ended October 31, 2002, 2001, and
2000, respectively.

The Company maintains a profit sharing plan for those domestic employees that are not otherwise eligible for
incentive-based compensation. Contributions to this plan are subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors.
The Company made contributions of $-0-, $824,000 and $6,085,000 in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In July 1996 and July 2000, the Company implemented Executive Deferred Compensation Plans for the
purpose of providing eligible employees with a program for deferred compensation earned during employment.
The plans are funded deferred compensation arrangements for the benefit of certain highly compensated
employees of the Company. Under the terms of the plans, eligible employees of the Company may make
voluntary contributions to the plans as a percentage of compensation, but not in excess of limitations stated in the
plans. These contributions are invested in a variety of investment funds for the intended use of paying plan
benefits when participating employees become eligible to receive such benefits under the terms of the plans. The
Company has not and currently does not match employee contributions and does not intend to do so in the near
future. '
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Note 9—Income Taxes

The tax provision (benefit) consists of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000
Federal:
L]0 4 = 1| O $(29,352) $(48,976) $84,119
Deferred . ..ot 29,721 (3,383) (5,122)
369  (52,359) 78,997
State:
L CUITEIE o s e — 10,565
Deferred . ..ot 6,703 (5,160) (751)
6,703 (5,160) 9,814
Foreign:
L1y 1 | 155 614 390
Income tax provision (benefit) .............. ... ... ... . ..., $ 7,227 $(56,905) $89,201

Pre-tax income (loss) from foreign operations was approximately $(4,755,000), $1,665,000 and $878,000 in

2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Reconciliation between the Company’s effective tax rate 4.4% in 2002, (37%) in 2001 and 37% in 2000 and

the U.S. statutory rate of 35% is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended QOctober 31,
2002 2001 2000

Tax computed at StAtULOTY TALE ..\ v vvv vt eeeeeeaer e, $(57,271) $(54,455) $84,448
State income tax (net of federal benefit) ........................ 6,703 (6,709) 6,426
USlossesnotbenefited ............. ... ... . i ... 54,995 — —
Foreign sales corporation benefit ............................. — — (6,352)
Non-deductible in-process research and development ............. — —_ 4,128
Non-deductible goodwill amortization ......................... 4,355 5,223 1,523
Research and developmentcredits . ..., 961)  (1,230) (802)
Other IteImS .. ..ot e e e e (594) 266 (170)
Income tax provision (benefit) ............ ... ... ... oo $ 7,227 $(56,905) $89,201
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Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets are as follows (in thousands):

October 31,
2002 2001

Deferred tax assets: '

Accounting for inVentories .. ...ttt it $ 39,667 $ 23,540
Allowance for doubtful accounts . ............ .. 1,582 3,269
Accruals not currently deductible .. ......... .. o 20,894 11,614
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards .. ........... ... ..o, 8,781 6,389
Book over tax depreciation . .. ... ... i 3,971 2,160
Deferred revenue/profit/commissions .............c.. i, 1,471 3,700

Total deferred tax aSSes . ... ot i it e 76,366 50,672

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets .............. .. v, (68,131) (2,044)

8,235 48,628
Deferred tax liability:

Intangibles .. ... .. (8,235) (12,204)
Net deferred tax asSets . .. ... ur oot e e $ — $36424

At October 31, 2002, the Company has unused net operating loss and research tax credit carryforwards for
federal income tax purposes of approximately $14.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively, which expire in 2004
through 2022. Utilization of the federal net operating loss carryforwards at October 31, 2002 is limited to
approximately $1.4 million annually under the provisions of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended. Utilization of the research tax credit carryforwards is similarly limited.

Realization of the net deferred tax assets is dependent on the Company generating sufficient taxable income
in future years in appropriate tax jurisdictions to obtain reversals of te.mp‘orary differences, net operating loss and
tax credit carryforwards. Due to uncertainties in the timing and amount of such realization of its deferred tax
assets, the company has provided a valuation allowance equal to its net deferred assets at October 31,2002. There
was a net increase of $66.1 million in the valuation allowance in fiscal 2002, a net decrease of $0.3 million in
fiscal 2001 and a net decrease of $0.6 million in fiscal 2000.

Note 10—Comntingencies

In July 1998, the Company received a written allegation from inTEST IP Corporation and its patent licensee
inTEST Corporation, or inTEST, that it was infringing a patent held by inTEST. On December 15, 2000, inTEST
filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware against the Company, alleging
infringement of inTEST U.S. patent number 4,589,815 and seeking damages and injunctive relief. In April 2001
the Company was served with the complaint and since that date discovery has commenced. In March 2002, the
court set the trial for this action for November 11, 2003. In addition to direct costs and diversion of resources that
may result, the Company may be obligated to indemnify third parties for costs related to this allegation.

In April 2002, Reptron Electronics, Inc. a supplier of certain electronic components to the Company, filed a
complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of Oregon, alleging that the Company had breached a
contract to purchase certain components ordered from Reptron during 2000. The complaint seeks damages of
approximately $3.9 million. Discovery has commenced in this action.

The Company currently believes that the ultimate amount of liability, if any, for any pending claims of any
type (either alone or combined) will not materially affect its financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
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However, the ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertain, and either unfavorable or favorable outcomes could

have a material negative impact. Regardless of outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on the Company
because of defense costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

Note 11—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income and changes thereto consist of (in thousands):

Year Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000
Beginning balance income (loss), netoftax ......................... $4,854 $2,097 $ (794)
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities, netof tax ........ (1,396) 373 3,313
Currency translation adjustment, netoftax ......................... 385 2,384 (422)
Ending balance income (loss), net of tax of $-0-, $1,102, and $1,644,
TeSPECHVELY . .o e $ 3,843 $4,854 $2,097

As of October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, unrealized holding gains (losses) net of taxes were $2.0 million,
$3.4 million and $2.6 million, respectively.

Note 12—Related Party Transactions

Bernard V. Vonderschmitt, a director of the Company, is the founder and chairman of Xilinx, Inc. and
Dr. William G. Howard Jr., a director of the Company, is a director of Xilinx. For the years ended October 31,
2002, 2001, and 2000, the Company sold approximately $810,000, $536,000 and $3.1 million, respectively, of
products and services to Xilinx. The amounts receivable from Xilinx were approximately zero, zero and
$356,000 at October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Thomas Franz, a director of the Company, is a Corporate Vice President of Intel Corporation. For the years
ended Cctober 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company sold approximately $32.5 million, $18.3 million and
$39.0 million, of products and services to Intel. The amounts receivable from Intel were approximately
$1.8 million, $9.5 million and $1.6 million at October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Michael Bosworth, a director of the Company, is the former Executive Vice President of the Systems
Solutions Business of Cadence Design Systems (“Cadence”). Mr. Bosworth moved to a part-time role at Cadence
in November 2002. In May 2002, the Company announced the creation of a technology alliance with Cadence
with the initial goal of making the Company’s design-for-test software tools available through the Cadence sales
channel. No sales occurred through this agreement in fiscal 2002. In fiscal years 2000 and 2001, in certain
foreign markets, Cadence employees acted as sales agents for the Company. The Company reimbursed Cadence
for related costs incurred on Credence’s behalf, plus an administrative fee. Cadence continues to provide
facilities for certain domestic Company sales personnel. Charges for utilization of these facilities have been
reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations as Selling, General and Administrative
expense. For the years ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the costs of the above services provided by
Cadence totaled $228,463, $999,000 and $535,000, respectively. For the year ended October 31, 2001, the
Company sold approximately $359,000 of products and services to Cadence (none for the years ended
October 31, 2000, and 2002). The amounts receivable from Cadence were not significant..
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Note 13—Subsequent Events (Unaudited)

In January 2003 the Company announced the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of SZ Testsysteme
AG and SZ Testsysteme GmbH for $4.7 million in cash. The Credence-SZ division will operate with
approximately 135 employees from a facility located in Amerang, Germany and focus on the advanced analog,
power automotive, and communications markets. '

In November 2002, the Company announced it entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Optonics, Inc.,
or Optonics. Optonics, headquartered in Mountain View, California, with approximately 35 employees is a
leading technology supplier of integrated solutions for emission-based optical diagnostics and failure analysis.
The acquisition was an all-stock transaction pursuant to which Credence issued approximately 1.9 million shares
of its common stock for all of the outstanding shares of Optonics as well as options to purchase an additional
100,000 shares of Credence. The transaction closed on January 22, 2003.

In November 2002, the Company announced the planned sale of its subsidiary, Dimensions Consulting Inc.,

or DCI. The Company anticipates the transaction will close during the first fiscal quarter of 2003 with an
effective date of November 1, 2002.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

PART I

Item 10. Directors and Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item relating to the Company’s directors and nominees and disclosure
relating to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is included under the captions
“Election of Directors” and “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934” in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated herein by
reference. The information required by this item relating to the Company’s executive officers and key employees
is included under the caption “Executive Officers and Key Employees” in Part I of this Form 10-K Annual
Report.

Ttem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is included under the caption “Executive Compensation and Related
Information” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Itemn 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information required by this item is included under the caption “Ownership of Securities” in the Company’s
Proxy Statement for the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Eguity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of October 31, 2002 with respect to the shares of the
Company’s Common Stock that may be issued under the Company’s existing equity compensation plans. The
table does not include information with respect to shares subject to outstanding options granted under equity
compensation plans assumed by the Company in connection with mergers and acquisitions of the companies that
originally granted those options. Footnote (5) to the table sets forth the total number of shares of the Company’s
Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of those assumed options as of October 31, 2002, and the weighted
average exercise price of those options. No additional options may be granted under those assumed plans.

A B C
Number of Securities Remaining
Number of Securities Available for Future Issuance
to be Issued Weighted Average  Under Equity Compensation Plans
Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of (Excluding Securities Reflected
Plan Category Outstanding Options  Outstanding Options in Column A) (4)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved
by Shareholders (1)(3) ............ 10,447,677 $18.79 368,339
Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Shareholders (2) ... ... 1,194,761 $15.84 289,300

Total ........... .. 11,642,438 $18.49 657,639

(1) Consists of the 1993 Stock Option Plan (the “1993 Plan™).
(2) Consists solely of the Supplemental Stock Option Plan. Options under this Plan are not held by any directors
or executive officers of the Company.
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(3) Excludes employee stock purchase rights accruing under the 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Under
the 1994 Plan, each eligible employee may purchase up to 1,500 shares of Common Stock at semi-annual
intervals on February 14th and August 14th each year at a purchase price per share equal to 85% of the
lower of (i) the closing selling price per share of Common Stock on the employee’s entry date into the
offering period in which that semi-annual purchase date occurs or (ii) the closing selling price per share on
the semi-annual purchase date.

{4) Consists of shares available for future issuance under the Plans. As of October 31, 2002, an aggregate of
549,306 shdres of Common Stock were available for issuance under the 1994 Plan and 368,339 shares of
Common Stock were available for issuance under the 1993 Plan. However, pursuant to the automatic share
increase provisions of the 1994 Plan and the 1993 Plan, the number of shares reserved for each such plan
will automatically increase on the first trading day of each fiscal year over the term of the relevant plan by a
number of shares equal to one half 'of one percent (0.3%) and three and a half percent (3.5%), respectively,
of the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding on the last trading day of the immediately
preceding fiscal year. In no event, however, may any such annual increase to the share reserve of the 1994
Plan and 1993 Plan exceed 500,000 shares and 3,000,000 shares, respectively, as adjusted from time to time
to reflect any subsequent stock dividends or stock splits.

(5) The table does not include information for equity compensation plans assumed by the Company in

connection with mergers and acquisitions of the companies that originally established those plans. As of

..October 31, 2002, a total of 1,875,711 shares of the Company’s Common Stock were issuable upon exercise

of outstanding options under those assumed plans. The weighted average exercise price of those outstanding
options is $11.82 per share. No additional options may be granted-under those assumed plans.

A Supplemental Stock Option Plan (the “Supplemental Plan”) was implemented by the Board on August 9,
2000. The Supplemental Plan is a non-shareholder approved plan under which options may be granted to
employees of the Company (or any parent or subsidiary corporation) who are neither officers nor Board members
at the time of grant. 1,500,000 shares of Common Stock have been authorized by the Board for issuance under
the Supplemental Plan. All option grants will have an exercise price per share equal to the fair market value per
share of Common Stock on' the grant date. Each option will vest in installments over the optionee’s period of
service with the Company. The options will vest on an accelerated basis in the event the Company is acquired
and those options are not assumed or replaced by the acquiring entity. Each option will have a maximum term
(not to exceed 10 years) set by the plan administrator (either the Board or a Board committee) at the time of
grant, subject to earlier termination following the optionee’s cessation of employment. All options are non-
statutory options under the Federal tax law.

Share issuances under the 1993 Plan will not reduce or otherwise affect the number of shares of Common
Stock available for issuance under the Supplemental Plan, and share issuances under Supplemental Plan will not
reduce or otherwise affect the number of shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the 1993 Plan.

Rule 10b5-1 Stock Selling Plans

The Company has been informed that one of its executive officers, John R. Detwiler, has adopted a stock
selling plan under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, pursuant to which he
intends to sell shares of the Company’s common stock from time to time.

The term of Mr. Detwiler’s plan begins on April 1, 2003 and terminates on December 31, 2003. The plan
provides for sales of stock on a monthly basis subject to certain market prices. The plan will terminate if and
when an aggregate of 112,500 shares have been sold pursuant to the plan.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is included under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Based on their evaluation as of a date within 90 days
of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal
financial officer have concluded that its disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-14(c) and
15d-14(c) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), are effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that the Company file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities
and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

(b) Changes in internal controls. There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in
other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation.

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part of the Annual Report on Form 10-X:

1. Financial Statements. The following Consolidated Financial Statements of Credence Systems
Corporation are included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Page
Report of Emnst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors . . ....... .. ... i 48
Report of Arthur Andersen LLP, Independent Public Accountants . ...............cccuiiiinninon. 49
Consolidated Balance Sheets—October 31,2002 and 2001 . ... i 50
Consolidated Statements of Operations— Years Ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 20600 .............. 51
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity—Years Ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 .. .... 52
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years Ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 .............. 53
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ... .......... ittt ity 54

2. Financial Statement Schedule. The following financial statement schedule of Credence Systems
Corporation, for the years ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, is filed as part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of Credence
Systems Corporation:

EES

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ... ...ttt e 87

Schedules other than the one listed above have been omitted since they are either not required, are not
applicable or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or related
notes.

3. Exhibits. See Exhibit Index on page 93.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K. The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on November 27, 2002
announcing its proposed acquisition of Optonics, Inc. The Company filed a Current Report on Form §-K on
January 23, 2003 announcing the closing of such acquisition.

(c) See Exhibit Index on page 88.

(d) The following financial statement schedule of Credence Systems Corporation, for the years ended
October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, is filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of Credence Systems Corporation:

Page

Schedule II-—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts .. ......... it i e 87

Schedules other than the one listed above have been omitted since they are either not required, are not
applicable or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or related
notes.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on
January 28, 2003,

CREDENCE SYSTEMS CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: “fs/ GRrRaHAM J. SIDDALL

Graham J. Siddall
Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/  JOHN R, DETWILER

John R. Detwiler
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Graham J. Siddall and John R. Detwiler, and each of them, as his true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and re-substitution, for him and in his name, place
and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report on Form 10-K, and to file the
same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do
and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming that said attorneys-in-
fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature m R:n_e
/s/ GRAHAM J. SIDDALL Chairman of the Board of Directors January 28, 2003
Graham J. Siddall and Chief Executive Officer
/s/ JOHN R. DETWILER Senior Vice President, Chief Financial January 28, 2003
John R. Detwiler Officer and Secretary
/s/ WILLIAM G. HOWARD, JR. Director January 28, 2003

William G. Howard, Jr.

/s/ HENK J. EVENHUIS Director January 28, 2003
Henk J. Evenhuis

/s/  Jos C. HENKENS Director January 28, 2003
Jos C. Henkens
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Signature

/s/ BERNARD V. VONDERSCHMITT

Bernard V. Vonderschmiti

/s/  Jon D. TOMPKINS

Jon D. Tompkins

/s/ MICHAEL F. BOSWORTH

Michael F. Bosworth

/s/ THOMAS R. FRANZ

Thomas R, Franz
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Director
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January 28, 2003
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, Graham J. Siddall, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Credence Systems Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/  GRAHAM J. SIDDALL
Graham J. Siddall
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Date: January 28, 2003
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, John R. Detwiler, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-X of Credence Systems Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ JOHN R, DETWILER
John R, Detwiler
Senior Vice Presidemnt,
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Date: January 28, 2003
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Schedule IT

CREDEN CE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

YALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Balance at Balance at
Beginning of End of
Year Additions Write-offs Year

Year ended October 31, 2002 ) _ :

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... .................... $8,235 $ 899  $3,746 $5,388
Year ended October 31, 2001 o

Allowance for doubtful accounts ....................... $7.604 $1,182 $ 551  $8,235
Year ended October 31, 2000 '

Allowance for doubtful account . ... ..........covui.... $3,473 $4,647 $ 516  $7,604
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Exhibit

Number

21

2.2(1)

2.3(1)
2.4(1)
2.5(1)
2.6(1)
2.7(1)
2.8(8)

2.9(10)

2.10(20)

2.11(18)

2.12(23)

2.13(23)

2.14(26)

2.15(29)

2.16(30)

3.1(25)
3.2(35)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated October 5, 1993 between Credence Systems Corporation, a
California Corporation, and the Company.

Asset Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 1990 between Tektronix, Inc. and the Company,
including Amendment No. 1 to the Asset Purchase Agreement dated December 31, 1990.

Technology Agreement between Tektronix, Inc. and the Company dated December 31, 1990.
Letter Agreement between Tektronix, Inc. and the Company dated September 30, 1992.
Amendment Agreement dated as of August 12, 1993 between Tektronix, Inc. and the Company.
1990 Plan of Purchase Price Adjustment Recapitalization.

Letter Agreement between Tektronix, Inc. and the Company dated August 11, 1993.

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated as of February 6, 1994 among the Registrant,
Semiconductor Test Solutions, Inc., EPRC and the shareholders of EPRO listed therein.

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 19, 1997, among Credence Systems Corporation, Test
Systems Strategies, Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Credence
Systems Corporation, and Test Systems Strategies, Inc. an Oregon Corporation and wholly-owned
subsidiary of Summit Design, Inc.

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 20, 1997, among Zycad Corporation, a Delaware
Corporation, its wholly owned subsidiary, Attest Software and Test Systems Strategies, Inc., a
Delaware Corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998, between Credence Systems Corporation, a
Delaware corporation and Yervant David Lepejian and Lawrence Kraus, as authorized
representatives of all of the shareholders of Heuristics Physics Laboratories, Inc., a California
corporation.

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 16, 1999, between Fluence Technology, Inc., a
Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Credence Systems Corporation, and
Opmaxx, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 31, 1999, to the
Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 16, 1999, between Fluence Technology, Inc., a
Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Credence Systems Corporation and
Opmaxx, Inc., a Delaware Corporation.

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated as of March 27, 2000, among the Company, TMT and
Champagne Acquisition Corporation.

Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization dated May 16, 2001, by and among the
Company, Iguana Acquisition Corporation and Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc.

Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated June 1, 2001,
by and among the Company, [guana Acquisition Corporation and Integrated Measurement Systems,
Inc.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, as currently in effect.

88




Exhibit
Number

4.1(1)

4.2(3)
4.3(16)

4.4(16)

4.5(16)
4.6(7)
4.7(31)

10.1(1)
10.2(1)

10.3(3)

10.4(7)

10.5(1)

10.6(1)

10.7(1)

10.8(4)
10.9(2)

10.10(3)

10.11(3)

10.12(6)

Description

Investor Rights Agreement dated October 15, 1989 by and among the Company and the investors
listed therein, including Amendment Agreement to the Investor Rights Agreement dated June 15,
1990, Second Amendment Agreement to the Investor Rights Agreement dated September 30, 1992
and the Third Amendment Agreement to Investor Rights Agreement dated August 8, 1993.

Fourth Amendment Agreement to the Investor Rights Agreement dated March 10, 1994.

Form of Rights Agreement, dated as of June 2, 1998, by and between the Company and
BankBoston N.A., as nghts Agent.

Form of Certificate of Designation for the Senes A Junior Part1c1pat1ng Preferred Stock of the
Company.

Form of Rights Certificate.

Fifth Amendment Agreement to the Investor Rights Agreement dated May 26, 1995.

- Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 16, 2001, by and between the Regxstrant and Cadence

Design Systems, Inc.
Form of Indemnification Agreement Between the Company and each. of its officers and directors.

Underwriting Agreement dated October 28, 1993 by and among the Company and the underwriters
named therein. .

Underwriting Agreement dated March 31, 1994 by and among the Company and the underwriters
named therein.

Underwriting Agreement dated June 14, 1995 by and among the Company and the underwriters
named therein.

Industrial Space Lease between Renco Investment Company and the Company dated August 12,
1992 including the First Addendum dated August 14, 1992, Option to renew Lease dated August
14, 1992, First Amendment to Lease dated October 22, 1992 and Acceptance Agreement dated
November 25, 1992.

Indenture (lease agreement) between Pen Nom I Corporation and the Company dated April 3, 1991,
including the First Amendment to Lease dated August 16, 1991, the Second Amendment to Lease
dated December 10, 1991, the Third Amendment to Lease dated August 7, 1992, the Fourth
Amendment to Lease dated October 13, 1992 and the Fifth Amendment to Lease dated November
15, 1993.

Master Equipment Lease Agreement between the Company and Financing for Science and
Industry, Inc. dated February 26, 1993.

Leaseline Agreement between Comdisco and the Company dated July 29, 1994.

Indemnification and Security Agreement between Credence Capital Corporation and the Company
dated October 28, 1994,

Stock Transfer Agreement by and among the Company, Richard Cann, Rene Verhaegen and

Credence Europa Limited dated as of February 28, 1994.

Secured Line of Credit Agreement between Credence Europa Limited and the Company dated as of
February 28, 1994.

Lease by and between the Company and The Mutual Life Insurance Company of New York dated
June 16, 1995.
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Exhibit
Number
10.13(10)
10.14(11)
10.15(9)
10.16(11)

10.17(12)

10.18(13)
10.19(13)

10.20(13)

10.21(23)

10.22(14)
10.23(17)

10.24(18)
10.25(19)

10.26(19)

10.27(21)

10.28(22)

10.29(22)

10.30(24)

10.31(25)
10.32(30)

10.33(34)

Description

First Amendment to Lease by and between the Company and The Mutual Life Insurance Company
of New York dated December 29, 1993.

Loan and Security Agreement between the Company and Silicon Valley Bank and Comerica
Bank-California dated April 28, 1995, as amended.

Domestic and International Master Agreement for Purchase of Equipment and Product Support
between the Company and Comdisco, Inc., dated January 31, 1995.

Master Lease Purchase Agreement, Lease Purchase Closing Schedule and Lease Purchase
Addendum No. One between Metlife Capital Corporation and the Company dated April 30, 1996.

Loan Agreement among Silicon Valley Bank, Bank of Hawaii and the Company, dated July 26,
1996.

License Agreement between the Company and Kinetix Test Systems, LLC, dated July 31, 1996.

Lease Agreement between Petula Associates, Ltd and Koll Portland Associates, dba KBC Tigard
I and the Company dated September 12, 1995.

Sixth Amendment to Lease by and between the Company and Pen Nom I Corporation dated
March 10, 1995.

Software OEM License Agreement between the Company, Test Systems Strategies, Inc. and
Summit Design, Inc. dated May 19, 1997,

Joint Venture Agreement dated June 10, 1997, between the Company and Innotech Corporation.

Lease Agreement between the Company and Bedford Property Investors, Inc. dated December 10,
1997.

Lease Agreement between the Company and Pacific Realty Associates, L.P., dated April 10, 1998.

Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 24, 1998 between the Company, Silicon Valley Bank
and Bank of Hawaii.

Non-Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement dated May 1, 1998 between the Company and
Silicon Valley Financial Services.

Amendment to Loan Agreement dated February 5, 1999 between Silicon Valley Bank, Bank of
Hawaii and the Company.

Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 23, 1999 between Silicon Valley Bank and the
Company.

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Graham J. Siddall, dated July 29,
1999.

Underwriting Agreement dated February 2000 by and among the Company and the Underwriters
named therein.

Amendment to Graham J. Siddall Employment Agreement.

Amended and Restated Shareholder Agreement dated June 4, 2001 by and among the Company,
Iguana Acquisition Corporation and Cadence Design Systems, Inc.

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2002, by and between the Company and John
R. Detwiler.
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Exhibit
Number

10.34(34)
10.35(34)
10.36(34)

10.37(34)
10.38(34)
10.39(34)
10.40(36)

10.41(36)

21.1
23.1
24.1
99.1(28)
99.2(15)
99.3(15)

99.4(15)
99.5(15)
99.6(15)
99.7(15)
99.8(15)

99.9(15)

99.10(28)
99.11(5)(10)
99.12(5)(10)

99.13(5)(10)

99.14(5)(10)

Description

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2002, by and between the Company and David
A. Ranhoff.

Employment Agreement, dated March 25, 1998, by and between Integrated Measurement
Systems, Inc. and Keith L. Barnes.

Letter Agreement, dated August 1, 2001, by and arnong Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc.,
the Company and Keith L. Barnes. . :

Letter Agreement, dated January 15, 2002, by and between the Company and Keith L. Barnes.
Employment offer letter, dated October 1, 2001, by and between the Company and Fred Hall.
Letter Agreement, dated January 15, 2002, by and between the Company and Fred Hall.

Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between Transwestern Dixon Landings,
L.L.C. and the Company dated as of March 25, 2002.

First Amendment effective May 8, 2002 to Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement by and
between Transwestern Dixon Landings, L.L.C. and the Company dated as of March 25, 2002.

Subsuhanes of the Company.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors.

Power of Attorney (reference is made to page 383 of this repoft).
1993 Stock Option Plan, as Amended and Restated through May 17, 2000.
Form of Notice of Grant to be generally used in connection with the 1993 Stock Option Plan.

Form of Stock Option Agreement to be generally used in connection with the 1993 Stock
Option Plan.

Addendum to the Stock Option Agreement (Special Tax Elections).

Addendum to the Stock Option Agreement (Limited Stock Appreciation Rights).
Addendum to the Stock Option Agreement (Change in Control).

Addendum to the Stock Option Agreement (Financial Assistance).

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option (Non-Employee Director) to be generally used in
connection with the automatic option grant program of the 1993 Stock Option Plan.

Form of Stock Option Agreement (Non-Employee Diréctor) to be generally used in connection

with the automatic option grant program of the 1993 Stock Option Plan.

Empldyee Stock Purchase Plan, as Amended and Restated through May 17, 2000.
Compensation Agreement between the Company and Jos C. Henkens, dated November 5, 1993.

Compensation Agreement between the Company and Wilmer R. Bottoms, dated November S,
1993.

Compensatlon Agreement between the Company and Robert F. Kibble, dated November 5,
1993.

Compensation Agreement between the Company and Bernard V. Vonderschmitt, dated
November 5, 1993.
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Exhibit
Number

99.15(5)(10)

Description

Compensation Agreement between the Company and Henk J. Evenhuis, dated November 4,
1993.

99.16(15) Form of Stock Purchase Agreement.

99.17(15) Form of Enrollment/Change Form.

99.18 Supplemental Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated through November 27, 2001.

99.19(27) TMT, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan.

99.20(27) Form of Option Assumption Agreement under TMT, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan.

99.21(32) Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plan.

99.22(32) Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plan Terms and Conditions of
Option Grant.

99.23(32) Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors.

99.24(32) Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors
Terms and Conditions of Option Grant.

99.25(32) Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

99.26(32) Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Payroll
Participation.

99.27(32) Integrated Measurement Systems, Inc. 2000 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan.

99.28(32) Form of Stock Option Assumption Agreement relating to Integrated Measurement Systems,
Inc. Stock Options.

99.29(33) Fluence Technology, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan.

99.30(33) Fluence Technology, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement.

99.31(33) Opmaxx, Inc. 1997 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan.

99.32(33) Opmaxx, Inc. 1997 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan Form of Notice of Grant.

99.33(33) Form of Stock Option Assumption Agreement relating to Fluence Technology, Inc. and
Opmaxx, Inc.

99.34 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.35 Certification of Chief Financial Gfficer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(1) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1

(Registration No. 33-68438) as amended.

(2) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s 1994 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(3) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 33-76264) as amended.

(4) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended July 31, 1994.

(5) Management contract or compensatory plan filed pursuant to Item 14(c).

(6) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly

period ended July 31, 1995.
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(32)

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3
(Registration No. 33-92802), as amended.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-X as filed with the
Compmission on March 29, 1995, as amended on May 26, 1995.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 30, 1995.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s 1995 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 30, 1996.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended July 31, 1996.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s 1996 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended July 31, 1997.

Exhibits 99.2 through 99.9 and Exhibit 99.16 and 99.17 are incorporated herein by reference to identically
numbered exhibits included in the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-27499)
declared effective with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 20, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the
Commission on June 3, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended January 31, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 30, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
peried ended July 31, 1998. , ‘

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
October 31, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 30, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended July 31, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
October 31, 1999,

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3
(Registration Statement No. 333-95469), as amended.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 30, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the
Commission on May 12, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File

No. 333-38428), as filed with the Commission on June 2, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File

No. 333-50432), as filed with the Commission on November 21, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the
Commission on May 17, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the
Commission on June 4, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4
(Registration Statement No. 333-62386), as amended.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File

No. 333-333-69584), as filed with the Commission on September 18, 2001.
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Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File

No. 333-333-74346), as filed with the Commission on November 30, 2001.

(34) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-X for the year ended
October 31, 2001.

(35) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended January 31, 2002.

(36) Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly

period ended April 30, 2002. ‘

After reasonable effort, the Company has not been able to obtain the consent of Arthur Andersen LLP to
the incorporation by reference of their report contained in this Annual Report in the registration statements on
Form S-8, File Nos. 333-58100, 333-50432, 333-32834, 333-77007, 333-55051, 333-27499, 333-03806,
33-90728, 333-38428, 333-69584 and 333-74346, and the Company has dispensed with the requirement to file
their consent in reliance on Rule 437a promulgated under the Securities Act. Because Arthur Andersen LLP has
not consented to the incorporation by reference of their report in these registration statements, purchasers of
stock under these registration statements will not be able to recover against Arthur Andersen LLP under Section
11 of the Securities Act for any untrue statements of a material fact contained in the financial statements audited
by Arthur Andersen LLP incorporated by reference herein or any omissions to state a material fact required to be
stated therein.
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